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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
ERWE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Li Bao Ge Group Limited (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, collectively known as the
“Group”), | hereby present to the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”) the audited consolidated
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022
(the “Year” or the “Reporting Period”) together with the
comparative figures for the corresponding period in 2021
as set out below for their consideration. Unless otherwise
specified, terms used herein shall have the same meanings
as those defined in the Company’s prospectus dated 24 June
2016 (the “Prospectus”).

Business Review

The operating environment of the catering industry was
continued to remain a depression in 2022 with (i) the fifth
wave of the coronavirus disease 2019 (“COVID-19” or
“Pandemic”) in Hong Kong and (ji) the People’s Republic of
China’s (the “PRC”) operation was suffered by the severe
government restriction measures on public gatherings and
compulsory temporary lockdowns. In view of the above, the
Group decided to cease the operations of three Chinese
restaurants and one Thai restaurant in Hong Kong in order to
avoid further loss and make available the occupied working
capital for other operational needs of the Group.

The Group opened one new high-class Chinese restaurant
in high-end location to attract high-spending customers at
the end of November 2022. The Group also entered into a
cooperation agreement with Kafelaku Coffee International
Holding Limited (the “Kafelaku”) to establish a joint venture
company (the “dV”) in coffee services for China market (the
“Cooperation Agreement”).

During the year under review, the Group’s total revenue
amounted to approximately HK$135.6 million (2021:
approximately HK$274.6 million), representing a year-on-
year decrease of approximately 50.6%. Loss attributable to
owner of the Company amounted to approximately HK$41.4
million (2021: approximately HK$92.4 million (restated)) during
the Year. For financial review, please refer to the section
“Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (Continued)
FEHRE (@)

Future Outlook

Although the Pandemic has become stabilized, travel
restrictions of China and Hong Kong have been lifted, and
the economic activities of PRC and Hong Kong have been
gradually resuming, the catering industry still faces huge
challenges and the business environment remains weak as
compared to that before the fifth wave of the Pandemic. The
Group remained vigilant by constantly adjusting the menu mix
and taking measures to optimize operations and enhance
production efficiency, so as to cope with the unpredictable
market environment.

Looking forward, the Group will continue to adhere and
develop the brand of “Star of Canton” and expand its catering
business in Hong Kong and the PRC with the aim to maximize
the return to its shareholders. In addition, the Group intends
to develop a coffee business in the PRC so as to diversify
Group’s catering business.

When external uncertainties are eliminated, the Group’s
business is expected to recover quickly. With the expected
resumption of full operation of the Group’s restaurants and
gradual resumption of the economy in Hong Kong and China,
the Group expects its overall financial performance in 2023
would be improved as compared to the same period in 2022.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (Continued)
FERE @)

Appreciation

| would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to all of our
business partners, staff, investors and customers for their
support. The Group will continue to work tirelessly to boost
the sustainable development of the overall business.

Chan Chun Kit
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 29 March 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN W& O

Business and Operational Review

The Group is a Chinese restaurant group recognised for
delivering Cantonese cuisine, and Chinese banquet and
dining services.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group operated one full-
service restaurant in Hong Kong under the brand name of
“Li Bao House (| & & £§)” (the “Central Restaurant’) (i.e.
a new high class Chinese restaurant for the Group and main
brand focus on new high-class Cantonese cuisine and attract
customers who put a high value on quality with luxurious
decorations) which was opened on 28 November 2022.
The Group also operated three full-service restaurants in
Shenzhen, the PRC, under the brand name of “Star of Canton

(MER)".

Due to unsatisfactory customer visits, unfavorable market
conditions, and the expiration of the lease term on 31 May
2022, the Group decided not to renew the lease and ceased
the operation of the Chinese restaurant in Causeway Bay.
For similar reasons, and as the Group was unable to obtain
favorable lease concessions from the landlords, the Group
ceased the operations of the Chinese restaurant in Tsim Sha
Tsui, the Thai cuisine restaurant in Mongkok and the Chinese
restaurant in Olympian City on 19 May, 25 August and 26
September 2022, respectively. During the Year, the Group’s
Chinese restaurants in the PRC were seriously affected by
government restriction measures on public gatherings and
compulsory temporary lockdowns. One food counter inside
Shanghai Freshippo store was closed during the Year. The
above factors had caused a severe adverse impact on the
Group’s business during the Year.

Despite of (a) the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
(the “HKSAR”) Government has lifted the COVID-19
prevention measures in an orderly manner; (b) the stabilizing
of COVID-19; and (c) the gradual resumption of economic
activities in the PRC, the catering industry is still facing huge
challenges and the business environment remains weak as
compared to that before the fifth wave of the COVID-19. The
Group remained vigilant by constantly adjusting the menu mix
and taking measures to optimize operations and enhance
production efficiency, so as to cope with the unpredictable
market environment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

ERE MmN DN @)

The management of the Group periodically evaluates the
business potential, location, customer traffic, store layout and
rental terms of the Group’s existing and potential restaurants.
In response to the prevailing operating environment in Hong
Kong, the Group has in place active cost control measures
to ensure that the resources of the Group are deployed
efficiently. The Group will continue to strengthen its position in
operating restaurants in Hong Kong and the PRC and look for
suitable opportunities to expand our business in the regions.

All of the Group’s restaurants are strategically situated in
landmark shopping arcades or commercial complexes at
prime locations. The Group maintains a business philosophy
of offering quality food and services at reasonable prices in
an elegant and comfortable dining setting. All of the Group’s
restaurants target at mid-to-high end spending customers.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had,
In Hong Kong:

(i)  one Chinese restaurant, which was located in Central (i.e.
the Central Restaurant); and

In Shenzhen, the PRC:

(i) three Chinese restaurants, which were located in Futain
District (i.e. the Shenzhen Restaurant and the Shenzhen
One Avenue Restaurant) and Baoan District (i.e. the
Shenzhen Uniwalk Restaurant), respectively.

Due to the impact of the COVID-19, the expansion plan of the
Group has been delayed.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

ERE WM DN (@)

Financial Review

Revenue

For the Year, the Group recorded a total revenue of
approximately HK$135.6 million, representing a decrease
of approximately 50.6% as compared to approximately
HK$274.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Group’s total revenue for the Year mainly comprised:

(1) the aggregate revenue of the four Chinese restaurants
in Hong Kong of approximately HK$22.3 million
(2021: approximately HK$66.7 million), decreased by
approximately 66.7%, which was mainly due to the
closure of three Chinese Restaurants during the Year. In
addition, the fifth wave of the COVID-19, the accelerated
downtrend of the Hong Kong economy and severe
government restriction measures on public gatherings
also contributed to the reduction of revenue during the
Year;

(2) the aggregate revenue of the three Chinese restaurants
in Shenzhen, the PRC, of approximately HK$108.9
million (2021: approximately HK$178.2 million),
decreased by approximately 38.9%, which was mainly
due to the severe government restriction measures on
public gatherings and compulsory temporary lockdowns.
Operations of our restaurants located in the lockdown
areas in the PRC were temporarily suspended which
caused serious impacts on our business. Besides, the
severe COVID-19 from surrounding cities and regions
also affected the consumer spending confidence level in
Shenzhen during the Year;

(8) the aggregate revenue of the Thai (Mongkok) Restaurant
in Hong Kong of approximately HK$4.3 million
(2021: approximately HK$10.2 million), decreased by
approximately 57.5%, which was mainly due to the
closure of the restaurant during the Year;
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

ERE MmN DN @)

(4) the aggregate revenue of the Freshippo operation inside
Shanghai Freshippo store of approximately HK$17,000
(2021: approximately HK$18.8 million), decreased by
approximately 99.9% which was due to the closure of
the operation during the Year; and

(5) no revenue of sales of food ingredients was recorded
during the Year (2021: approximately HK$0.6 million) as
a result of the suspension of such business.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group’s gross profit (i.e. revenue minus cost of materials
consumed) amounted to approximately HK$83.8 million for
the Year, representing a decrease of approximately 50.2%
from approximately HK$168.2 million for the year ended
31 December 2021, which was in line with the decrease
in revenue of approximately 50.6% during the Year.
Nevertheless, the Group’s overall gross profit margin slightly
increased to approximately 61.8% for the Year (2021: 61.3%).

Employee benefits expense

Employee benefits expense was approximately HK$50.8
million for the Year (2021: approximately HK$78.2 million),
representing a decrease of approximately 35% as compared
to 2021 which was (i) in line with the decrease in revenue from
the PRC (represented over 80% of the total revenue of the
Group) during the Year and (ii) the closure of three Chinese
restaurants and one Thai cuisine restaurant during the Year.
Going forward, the Group will closely monitor the cost control
in respect of staff salaries, and regularly review the work
allocations of the staff in order to improve work efficiency and
maintain high quality services.

Depreciation

Depreciation in respect of the right-of-use assets in relation to
the Group’s leased properties for the Year was approximately
HK$25.6 million (2021: HK$39.3 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

ERE WM DN (@)

Other expenses

Other expenses mainly include but not limited to expenses
incurred for the Group’s restaurant operations, consisting
of operating lease expenses, building management fees, air
conditioning charges, cleaning and laundry expenses, utility
expenses, service fees to temporary workers, advertising
and promotions. For the Year, other expenses amounted
to approximately HK$44.4 million (2021: HK$74.7 million),
representing a decrease of approximately HK$30.3 million or
40.6% which was mainly due to the combined effects of (i) the
decrease of bad debts written-off by approximately HK$2.0
million; (i) no VAT recoverable written-off as compared to
the year ended 31 December 2021 of approximately HK$2.5
million; (i) the decrease of property, plant and equipment
written off by approximately HK$5.8 million compared to the
year ended 31 December 2021; (iv) the decrease of short
term lease payment by approximately HK$2 million compared
to the year ended 31 December 2021; (v) the decrease
of building management fee and air conditioning charges
by approximately HK$3.9 million due to the closure of
restaurants in Hong Kong; and (vi) the decrease of temporary
staff cost, staff messing and laundry and sanitary expenses
by approximately HK$2.2 million, HK$2.3 million and HK$2.5
million, respectively, as compared to the year ended 31
December 2021 due to the reduction in sales and closure of
restaurants.

Gain on early termination of leases

The gain on early termination of leases of approximately
HK$24.9 million was mainly resulted from termination of
leases held by the Chinese restaurants in Tsim Sha Tsui and
Olympian City during the Year. The gain represented the
amount of reversal of remaining lease liabilities in excess of
the carrying value of related right-of-use assets.

Impairment losses on amount due from a non-
controlling shareholder of the Company (the
“Shareholder”) and intangible assets

There was no impairment loss on the amount due from a
non-controlling Shareholder nor impairment loss on intangible
assets for the Year as the related amount had been fully
provided in the previous year ended 31 December 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

ERE MmN DN @)

Impairment losses on right-of-use assets,
property, plant and equipment and loan
receivable

The net impairment loss on right-of-use assets and property,
plant and equipment amounting to approximately HK$10.9
million and HK$6.0 million, respectively, recognised in the
Year were due to the unsatisfactory performance of Chinese
restaurants in Hong Kong and the PRC. The Directors are
of the opinion that the credit risk of the loan receivable is
considered to be high for the occurrence of default events.
Having considered the recoverable amount of security and
the liquidity position of the borrower, the Group recognised
approximately HK$2.0 million impairment loss on loan
receivable during the Year.

Finance costs

Finance costs for the Year were approximately HK$9.2 million
(2021: HK$10.9 million) in respect of interest expense on
lease liabilities in relation to the Group’s leased property, plant
and equipment.

Loss attributable to owners of the Company

For the Year, the Group recorded a loss attributable to owners
of the Company of approximately HK$41.4 million, whereas
the Group recorded a loss attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$92.4 million (restated) for the
year ended 31 December 2021. Such loss-making position
for the Year, decreased by approximately HK$51.1 million as
compared to the last year which was mainly attributable to
the combined effects of (i) no record of impairment losses on
the intangible assets (2021: approximately HK$28.7 million);
(i) no record of impairment losses on the amount due from
a non-controlling Shareholder (2021: approximately HK$9.9
million); (iii) the increase in aggregate operating losses of
the operations of the Group’s restaurants by approximately
HK$7.8 million; (iv) the record of impairment losses on
property, plant and equipment of approximately HK$6.0
million; and (v) the gain on early termination of leases by
approximately HK$24.9 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

ERE WM DN (@)

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure
Capital Structure

The Group’s objectives in managing capital are to safeguard
its ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for its Shareholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to its Shareholders,
return capital to its Shareholders, issue new Shares or sell
assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors its capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. The Group’s strategy, which was unchanged during the
Year, was to maintain the gearing ratio at an acceptable level.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents were approximately HK$23.5 million, representing
a decrease of approximately HK$3.3 million as compared
with approximately HK$26.8 million as at 31 December 2021.
The decrease was mainly due to increase in cash used in
operations during the Year.

As at 31 December 2022, cash and cash equivalents
amounted to approximately HK$23.5 million, of which
approximately HK$16.8 million and HK$6.7 million were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and Renminbi
(“RMB?”), respectively.

Indebtedness and Banking Facilities

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had bank borrowings
of approximately HK$20.8 million, bearing interest rates at
3.375% per annum and were guaranteed by HKSAR.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s gearing ratio, which
is calculated based on the interest-bearing debts (excluding
lease liabilities) divided by total equity attributable to owners
of the Company (the “Shareholders’ Equity”), was irrelevant
as the Company has recorded a deficit in its Shareholders’
Equity as at 31 December 2022. The Directors, taking into
account the nature and scale of operations and capital
structure of the Group, will closely monitor the gearing ratio
and will adjust its business strategies to improve it to a
reasonable level.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

ERE MmN DN @)

Foreign Exchange Exposure

Most of the income and expenditures of the Group are
denominated in HK$ and RMB, which are the functional
currencies of the respective group entities. Although HK$ is
not pegged to RMB, the historical exchange rate fluctuation
on RMB was not significant during the Year. Thus, no
significant exposure is expected on RMB transactions and
balances. Accordingly, the Group does not have any material
foreign exchange exposure. During the Year, the Group had
not used any financial instruments for hedging purposes.

Securities in Issue

As at 31 December 2022, there were 1,105,100,000 ordinary
shares in issue. The Company has allotted and issued
additional 105,100,000 Shares during the Year. Details of
which are set out below with sub-heading “Placing of New
Shares under General Mandate”.

Placing of New Shares under General Mandate
(the “Placing”)

Reference is made to the Company’s announcements
dated 22 November, 6 December and 15 December
2022 (collectively, the “Placing Announcements”). The
Company has successfully placed on 15 December 2022
a total of 105,100,000 new Shares under the general
mandate granted to the Directors by the Shareholders at
the annual general meeting of the Company held on 24
June 2022. The net proceeds (after deducting the placing
commission, professional fees and all related expenses) were
approximately HK$21.07 million.

Please refer to the Placing Announcements and the section
“Use of proceeds from the Placing” on page 20 below for
details of the Placing and intended uses of the Placing
proceeds.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
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Significant Investment Held, Material Acquisition
or Disposal of Subsidiaries and Affiliated
Companies and Plans for Material Investment or
Capital Assets

There was no significant investment held, material acquisition
or disposal of subsidiaries and affiliated companies during the
Year.

The Company entered into the Cooperation Agreement with
Kafelaku to establish the JV. Pursuant to the Cooperation
Agreement, the JV will set up a company in Guangzhou city,
the PRC and open coffee chain stores in the PRC. For detall,
please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 18
November 2022.

Save as the above, there was no plan for material investment
or capital assets as at 31 December 2022.

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any charge
over its assets (2021: pledged bank deposit of approximately
HKS$4.1 million).

Contingent Liabilities

On 31 December 2019, Excel Linker (Hong Kong) Limited, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company received a
Writ of Summons together with an indorsement of claim dated
31 December 2019 issued in the High Court of the HKSAR
(the “Court Action”) by Foxhill Investments Limited as plaintiff
against Excel Linker (Hong Kong) Limited as defendant.
For details, please refer to the announcement titled “Inside
Information — Litigation” dated 6 January 2020. A provision of
HK$9.3 million has been made in the consolidated financial
statements as at 31 December 2022 (2021: HK$6.0 million).
The Company is of the view that the Court Action did not
and will not have any material adverse impact on the ordinary
operation and financial positions of the Group. To the best
knowledge of the Directors, no trial in relation to the Court
Action has been scheduled up to the date of this report.

Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the
Group did not have any material contingent liabilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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Employees and Remuneration Policies

The Group had approximately 408 employees as at 31
December 2022 (2021: 537). The employee benefits
expense, including Directors’ emoluments, of the Group
were approximately HK$50.8 million (2021: $78.2 million)
decreased by approximately 35.1% compared to 31
December 2021. The decrease was due to (1) the closure of
four restaurants in Hong Kong for the Year; and (2) as affected
by the COVID-19, the Chinese restaurants in Mainland China
only had approximately 10 to 11 months of operations for the
Year, however, these restaurants had a whole year operations
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Directors and the senior management of the Company
(the “Senior Management”) receive compensation in the
form of salaries and discretionary bonuses with reference to
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and the performance of the Group. The Group regularly
reviews and determines the remuneration and compensation
package of the Directors and the Senior Management with
reference to, among other things, the market level of salaries
paid by comparable companies, the respective responsibilities
of the Directors and the Senior Management and the
performance of the Group.

The remuneration committee of the Board (the “Remuneration
Committee”) reviews and determines the remuneration and
compensation packages of the Directors with reference
to their responsibilities, workload, the time devoted to the
Group and the performance of the Group. The Directors may
also receive options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme (as defined and described on page 116 of this
annual report). During the Year, no share option was granted
to the relevant participants pursuant to such scheme.

Dividend

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment of
any final dividend for the Year (2021: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
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Prospects

The catering industry still faces huge challenges and the
business environment remained weak as compared to
that before the fifth wave of the COVID-19. The Directors
anticipate that the Group’s business will face various
challenges in the foreseeable future. The Group’s key risk
exposures and uncertainties are summarised as follows:

M

(i)

(V)

18

the Hong Kong and China economies may be further
worsened as a result of the unfavourable development
of the China-US trade war and the Ukraine war, which
would negatively affect the consumption sentiments
of the general public and consequently the retail and
catering sectors;

the continuous rise in interest rates in Hong Kong may
affect the consumers’ spending sentiments which will
adversely affect the business of the Group’s restaurants
in the year to come;

the Group’s future success relies heavily on its ability to
constantly offer menu items, creatively-designed banquet
and dining services based on changing market trends
and changing tastes, dietary habits, expectations and
other preferences of the Group’s target customers. As
such, significant costs to survey and research customer
trends and preferences and to develop and market
new menu items, banquet and dining services may
be required, this may place substantial burden on the
Group’s managerial and financial resources;

the operation of the Group may be affected by the
price of the food ingredients, including the price of the
imported food ingredients which will be affected by the
fluctuating exchange rate; and

there may be labour shortage in the future and intensive

competition for qualified individuals in the food and
beverage industry.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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For other risks and uncertainties facing the Group, please
refer to the section headed “Risk Factors” in the Company’s
Prospectus.

Nonetheless, the management is expecting the Hong Kong
economy to rebound in 2023 gradually and is optimistic that
the Group can succeed and enhance the Shareholders’ value
in the medium to long run, based on the years of experience
of the Senior Management in managing Chinese restaurant
business in Hong Kong and China and its business strategies
as detailed below.

The Group is confidence that Hong Kong economy will
be gradually rebound in 2023 which may also improve the
consumer confidence level in Hong Kong. The reopening
of the borders between Hong Kong and China will help to
accelerate the recovery rate of economic activities in Hong
Kong to pre-pandemic levels.

Going forward, the Group will continue to utilise available
resources to implement its business strategies, namely,
steady growth and prudent expansion in Hong Kong with
its multi-brand strategy, progressive expansion in the PRC
market, continuing promotion of brand image and recognition
through marketing initiatives, enhancement of existing
restaurant facilities and strengthening of staff training aiming
to attract more new customers. In this process, the Group
will continue to maintain its commitment to quality as always.
For the time being, the Group will put more effort into online
marketing to promote existing business and to increase
market share. In addition, the Group intends to develop a
coffee business in the PRC so as to diversify Group’s catering
business.

The Group will also consider the expansion of its catering
business into other types of cuisines and operation modes
when opportunities arise, taking into account the Group’s
available resources, with the aim to maximize the return to its
Shareholders.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

EEEFN W& DN @)

Use of proceeds from the Placing

The Company’s Placing was completed on 15 December
2022 with proceeds received by the Company in the amount of
approximately HK$21.07 million after deducting underwriting
commissions and related expenses. For details, please refer
to the Placing Announcements.

As at 31 December 2022, the net proceeds from the Placing
were applied as follows:

REZEEZ2BRIEASE

ARz REETER-_ZTE-__F+=H
THEZEK KNReHEAe MEERSE -
AABREFTSRELN21.07EEBT &7
BEL2HZERERSE -

RZEBE-_—_F+-_A=+—H BEEEE
P8BS AR Nt AR :

Planned use of
net proceeds

as stated in
the Placing Actual use of
announcement net proceeds
dated up to
15 December 31 December
2022 2022
HERR
TE = B=E
+Z—A+ARBZ —E=-=
REEEBEAYE +Z-ZHA=+—H
it P15 3018 Fr{& A
SREEEE FEHER
R Az
HK$’'000 HK$’000
FHT FET
For replenishing the working capital of — ## 78 N & E /)

the Group LEEG 9,069 1,703
For repayment of debts BEER 4,000 3,252

For developing the Group’s businesses R ANE B R E B KL
in Hong Kong and in the PRC BT 8,000 243

As at 31 December 2022, approximately HK$5.2 million
out of the net proceeds from the Placing had been used
in accordance with the planned usage as detailed above.
The portion of net proceeds yet to be used was deposited
in licensed banks in Hong Kong, and is expected to be
progressively utilised by 2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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Events After the Reporting Date of 31
December 2022

Reference is made to the Company’s announcement (the
“Change of Auditor Announcement”) dated 18 January
2023 (the “Effective Date”). Ting Ho Kwan & Chan CPA
Limited (“THKC CPA”) had resigned as the auditor of the
Company (the “Auditor”) with effect from the Effective Date as
THKC CPA was commencing a reorganisation of their client
base. The Board, with the recommendation from the audit
committee of the Board, had resolved to appoint Ting Ho
Kwan & Chan (“THKC”), which the partners and management
are the same as the directors and management of THKC
CPA, as the Auditor with effect from the Effective Date. Please
refer to the Change of Auditor Announcement for details.

Save for the above, the Board is not aware of any other
important event requiring disclosure that has taken place
subsequent to 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this
report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Introduction, Environmental, Social and
Governance Policies

Li Bao Ge Group Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, “the Group” or “we”) is a Chinese restaurant
group recognised for delivering Cantonese cuisine, Chinese
banquet and dining services. As at 31 December 2022, the
Group operated one full-service restaurant in Hong Kong
under the brand name of “Li Bao House (7|8 & ££)” (the
“Central Restaurant”) which was opened in November 2022.
It aims as a new high class Chinese restaurant for the Group
and main brand focus on new high-class Cantonese cuisine
and attract customers who put a high value on quality with
luxurious decorations. The Group also operated three full-
service restaurants in Shenzhen, the The People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”), under the brand name of “Star of Canton
(MIERE)".

During the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Reporting
Period” or “2022”), the Group ceased operations of several
restaurants due to the reason of unsatisfactory customer
visits, unfavorable market conditions, expiration of the lease
term and unfavorable lease concessions. The Chinese
restaurants in Causeway Bay and Tsim Sha Tsui were ceased
business in May 2022. The Chinese restaurant in Olympian
City and the Thai cuisine restaurant in Mongkok were also
closed in September 2022 and August 2022 respectively.
During the Reporting Period, the Group’s Chinese restaurants
in the PRC were seriously affected by government restriction
measures on public gatherings and compulsory temporary
lockdowns. The remaining food counter inside Shanghai
Freshippo store was closed during the Reporting Period.

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the
“ESG Report”) summarises the environmental, social and
governance (“ESG”) initiatives, plans and performances of the
Group and demonstrates its commitment towards sustainable
development. The Group attributes the growth and success
to its dedication by offering quality food and services to
customers.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
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Board Statement

The Group strives to develop its business in a sustainable
manner and create values to the stakeholders. We are
committed to maintaining high standards of business
practices in relation to environmental protection, social
responsibility and corporate governance, as we believe this is
the key to our continuous success in the future.

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) has an
ultimate responsibility for overseeing and making decision for
the Group’s ESG governance. The ESG governance mainly
related to environmental, climate and social aspects. The
Board is responsible to set up a general direction for the
Group’s ESG strategies, identify the risks and opportunities
impacting the Group, formulate ESG policy and targets of
the Group, and review the Group’s performance. The Board
also ensures the effectiveness in the control of ESG risks and
internal control mechanisms.

The Group has established the ESG taskforce (the
“Taskforce”). The Taskforce comprises core members
from different departments and is responsible for collecting
relevant information on our ESG aspects for preparing the
ESG Report. The Taskforce reports to the Board, assists
in identifying and evaluating the Group’s ESG risks and
the effectiveness of the internal control mechanisms. The
Taskforce also examines and evaluates our performances
in different aspects such as environment, health and safety,
labour standards and product responsibilities in the ESG
aspects.

The Board would review the updates in regulatory requirement,
set goals and target with Taskforce regularly to ensure the
strategies is on the right track and appropriate.
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Reporting Scope and Framework

Unless otherwise stated, the ESG Report covers the
Group’s ESG performance of the headquarter office, and
the restaurant operations in both Hong Kong and the PRC.
Regarding the shops which were ceased operation during
the Reporting Period, the ESG Report covers information
up to cessation date. The reporting scope was assessed
by the senior management of the Group by considering
the materiality principle, revenue source and number of
staff headcount. We collect the Group’s key performance
indicators (“KPI”) in environmental and social areas through
the Group’s operation control mechanism.

The ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the “comply
or explain” provisions of the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide in Appendix 27 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “"HKEX ESG Reporting Guide”).

Information relating to the Group’s corporate governance
practices has been set out in the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 74 to 104 of this annual report.

Reporting Period and Principles

We adhered to the reporting principles of the ESG Guide that
are described below in preparation of this ESG report.

Materiality: Key ESG issues are identified through materiality
assessment, the processes and results of which are disclosed
in the part of “Stakeholder Engagement and Materiality
Assessment” in this ESG Report.

Quantitative: Quantitative data in the ESG Report has been
explained its purpose and impacts, and been applicable for
comparisons.

Consistency: Consistent methodologies adopted to allow

meaningful comparisons of ESG data over time over the
years.
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Stakeholder Engagement

The Group values its stakeholders and their views related
to its business and ESG issues. By communicating with the
stakeholders, the Group is able to understand their concerns
and identify crucial environmental and social issues. We
communicate with our key stakeholders through different

channels.

In formulating operational strategies and ESG measures, we
take into account stakeholders’ expectation and strive to
improve our performance through mutual cooperation. The
Group’s major stakeholders’ communication channels and

BHESR

their corresponding expectations are as follows:

AEBEREFNERREFEHERBE AR
R -HEREAREENER - BBERFN
ERE AEETTHREBONFBEILRE
MEZREMMEEE -HMEBTRAR
BETBRNDELETER

EHEEERMARRE HEMERKE
iR RMEEERNENRE - WiEBN
EEESNIRASEEN AEHEETE
FONENBBREMESNHENT -

Stakeholders Communication channels Expectations
EHE BERE HE
Investors and e Annual general meeting and other e  Complying with relevant laws and
shareholders shareholder meetings regulations
REEMEKRR e BRBEARGNHMBRREGH o ETHBEREER
e  Financial reports e Disclosing latest information of the
o HB®mE corporate in due course
e Announcements and circulars s HRBEEARZNEM
o RENRMAK e  Financial results
e  Corporate website o HIHEAE
o AAEAUh e Corporate sustainability
o DNEAFEBR
Customers e  Customer satisfaction surveys and e  Product and service responsibility
EgS feedback forms e EmRRBEMR
s P RMEERAERRER e Customer information and privacy
e  Customer service manager protection
o KR s EFEFERRNLEBRE
e  Direct communication e  Food safety
s HEER e Bm%d
Suppliers e  Supplier management meetings e  Fair competition
HrER and events e RNEHF
o fHEmEREERENIEE e Business ethics and reputation
e Supplier audit management system o FEHEEENEE

HEBSEHABTEHE
Site visits
T2

Li Bao Ge Group Limited Annual Report 2022
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Stakeholders Communication channels Expectations

BHE BRERE e

Employees e Employee opinion surveys e  Health and safety
(=] e EEERAL e REHZE

Government and
regulatory bodies

U & BEE R

Community,
NGOs and media
IR - FEBUT AL &
e

We aim to collaborate with our stakeholders to improve our
ESG performance and create greater value for the wider
community on a continuous basis.

Channels for employees’ feedback
(forms, suggestion box, etc.)
EERERE

(BR%x BRME%)

Notice boards

E IR

Performance reports
B E

Written response to public
consultation
EHEBLARBH

Site visits

B8

Community investment programs
HERETE

ESG reports

RE - e kERRE

20 FEMERERAT —To-EEERE

e Equal opportunities

. FEKE

e Remuneration and benefits
o FBMKAEA

e  Career development

o RIX#R

e  Tax payment as required by law

o RIEMM

e  Business ethics

s HERBEE

e Complying with relevant laws and
regulations

o ETHBIERER

e  Giving back to society

e [HfEH®

e  Environmental protection
e IRIFRE

e  Compliant operations

e ARKE

BMNERREASNHESE RERME
RIE - HERERTHEHNKRE  XRHERT
B BlEE AEE -
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Materiality Assessment

The Group reviews its operations, identifies relevant ESG
issues, and assesses the importance of those relevant
matters to our business and stakeholders regularly. The
Group’s management, ESG Taskforce and staff in major
functions are involved in the preparation of the ESG Report.
We have compiled a survey in accordance with the identified
material ESG issues to collect information from relevant
departments, business units and stakeholders of the Group.
Material topics that post relatively great impacts on the
Company and its stakeholders were identified. The following
matrix is a summary of the Group’s material ESG topics.

Materiality Matrix
EEMIERE

" Anti-corruption R &35

o °
% Working Hours and Rest T B ) 2 8

& Recruitment Promotion and Dismissal 858 - &7 &% fiR{E

=

B . . \.
® Diversity and Equal Opportunities

R St R FEHE

=&

% Remuneration and Benefits 7t & 4& 7 \.

2 Supply Chain Management f fig §# & fi\.

“ Exhaust Gas o

;g Sristers Energy Management §EJRE

B FERBE o Water Management F7/K &2 ;

EEMFME

AEBEREESEZKEE  ARBEMAR
B oHEMEAEE  UHEXFHEBEER
HEMEBEBNENEELE -AKEE
BE RE HErEREEJENRTIER
RERFNETH2EBRRARS - RFAR
BERINEARE HEREARAFTER
HEMMES  MAKENHEBERM  XBE
RFHEREEN - HMAZBRIHEAR
AREFNEELERATENEARR
THEEHAAEENERRRE HERK

¢
%/Sn#ﬁzhﬁ °

Customer Service

BEERHE

Food Quality and Safety
RGEREES .

Prevention of Child and Forced Labour

P BT R#HIST

Health and Safety Management
@%EK%AE

Advemsmg and Labeling & & R1Z%#

.\Corporate Social Responsibility 1b %+ & & {f
°

Development and Training 2% & K 1% 3l
Indoor Air Quality Management = A%=E/& & 12

.\ Waste Management &4 & 3%

Greenhouse Gas
Emissions
B = RS

.\ Use of Packaging Materials 82247 kHE F

Sewage Discharge 55 /K JE ik

Level of Influence on Stakeholders’ Assessments and Decisions

Level of significance of Economic, Environmental and Social Impacts

HEE BERMEFENEEMEE

During the Reporting Period, the Group has established
appropriate and effective management policies and internal
control systems for ESG issues, and disclosed contents in the
ESG Report are in compliance with the requirements of the
ESG Reporting Guide.

Contact Us

We welcome stakeholders to provide their opinions and
suggestions. You can provide valuable advices in respect
of the ESG Report or our performances in sustainable
development by email at enquiry@starofcanton.com.hk.

RBEHE  AREERRE L@ MER

EEHAETEE AERNEERR AL
25 AAREFAEBEORABTNERE

HERERBREREIINER-

AR IR
EHBEEOhEREERA hEE - #
THRKHAABRERRMETFEE
RTEBONRARHEERR  BLAS

enquiry@starofcanton.com.hk
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A. Environmental

28

A1. Emissions

The Group is committed to supporting
environmental sustainability by introducing
environmentally friendly business practices
and educating our employees to enhance their
awareness on environmental protection. We strive
to minimise the potential impacts of our business on
the environment and society in which we operate so
to fulfil our commitment on social responsibility.

We have adopted and implemented relevant
environmental policies. These policies are
responded to emission mitigation principle and
waste management principles of “Reduce, Reuse,
Recycle and Replace”, with the objectives of
minimising the adverse environmental impacts,
and ensuring the emissions or wastes being
generated are managed in an environmentally
responsible manner. We implement measures that
promote energy conservation, waste reduction
and any other green initiatives across the life cycle
of our services. Environmental related education
was delivered to our employees to raise their
awareness on environmental protection and ensure
compliance with the relevant environmental laws
and regulations.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has not
identified any non-compliance of environmental laws
and regulations in relation to air and greenhouse
gas (“GHG”) emissions, water and land discharge,
and the generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes that have a significant impact to
the Group. Such environmental laws and regulations
include but are not limited to the Hong Kong Air
Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 311), the Hong
Kong Waste Disposal Ordinance (Cap. 354), the
Environmental Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Water Pollution Prevention
and Control Law of the People’s Republic of China,
and the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution.

NERNEBMERAT S —FEERE

A. BB

Al. BERY

AEBBONBEBBITRERYS
WEXEBRHBEETRSRR
ERXFREAFERR - M
BHRERXGHEBEMERETER
HEMBERE KMETEHT
S B IR

TAME AL E EAEE O RRK
R ZFHERM A RBER A A K
DR B/ i BRI HEY
BERA - BERARE KD
HRENIMNEE  BRIALIR
BRAEEMTARKELED -
P APIEREUAE AR 7% 48 A 19 (2 #E R RE
OB MEMEMGERES
FHEER HPEHBETETR
RHEBEARSRERE & - LHR
BT RBEAREARER

RBREHRE AEEWERRT
MEREEETIKEETRE (B
ERE ) B MK R B -
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Exhaust Gas Emissions

The Group strictly controls the emissions of
oil fumes in accordance with the legislation
requirements of Hong Kong and the PRC. To
control the emissions of oil fumes and other exhaust
gas, all restaurants of the Group have installed
exhaust emission systems and air pollution control
equipment, including mechanical ventilation systems
and oil fume exhaust filters. In addition, the Group
has formulated policies and implemented various
emission reduction measures to reduce emissions
from sources includes operating vehicles that meet
the emission standards of the government and
conducting regular vehicle maintenance to maintain
engine function and provide better fuel economy.

The major source of exhaust gas generated by the
Group’s business operations were fuel consumed
by vehicles for transportation and towngas for
cooking. During the Reporting Period, both of
the fuel consumed by vehicles and towngas
usage are decreased. The fuel consumption by
vehicles decreased for the reason of compulsory
temporary lockdowns in the PRC. The Group also
instructed staff using public transport in priority
for business commuting purposes. Less towngas
usage attributed from closure of several Hong Kong
restaurants and compulsory temporary lockdowns
in the PRC.

The Group’s exhaust gas emissions performances
were as follows:

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
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JEE R K

REBEREBEEERDPENEER
TE R 15 B B Y HE AR o A 1R
HEREMEROYEN  AEE
M EEEY R KEREMAR
RZERISRIEH RE  BREEW
BE RGN R PR IERER s
AR BB HIE BRI B 5 R
PR R AR DR BHE I - B
AN EBFHENRENERHT A
NEHIET - REWEE AR
Fr ol BIhRe I e B R -

AEEREEHELEERNER
KREEZEREWERMNE LT
FRER o R B - @R
MRERKREREDEMRD -
F PO H B 5 | B BF 5T 42 - B ER R
HBREBMTE - KAEEITE
REIBEGCRAAAXBIAE
TEKEY KREREMD T
BHRERBEEEEE kTR
i e By PR P B ©

AEEEREBAERNT

Types of exhaust gas Unit Emissions
¥R Bl B BHE
2022 2021

—E-= —E-—%F
Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) kg 707.18 1,905.33
A A% (NOx) N
Sulphur Oxides (SOx) kg 3.23 8.90
B AL (SOX) N
Particulate Matter (PM) kg 10.04 15.36
FROF TIORL (PM) Ny
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GHG Emissions

The major sources of the Group’s GHG emissions
are direct emissions from towngas cooking,
diesel and petrol consumed by vehicles (Scope
1), and indirect emissions from towngas cooking
and purchased electricity (Scope 2). The Group
actively adopts electricity conservation, emission
reduction and energy saving measures to reduce
GHG emissions, such measures include but are not
limited to:

e Actively adopt vehicular emission reduction
measures. Relevant measures are described in
the section headed “Exhaust Gas Emissions” in
this aspect; and

e Actively adopt measures for environmental
protection, energy conservation, and
watersaving. Relevant measures are described
in the section headed “Energy Management” in
aspect A2.

The Group’s total GHG emissions has significantly
decreased during the Reporting Period mainly due
to closure of several Hong Kong restaurants and
compulsory temporary lockdowns in the PRC.
The above events reduced significant usage of
vehicles, electricity and towngas. The Group’s GHG
emissions performance were as follows:

i 2= B8 BE K
AEBRERBH RN ERR
AR RTAE  ERIEFER SR R
FURPTE S BB (BE 1) LA
EERZERINEENELENME
B (g8E2) - NEBEE R
BNE ~ R BE M B BE 1R B DA R R
ERBYHN HBEREERKREL
RRS

o TE M5 PR BN E &R B 1E i o AH
[8 45 bt £ AN B 0 [ % SR, Bk
— s &

o TEMIRBURR - £igE - HiKFE
Hte o ARRATE M AE B E A2 [ BETR
B | —EiRAt

AEBZEERBHBEERN R
SHEABRY  DEZRREH
P 2R 8 & 78 B 12 N o B 58 ) R B
HEMH - EEHRERDE
W BN RERER - AEER
BERBHEMAERAT

Indicator? Unit Emissions
ER2 B BEHE
2022 2021

—E-= S
Direct GHG emissions (Scope 1) tCO,e 8,011.18 23,170.59
HEAEREBHR(FEE) W =&l E £
Indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2) tCO,e 3,957.41 7,980.38
AEREREBHER(BE2) W — SR E 8
Total GHG emissions (Scope 1 and 2) tCO.e 11,968.59 31,150.97
BEREHENRE (BE1KX2) Wi — & LR E £
Total GHG emissions intensity tCO,e/thousand revenue 0.09 0.11

BEREHBAETE WE—SE(CREE

TEHBA

NERNEBMERAT S —FEERE



Notes:

(1) GHG emissions data presented above were reference to “How
to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix II: Reporting Guidance
on Environmental KPIs” issued by the HKEX.

2) During the Reporting Period, the Group’s total revenue was
approximately HK$135.6 million (2021:HK$274.6 million). The
data is also be used for calculating other intensity data.

The size of business operation changed significantly
during the Reporting Period, the Group will monitor
and review the operation activities and management
approaches regularly. The Group continues to
strengthen the current measures and targets that
the GHG emissions intensity of the coming reporting
period will be lower than that of 2022.

Sewage Discharge

During daily operation, the Group generates
domestic sewage mainly in the course of food
preparation and cleaning. The sewage generated will
first be purified in the subsurface sewage treatment
system, then discharged to the urban sewage pipe
network. The Group has rigorously monitored the
usage and disposal of the sewage, and comply
with relevant laws and regulations to meet local
government sewage discharge standards. Since
the Group’s sewage are discharged through the
municipal sewage pipe network to the regional
water purification plant, our sewage discharged is
considered as the water consumed. Hence, the
performance of sewage discharged will be disclosed
in the section headed “Water Management” in
aspect A2.

Wastes Management

No hazardous waste is generated from the Group’s
routine operations in both Hong Kong and the
PRC. Non-hazardous wastes generated mainly
come from food wastes and other domestic
wastes such as wastepaper. The Group adheres
to the waste management principles and strives to
properly manage and dispose all wastes produced
in our business activities. Our waste management
practices comply with related environmental
protection laws and regulations.
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Hazardous Wastes

Although the Group did not generate hazardous
wastes, the Group has established guidelines
in governing the management and disposal of
hazardous wastes. In case there are any hazardous
wastes produced, the Group is required to engage
a qualified chemical wastes collector to handle such
wastes, and complied with relevant environmental
rules and regulations. The reduction target of
hazardous wastes was not applicable to the Group.

Non-hazardous Wastes
Food Wastes

Food wastes is considered as a major non-
hazardous waste type generated during the course
of our business operation as being a corporation
that is engaged in providing and delivering catering
and dining services. The Group has developed
stringent policies and procedures in managing food
wastes, and has appointed qualified professional
third parties in collecting and handling the food
waste generated. With regards to the used cooking
oil, the Group has appointed a waste oil company
to collect and recycle the waste oil generated during
the cooking process into biodiesel. The biodiesel
burns cleaner than gasoline, resulting in fewer
greenhouse gas emissions.

The Group has also placed a number of designated
garbage bins in different areas in kitchens for staff
to centralise food wastes. The qualified wastes
collector will collect these garbage bins on a daily
basis to ensure the environmental hygiene of
kitchens and restaurants. Apart from appointing
qualified third parties in handling food wastes, the
Group has also implemented various measures in
minimising food waste, such as making better use
of food ingredients. During the Reporting Period, all
food wastes generated by the Group were collected
and handled by qualified third party wastes
collector.

NERNEBMERAT S —FEERE
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Other Wastes

Other wastes generated by the Group are mainly
office papers and dim sum papers. The Group
takes action to reduce waste by using less material
to minimise waste generation and preserve natural
resources. More specifically, the Group has adopted
various initiatives to minimise the generation of such
wastes which include but are not limited to:

Promote double-sided printing to utilise the use
of paper efficiently;

e Use recycled paper for printing and copying;

e Utilise electronic communication where
applicable; and

e Distribute office memos to remind staff to only
print necessary materials to avoid wastage.

Employees’ waste reduction awareness has been
raised by above waste reduction initiatives. The
Group target reduction in paper waste by studying
to adopt electronic ordering system to replace filling
in the dim sum paper.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
RIE - tERERHE @)

H bz
AEEEANEMEDEZ R
NAEKERIELE REED HEE
SR EEY  HEAFERRD
MRUABRERLEMEEWIRE
BRER - BAREME A5EBEEXK
4R 2% TR 5 i LA 7 Eﬁ&f%mﬁ
o BEETRR

e REBEMITH  AIESHER
ER=R:

o ERBAEMEITITEHREL:

« EEEBRTEAETEM:
R

e NEMABEE REET
EITENBEZEIMEL - ARIRE ©

FaUs L EYERE RS R B R
LEYHEH AEEEEEB
MEKMETFHERBRABERE
BOOARL D BEAR o

Non-hazardous wastes type Unit Disposal
mEREYER By EEES
2022 2021

—E=-= —E-—4F
Office paper tonnes 0.61 1.60
HERN A 7
Dim sum paper tonnes 2.82 1.86
B AR 7
Total non-hazardous wastes tonnes 3.43 3.46
BEEMEE %
Total non-hazardous wastes intensity tonnes/million revenue 0.03 0.01
BEBRMEERE W, B & Tl A
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A2. Use of Resources

The Group understands that efficient use of
resources is one of the critical methods to reduce
carbon footprint. We take initiatives to introduce
resource efficiency and eco-friendly measures to
the Group’s operations. The Group has established
relevant policies and procedures in governing
the use of energy, water and packaging material
with reference to the objective of achieving higher
efficiency and reducing the unnecessary use of
materials.

Energy Management

The energy consumption of the Group was mainly
contributed by electricity consumption for operation,
gasoline consumption for vehicles, and towngas
for cooking. The Group advocates the principle
of efficient use of energy. Employees are required
to adopt the related measures and initiatives, and
assume responsibility for the Group’s overall energy
efficiency. By establishing an energy management
system, we develop and regularly review our energy
objectives and targets to continuously enhance
the Group’s energy performance. Abnormal
consumption of energy will be investigated to find
out the root causes, and corresponding preventive
measures will be taken where deemed necessary.

The Group has introduced various measures and
initiatives to achieve the goal of electricity saving and
efficient consumption. For example, the employees
are expressly required to turn off all unnecessary
electronic appliances and devices when they
are not in use to avoid wastage of electricity.
Restaurant and office facilities are conducted
regular maintenance to ensure optimal efficiency.
The Group has priority in using LED lightings instead
of traditional lamps and utilise natural ventilation
where possible to minimise the use of electricity in
lightings.
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The Group’s total energy consumption (includes AEBEMBEERERE(BREER -
towngas, electricity and petrol usage) has BEORARERZ) RREHMK
significantly decreased during the Reporting Period BEL THERBARABEEE AR
due to closure of several Hong Kong restaurants 18 N2 Ao [ o Il B F Y PR PR o b A1 -
and compulsory temporary lockdowns in the PRC. AEBRREREELFEAHES
In addition, the Group has priority in using unleaded ARBEGRYE BB
petrol during the Reporting Period and did not BLEREFE - AEENERER
consume diesel which also lead to decrease in 15 T — {3k & B 09 4B B R 8 FE
energy consumption. The Group targets to maintain REAREER - ZFaPKF o

lower total energy consumption intensity in the
coming reporting period when compared to 2022.

Energy type Unit Consumption
BE IR 2 Bl B HIEER
2022 2021
—Eg=-= AEN
Total energy consumption MWh 45,403.95 125,638.08
RS JK BB
Total energy consumption intensity MWh/thousand revenue 0.33 0.46
REERERE KRR, FlA
MWh/m? (rote) 3.85 8.61

JKTLBE /T 77 3% 00D
Direct energy consumption

B
Diesel MWh 0.00 0.66
A K FLES
Unleaded petrol MWh 155.52 130.00
i )T JK FL B
Indirect energy consumption
7 BEFE
Purchased electricity MWh 3,630.58 4,668.22
BE=E JK FLBS
Towngas MWh 41,617.85 120,839.20
HR, JK LB
Note: B 5
As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s total floor area was NZEZZF+ZA=+—H AEENE
approximately 11,788.25 m? (2021: 14,584.31 m?). The data will also EEABN11,78825F K (Z T = —F:
be used for calculating other intensity data. 14,584.31F 5 K) - BB E AR EEMm
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Water Management

Water consumption is mainly from tap water used
in restaurants for cleaning and sanitization purpose.
While providing high-quality catering service, we
still encourage our employees and customers to
develop the habit of conscious water use in order to
minimise water consumption.

The Group has been strengthening its water-
saving promotion in various ways, such as posting
water-saving slogans near to water outlets in
kitchens, washrooms and sink areas, and guiding
employees to use water reasonably. Water pipes
and water taps are also checked regularly to
prevent water leakage. If abnormal conditions are
detected, employees are required to report to the
departmental managers and related department for
repairment.

The Group’s water consumption performances were
as follows:

FKE 12
FERKEEZEREBEBTEARBESE
& B RK - RIZHEEZE R
BREE  RAMADEBEERR
FPEKESHOBKOEE  LUEA
BER A AKE ©

REE—FHARET A A& K
ERNE  HINERRE  KTFER
K R 35 /Y 7K A 3 o Bh ER K
T ARIEERESERK - A
SEIERREKE RKERE
PrlbiRK - HBEREERBR - B8
7R [F) BB P A 72 Ko 48 B &R P 5 5 A
EITHE

REB 2 FEKERWT -

Indicator Unit Consumption
BEE B HIEER
2022 2021

== —E-—4F
Water m? 87,008 150,099.00
FA7K SJTOK
Water consumption intensity m?/thousand revenue 0.64 0.55
RKEE SR F A
Water consumption intensity m3/m? 7.38 10.29
RAKEE SRR

Due to the closure of several Hong Kong restaurants
and compulsory temporary lockdowns in the PRC,
the water consumption was significantly decreased
during the Reporting Period. We do not have any
issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose. As
the water consumption is essential for cleaning and
sanitization purpose and the size of our operation
changed a lot in the Reporting Period, we would
consider a conservative target to maintain lower
water consumption intensity in the coming year
when compared to year 2022.

NERNEBMERAT S —FEERE

MR EAFSEEEEE Rk ER
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Use of Packaging Materials

The packaging materials used by the Group are
mainly plastic containers and bags for take-away
orders. We have utilised every type of packaging
material by utilising the space of each in order to
avoid excessive packaging. During the Reporting
Period, the Group has consumed approximately
0.83 tonnes (2021: 1.02 tonnes) plastic packaging
materials, which approximates to 0.006kg (2021:
0.004kg) per thousand revenue. Although several
Hong Kong restaurants closed in year 2022, the
amount of plastic packaging materials per thousand
revenue was still increased. It was attributed from
more demand in take-away containers and bags
under social distancing measures imposed by the
Government of Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region. During that period of time, only limited dine-
in services was provided.

The Environment and Natural Resources
In addition to complying with relevant environmental
laws and regulations for protecting the natural
environment, we have integrated the concepts
of environmental protection and natural resource
conservation into our internal management and
daily operations in order to achieve environmental
sustainability. In providing catering service, our
restaurants create oil and grease in wastewater, we
engaged recognised service provider to perform
regular vacuum cleaning and handled according to
corresponding regulations.

A3.

BEEMEHE A
AEBFERANBEMBEIEAR
RONBTENBRERRRT -
LPEaMNAEEeEMHNE
BRFEAZBEMR At E6E
B  RNREHE - REBHERE
#90.83W8 (— T = — 4 : 1.02H8)
BRAEEME ST TRAL
0.006 AT (ZE=—4 : 0.0042
) BER_ZSE-__FHHHEXR
EABE HEETTRAHNSBR
BEMBEEMERTEMN - Ty
HREBERTHERNE KN
RECREREHREBINERE
ERBERNT I R ZEME
ERHEERERRE -

BRRERRAAEIR

B 8 5T M B IR R OA R BOR R AER
EEARBEIN BATKERRR
EEFRERRENEHAN
SEAMEERBREELS A
ERBRMNRREAFEER -
REEHERRHE - BEREK
RELME RMBFERADH
AR 75 (1 B R AR R AR FE DR AR E B
TTEZEBRNEIE -
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A4.

Being a high-quality catering service provider, the
Group heavily emphasises on indoor air quality.
The Group has strict control over air quality
management. Smoking is prohibited in all areas
within restaurants. Any person who is found
to have violated such rule will be subjected to
disciplinary action, up to and including termination
of employment. Besides, the Group has installed
exhaust emission systems and air pollution control
equipment, including mechanical ventilation systems
and oil fume exhaust filters in all restaurants. This
helps to minimise the oil fume emissions and odour
nuisance arising from our restaurant operations.
Apart from these measures, the Group will also
conduct regular cleaning of the air conditioning
systems to ensure a high level of indoor air quality
is provided for both employees and customers.
The Group has maintained sufficient numbers of air
purifiers in restaurant and office area even following
a lull in the pandemic.

Climate change

Climate change and global warming are the major
environmental concerns in recent decades. Although
the climate change did not impose significant
impact towards the Group’s operation, we still
strives to put forward environmental conservation
and raise employees’ environmental awareness.

NERNEBMERAT S —FEERE
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Risk from extreme weather caused by climate
change may cause pose risk to the Group’s
stakeholders such as the Group’s employees,
suppliers and customers. With regards to acute
physical risks such as storms, floods, heatwaves, it
may cause disruption to the supply chain network
and increase the risks for staff during the journey
to work. To address the risk, we maintain a large
supplier base to ensure that there was alternative
choice for goods in the event of our suppliers being
affected by extreme weather conditions. Also, the
Group has established a work arrangement policy
to provide clear guidelines for staff under extreme
weather condition. The Group continue to reduce
GHG emissions and energy consumption from our
operations through various environmental protection
measures as mentioned above.

For transition risks such as change in laws and
regulations and change in customers preference,
as the Group is not producing significant amount
of GHG emission and maintaining the minimum
level of energy consumption, we believe that the
risk is relatively low. ESG Taskforce would continue
to identify the risks and opportunities faced by
the Group regarding climate change, monitor the
updates in latest environmental-related laws and
regulations and regularly report to the Board to
ensure the Group meet the regulatory requirement
and reduce the impacts towards the business
operation.
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B1. Employment

We regard our employees as the valuable asset of
the Group and dedicate to provide them with equal
and fair treatment. We believe that success in hiring,
training and retaining talents is critical in providing
reliable and quality services.

We have established relevant employment policies
to fulfil our vision on people-oriented management
strategy and realising the full potential of employees.
Relevant employment policies are formally
documented as the Employee Handbook, covering
aspects including recruitment, promotion and
dismissal, remuneration and benefits, working hours
and rest periods, diversity and equal opportunities,
etc. The Group will review these policies and the
employment practices periodically to ensure the
continuous improvements of our employment
standards.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did
not aware of any non-compliance with laws
and regulations relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination and other benefits and welfare,
including but not limited to the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance (Cap.57), the Hong Kong
Minimum Wage Ordinance (Cap. 608), the Labour
Law of the People’s Republic of China, and the
Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of
China that would have a significant impact on the
Group.
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Recruitment, Promotion and Dismissal

We adopt a robust, transparent and fair recruitment
processes based on merit selection against the
job criteria, and recruit individuals based on their
suitability for the position and their potential to fulfil
the Group’s current and future needs. To ensure
fairness and equality, we never evaluate candidates
by gender, age, race, family status, religion or
disability status. The Group attracts talents through
open recruitment, and candidates are subjected to
assessments (both written and technical depending
on position’s requirement) prior to employment.
Employment decision will be made based on results
of the assessment, work experience and overall
ability of the candidate.

The Group specifies the basis and process for
employees’ transfer and promotion. Regular
performance reviews are carried out to assess
employees’ ability. We offer transfer and internal
promotion opportunities for employees who have
outstanding work performance so to optimise
the allocation of human resources within the
Group. Transfer of job positions can either be
recommended by department supervisors or
through self-application; while promotions are
required to be recommended by department heads.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has 408
(2021: 537) full time employees in the reporting
scope with 72% of male employee and 28% of
female employee (2021: 72% of male employee and
28% of female employee). The breakdowns of our
workforce by age group and geographical regions
are as follows:
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By age group By geographic region
RERARE D R EEEE S
2022 2021 2022 2021

—E-C o T —E--F —E-—%F
Under 30 years old 40% 40% Hong Kong 6% 16%
0mAT BB
31-50 years old 35% 34% The PRC 94% 84%
31-505% o
Over 50 years old 25% 26%
5055 A £
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The Group has formulated standardised procedures
for dismissal. Dismissal process will only be
proceeded with a reasonable basis, and the
Group forbids unreasonable dismissal under any
circumstances. The Group will ensure sufficient
communication has been conducted on the
problems prior to official dismissal. Employees
are required to return all company property to the
Human Resource Department upon leaving the
Company.

During the Reporting Period, the turnover rate of
total employees is 97% (2021:73%). The relatively
high in turnover rate during the Reporting Period
attributed from the closure of several Hong Kong
restaurants. The Group recognises its social
responsibility, when the Central Restaurant opened
in the Reporting Period, we have priority in hiring
the staff who worked in our closed restaurants
previously.

The turnover rate by gender, age group and
geographical regions are as follows:

AEBECHERENRERT
RERETFESRBESEEEET
AREBEZELERISENEE-
AEEBHERELABENLE
MEEETEDBER - EBERA
RABERE AR ERRME
BEANNEIRES -

R 8E BEBHEZRAX
BIYT% (ZFE = —4F :73%) o
LB RAEREEERSIHER
BRAREBNE T HEEMS - K
SEARNETEEL BN
BREERFEHEAMAER &
MELEBEZAERERMEAEL
BEETIEMET -

BB - 4 B A B R 3R I L
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By age group By geographic region
RERARES RiEEEE S
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-= —E-—%F —E--F ZE-—F
Male 101% 76% Hong Kong 156% 67%
it BB
Female 87% 65% The PRC 89% 74%
egid R
By age group 2022 2021
RERARE S —E-C-E —T-—F
Under 30 years old 100% 100%
30mHAT
31-50 years old 55% 55%
31-503%
Over 50 years old 64% 34%
505k 0A -
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Remuneration and Benefits

The Group’s basis for remuneration is job-related
skills, qualifications, work performances, and
market conditions. Remuneration package includes
holidays and different leave types such as annual
leave, maternity leave, and sick leave. Due to the
Group’s business nature, the Group runs business
as usual on public holidays. Employees who are
working on public holidays are therefore granted
with compensatory leave. Besides, free meals and
staff quarter are provided for employees in the PRC.
Discretionary bonus may also be awarded based on
individual work performance.

In addition, the Group participates in the pension
scheme registered under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance of Hong Kong (the
“MPF Ordinance”) for the employees in Hong
Kong. It is funded by contributions from employer
and employees pursuant to the provisions of the
MPF Ordinance. The Group also pays “five social
insurance and one housing fund” for its employees
in the PRC, namely, endowment insurance, medical
insurance, unemployment insurance, employment
injury insurance, maternity insurance and housing
provident fund, to ensure employees are covered
by social insurance. Moreover, employees of the
Group in the PRC are members of respective state-
managed defined contribution retirement benefits
schemes operated by the local governments. The
employers and employees are obliged to make
contributions at a certain percentage of the payroll
under rules of the schemes.
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B2.

Diversity and Equal Opportunities

The Group is committed to creating and maintaining
an inclusive and collaborative workplace culture. We
are dedicated to providing equal opportunities in all
aspects of employment, and maintaining workplace
that are free from discrimination, physical or verbal
harassment against any individual on the basis of
race, religion, colour, gender, physical or mental
disability, age, place of origin, marital status and
sexual orientation. With the aim of ensuring fair and
equal protection for all employees, we have zero
tolerance on sexual harassment or abuse in the
workplace in any form.

Health and Safety

Employees’ health and safety are the most
concerned area for the Group. We strive to eliminate
potential health and safety hazards at workplace.
We have implemented guidelines, policies and
standard operating procedures to ensure the health
and safety of working environment, as well as
providing employees a safe working environment.
We follow the occupational health and safety
guidelines recommended by the Hong Kong’s
Occupational Safety and Health Council and the
Drug Administration of Shenzhen Municipality.

Each of the Group’s restaurants in Hong Kong
satisfies the requirements of the Hong Kong Public
Health and Municipal Services Ordinance (Cap.132)
in respect of means of ventilation, sanitary fitments,
facilities for cleansing equipment and utensils,
means of exit and entry, and fire safety. To maintain
a safe working environment and ensure employees’
health and safety, the Group has formulated and
implemented the Kitchen Safety Manual. The
Kitchen Safety Manual sets out clear guidance on
different occupational safety matters. Instructions
on the use of kitchen equipment are also provided
in the manual. In addition, the Group provides
employees with appropriate safety equipment to
protect their bodies from injuries at work.

NERNEBMERAT S —FEERE

ZHLBERL PSS
AEBHIRTERERBEBERH
EO THEBZHA XL - ZfIRE
BESTHEHKTFEHRE RE
REETEZMTERER =
B 1th - SRskieERk - F
B HH - EREAOR KRR
MEX R - REHFHERL B
RBIEREBRERFRTFE
R R TSR ER
FEANUERBEIEEFTRR -

RERAZE
BENREREZE2EAEERA
I E - RABAIRNERT
EENBEERFERZZ2RE -],
MEERES  BRRREEEE
R AR TERIBMRERZ
EURSREREREZE2MITER
B-HRMETEERERERE
BRFRYMEMEEEERER
MBREREL 215

AREBURBENGHERZER
REE  FERE  BERENE
BEERENARHARENBEH R
2ETEBTAREB(AHBFER
AR (F1328) MR TE - B
MEZENTERRESHERET
mEFERZE2 AEEHNELE
ECEEZ2FM) (BEZE2F
i) 5 & BB R L = F B 6l E A g
B 158 - F M In ) E A BB E R
BIERGFE - 1IN AEERER
REEENTRE ARERE
BRRIHEGE -



There were no reported cases of work-related
fatalities for the past three years, including
the Reporting Period. There are 19 (2021:21)
employees who are injured during work which
caused 88 (2021:141) work days lost during the
Reporting Period. Corresponding work safety
training has been delivered to employees after the
accidents happened to remind employees of good
safety practices.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was
not aware any non-compliance with laws and
regulations relating to providing a safe working
environmental and protecting employees from
occupational hazards, including but not limited to
the Hong Kong Occupational Safety and Health
Ordinance (Cap.509), the Hong Kong Employees’
Compensation Ordinance (Cap.282), Work Safety
Law of the People’s Republic of China, Fire
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China
that would have a significant impact on the Group.

Fire Safety

The Group strictly follows the fire safety related
laws and regulations. Fire equipment such as
fire extinguishers and fire blankets are placed in
accordance with the law requirement. Fire safety
trainings are also arranged for employees across
all departments on a regular basis to raise the
awareness of the threat posed by fire to people,
property and our business community. Regular
fire and emergency drills will also be arranged
by the property management office and regional
governmental department for employees to ensure
employees are aware of the emergency procedures
and routes. In addition, the Group conducts regular
safety inspections to minimise the safety risks of
employees and ensure safety standards are met.
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B3. Development and Training

Valuable contribution of our talents is crucial to
the continued success of the Group. The Group
regards our employees as the most important asset
and resource and recognises the importance of
providing employees with thorough and practical
training to continuously enhance their technical
knowledge, and keeping abreast of the latest
developments.

Development and Training

The Group offers a variety of training programmes
to employees based on their job duties. All new
employees have to attend induction training to learn
about the company structure, employee duties and
safety requirements. For front-line employees, they
are also trained with topic of customer services in
order to attract and retain customers. The Group
regularly arrange vocational trainings on food
ingredients, food preparation and preservation,
flow of food production, hygiene conditions of the
kitchen and quality control in different aspects of the
restaurant operation to raise employees’ awareness
in providing high quality catering service.

The Group has always encouraged our directors
to attend relevant training courses in receiving
the latest news and knowledge regarding the
Listing Rules, corporate governance and other
applicable statutory and regulatory regimes. During
the Reporting Period, 73% (2021:44%) of total
employees took part in training with following
breakdown by gender and employment categories:
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RERIE D RERERNES
2022 2021 2022 2021
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Male 68% 60% Senior level personnel 12% 28%
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Female 32% 40% Middle level personnel 22% 35%
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Entry level personnel 66% 37%
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The average training hours per employee was 2.08
(2021:5.26) hours with following breakdown by

gender and employment categories:

Average training hours by gender:

BMBED 2 PRI

BHREEZFHIINESA2.08
N (T = —F  526/\6F) >
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Average training hours by employment categories:

RERBERNED 2 FHIZIEE

2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-C —E-—%F —E_-C —E-—F
Male 212 4.69 Senior level personnel 1.34 11.11
Co] i mMRAE
Female 1.96 6.65 Middle level personnel 0.90 .5
prg 3 RRAE
Entry level personnel 2.60 3.17
NBRAE

During the Reporting Period, the frequency and
duration of training are both decreased mainly due
to the social distancing measures imposed by the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and the
closure of several Hong Kong restaurants within the
Group.

Labour Standards

Prevention of Child and Forced Labour

The Group strictly complies with national and local
employment laws and regulations, and prohibits the
employment of child and forced labour in both the
PRC and Hong Kong operations.

The Group has stipulated employment policies that
only employees over the age of 18 will be recruited
and we require all new employees to provide true
and accurate personal information when they
join the Group. Upon employment, recruiters will
stringently review employees’ personal information
including ID card, household registration and other
information. The Group has a well-established
recruitment process to check the background of
candidates and a formal reporting procedure to
deal with any exceptions. We also conduct regular
reviews and inspections to prevent any child labour
or forced labour in its operation. The Group’s
employment relationship with the concerned
employee will be immediately terminated in case
there is any irregularities noted in ages or identities.
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The Group has formulated policies in determining
the working hours and rest periods for employees
in accordance to local employment laws. Work
schedules are arranged by department heads,
and employees can request the change in work
schedules by applying to department heads.
Furthermore, employees of the Group only work
overtime if necessary and on a voluntary basis.
We also prohibit any punishments, management
methods and behaviours involving verbal abuse,
physical punishment, physical abuse, oppression,
sexual harassment, etc. against our employees
for any reason. In case any child or forced labour
noted, the Group would immediately prohibit the
arrangement and perform investigation for the cause
and rectify the job arrangement.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with child and
forced labour related laws and regulations, including
but not limited to the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance (Cap.57), the Labour Law of the People’s
Republic of China, and the Regulations on the
Prohibition of Using Child Labour in the People’s
Republic of China that would have a significant
impact on the Group.

Supply Chain Management

Sourcing capability plays an important role in the
management of a restaurant operation, and an
effective supplier selection procedure is considered
as an essential element for our business operation.
The Group sets up a supplier management system
to closely evaluate and monitor suppliers regularly,
and puts forward requirements for suppliers on
environmental and social risk control.
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The Group has established a rigorous supplier
selection system based on a set of selection
criteria including but not limited to price, quality
of ingredients, reputation, service quality, past
performance, and delivery efficiency. Background
search will also be performed to ensure that the
Group has proper understanding on the supplier
selected. The Group will also consider suppliers’
environmental and social risks during the supplier
selection process. Priority will be given to supplier
which holds certificates or accreditations related
to environmental or social issues as part of our
selection criteria.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has 211
(2021: 289) suppliers in total with 67% (2021: 49%)
of suppliers from Hong Kong and 33% (2021: 51%)
suppliers from PRC. Hong Kong and PRC suppliers
are served to corresponding operation area to save
transportation cost and reduce carbon footprint by
limiting products that require long shipping time.

The Group has formulated respective measures to
ensure suppliers could engage in fair competition
during the procurement process. Employees or
personnel having any interest relationship with
suppliers will not be allowed to participate in relevant
procurement activities. We have zero tolerance
towards bribery and corruption, and the practice
of partners or suppliers obtaining partnerships
or procurement contracts through any forms of
benefits transfer are strictly prohibited.

To ensure a steady supply of food ingredients and
minimise the risks of non-delivery, substandard
products and suppliers’ delinquencies, the Group
sources major raw materials from a number of
approved suppliers. The Group places great
importance to the quality of raw materials and
closely monitors if the suppliers have met the
aforementioned criteria. The above-mentioned
procedure is applicable to all suppliers for the
Group.
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In hopes of maintaining the product quality and
safety, our Purchasing Department conducts
supplier reviews regularly in the areas of food
quality, delivery time, food packaging, compliance
on operation and accreditation---etc. All suppliers
are required to hold valid licences issued by the
government, while all imported goods shall obtain
proper clearance from respective authorities. Goods
received from suppliers have to be in compliance
with the food labelling requirements and relevant
hygiene and sanitary regulations. To safeguard
the quality and condition of goods, suppliers with
past records of material environmental or social
accidents will be exempted from the list of suppliers.

Product Responsibility

As a high quality Chinese restaurants operator,
we prioritise the food safety and service quality.
The Group actively monitors the food and service
quality through internal controls. We also maintain
communication with our customers to understand
customers’ need and satisfaction level and to meet
their expectations.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with laws
and regulations relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters for
products and services provided, including but
not limited to the Hong Kong Trade Descriptions
Ordinance (Cap.362), Food Safety Law of the
People’s Republic of China, Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Protection of the Rights and
Interests of the Consumers, and the Advertising
Law of the People’s Republic of China that would
have a significant impact on the Group.
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Food Quality and Safety

The Group has placed great effort in ensuring and
maintaining the quality of food and ingredients for
restaurants’ daily operations. We have implemented
a Quality Control System that emphasises food
hygiene and safety as well as the sanitation and
cleanliness of restaurant premises. The Quality
Control System covers every aspect from food
preparation and cooking to the dining environment
of restaurants. We have also developed a series of
food safety policies to employees according to the
standards as required by governmental authorities.
Restaurant managers are responsible to monitor the
operations and performances of the restaurants so
to ensure the restaurant operations are in consistent
with the Group’s established guidelines and
policies. All employees, in particular kitchen staff are
required to strictly obey the policies on daily food
preservation and preparation, dress code and food
processing instructions.

Raw materials and food ingredients are only
sourced from the approved supplier list endorsed
by the Group’s senior management. We select food
ingredients mainly based on the place of origin,
freshness, nutritional value, and consumption
safety. Freshness and quality of the raw materials
and food ingredients are examined on a regular
basis. The Group would cease sourcing from those
suppliers who fail to provide quality food ingredients
as specified.
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We also place great emphasis on the food
ingredients preservation process by developing
different standards and guidelines on the storage
of food ingredients. The Group has developed a
Warehouse Management System to specify different
instructions and measures to standardise the daily
logistics of the warehouse. Such measures include
storing food ingredients separately, tagging food
with exclusive labels, and marking opening dates
for each package of food to prevent consumption
after expiry date. It is believed that such measures
can better maintain food safety while ensuring
food quality. In addition, the hygiene of cutlery
and utensils are cleaned and sanitised routinely
to ensure food safety. Instructions in cleaning and
sanitising utensils are posted on kitchen walls to
ensure employees are aware of the procedures in
cleaning cutlery and utensils.

The shop manager and senior management are
responsible in implementing various quality control
measures on food production, including, among
others, checking the quality upon purchase of raw
materials, receipt of food ingredients, cooking and
serving of foods.

During the Reporting Period, no products sold
was recalled for safety and health reasons and no
material complaints was received regarding the
products and services provided to customers.
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Customer Service

High quality and customer centric service are
fundamental to our business success. To achieve
it, the Group developed standardised service
management policies. The Group has set up
comprehensive and concrete instructions to guide
employees in providing quality customer service
manners. Such guidelines include the correct
positioning of dishes and the handling method
of food trays, etc. All instructions are illustrated
with pictures and posted in kitchen areas so to
provide employees a clear image of the appropriate
and standardised method of delivering when
serving customers. We believe these instructions
and guidelines can help to improve employees’
customer service manner while building the Group’s
image of a high-quality catering service provider.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s Hong
Kong restaurants were accredited with The Quality
Tourism Services (QTS) Scheme administered
by The Hong Kong Tourism Board. Under the
scheme, QTS Scheme accredited establishments
must pass stringent annual assessments showing
that we met high standards of product quality and
service. To maintain high quality hygiene standard
of restaurants, the Group has regularly engaged
external supplier to perform work of pest control
and cleaning of fish tanks and carpets.

We value every comment and feedback from
customers. Customers are encouraged to provide
feedback directly to staff or managers in the
restaurant or through our corporate email listed on
our website. All reviews and comments received
from customers are reviewed by restaurant
managers and the senior management and
considered for improvement and rectification. To
actively collect customer feedbacks, we conduct
customer satisfaction surveys annually.
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We also provide regular trainings to employees
in handing enquiries and complaints in a decent
and professional manner. Restaurant managers
are responsible to settle complaints and carry out
further and follow up actions to improve the quality
of catering service provided by the restaurant. The
senior management regularly review the complaint
record and the actions taken by restaurant manager
so as to improve service quality and offer the
required resources.

Advertising and Labelling

We maintain highest integrity in promoting our
products and services in ways that do not mislead
consumers. Clear and reliable information about our
products helps customers make informed choices.
We strictly adhere to the Trade Descriptions
Ordinance (Cap. 362). The Group advertises our
restaurants through a variety of platforms include
corporate website, billboards, and floor directories,
etc. By complying relevant legislations and code
of practices, the Group organises promotion
campaigns and creates advertising materials in
a reliable and reasonable way in order to protect
consumers’ interests, rights and benefits.

Intellectual Property Rights

The Group strives to protect its intellectual property
rights and respect intellectual property rights for
other parties. The Group’s employees are prohibited
from infringement of the intellectual property of
the Group or third parties. Only licenced software
was allowed to be used in restaurants and back
office. We closely monitor the status of all existing
licence and trademarks to ensure the validity of the
Company’s intellectual property rights.
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Customer data privacy

The Group emphasises the importance to the
protection of confidential data of our customers.
To ensure data privacy, all documents containing
sensitive commercial data are only allowed to
be used within the operation area. The data are
restricted to be used by the authorised employee
who are required to fully comply with the Personal
Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap.486) at all times
when handling customers’ personal data.

Anti-corruption

The Group believes that a corporate culture with
integrity is not only a foundation for corporate social
responsibility, but also a cornerstone to the Group’s
continued success. We value the importance of
anti-corruption work and does not tolerate any
corruptions, frauds and all other behaviours violating
work ethics. The Group does not allow any forms of
corruption. Punishment measures will be taken once
corruption is identified and confirmed. The Group
has established the Code of Business Conducts,
and has put in place internal control mechanism
to prevent the occurrence of fraud, theft, bribery,
corruption and other misconducts involving
employees, customers and other third parties.

The Group has formulated and documented
policies in the Employee Handbook that prohibits
employees from performing acts which will result
to any forms of corruption, such policies include
prohibiting employees from receiving gifts and
tips from customers, and prohibiting employees
to obtain or provide benefits to customers,
contractors, suppliers or those who have business
relationships with the Group. Updated anti-
corruption training materials and information are
circulated to employees, including Directors to
raise their awareness towards anti-corruption and
keep updates on the latest requirement during the
Reporting Period.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group did not
aware of any material non-compliance with relevant
laws and regulations of bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering, including but not limited to
the Hong Kong Prevention of Bribery Ordinance
(Cap.201), Company Law of the People’s Republic
of China, and Bidding Law of the People’s Republic
of China that would have a significant impact on the
Group. Also, there was no concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices brought against us or
our employees during the Reporting Period.

Whistle-blowing Mechanism

The Group has established a whistle-blowing
system and implemented the Whistle-blowing
Policy. This allows stakeholders to report
suspicious negligence, corruption, bribery and
other misconduct to the Group anonymously. The
Group’s whistle-blowing system was handled by
senior management directly who will investigate and
process the reports and complaints in a prompt and
fair manner when cases received. All reported cases
are investigated confidentially to ensure the whistle-
blower is protected.

Community Investment

The Group recognises that the long-term viability
of the Group’s business is closely linked with
the wellbeing of society. We are committed to
emboldening and supporting the public by means
of social participation and contribution as part of its
strategic development.

During the pandemic, we have donated numbers of
protective equipment, such as protective masks and
antigen test kits to those who needed in catering
service industry. The Group regularly reviews and
understands the need of community to determine
the focus areas of contribution. Meanwhile, we
encourage our employees to participate in all
kinds of charitable activities during their work and
leisure time to make greater contributions to the
community.
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Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
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Policies on minimising the issuer’s
significant impacts on the environment
and natural resources.
BEBETAHRERRABREKE
j( gEBmEAZﬁ

Description of the significant impacts
of activities on the environment and
natural resources and the actions
taken to manage them.

R B EBHHIRBERRARERNE
A ERDENERE @A ENITE -

Policies on identification and mitigation
of significant climate-related issues
which have impacted, and those which
may impact, the issuer.
ERIIYFIRE YN %Qﬁ%ﬂAF
ATENBEARKEBEENBR
Description of the significant climate-
related issues which have impacted,
and those which may impact, the
issuer, and the actions taken to
manage them.
AR AIRE e HEITAELERE
MEARGEBEEE - REHTTH -

60 FENEEARAR —T--—EEEHRS

The Environment and Natural
Resources

REMKAEIR

The Environment and Natural
Resources

RIENMRARETR

Climate change

TIRZ L

Climate change

TIREHL



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
RIE - tERERHE @)

Subject Areas, Aspects,

General Disclosures and KPIs Description Section/Declaration
TEER -EH —KREER
BREMIER it BH 89
Part B. Social
BE. #H &
Employment and Labour Practices
BRERZEIESR
Aspect B1: Employment
EBEB1: ERE
General Disclosure Information on: Employment
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and
welfare.
— AR EE AN RE BERET TF ER

e RA TEHE Zhk K
I AR A B B A 55 8 R AR N B
@ BE: &
b)) EBFHBTAGEAXENEH
ERRBROINEH -
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, Employment — Recruitment,
employment type (for example, full- or Promotion and Dismissal
part-time), age group and geographical

region.
RS AE IR IE B RIER - BERE (WEREERE) - EE-BE BAKREE
FicR R mE D ESEE -
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age Employment — Recruitment,
group and geographical region. Promotion and Dismissal
RBEAE RIEIRB1.2 RIER - FRARORESHNEE ERE-—BE B KEE
i ==
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Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs
TEHR - EEH  —REER
BAREMER

Description

it

Section/Declaration

801

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
BHEB2: REHEZE

General Disclosure

—MRIX R

KPI B2.1

B A IR 1E B2.1

KPI B2.2
BB AR 1R B2.2
KPI B2.3

RRAEMIERB2.3

62

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working

environment and protecting employees

from occupational hazards.

FARELZ 2 TERRRRE RS @

REEEEEN

(@ HEX: &

b) ETHETATEAZENERH
ERRBOINEH -

Number and rate of work-related

fatalities occurred in each of the past

three years including the reporting

year.

BE=F (BEERFE)BFATL

THOAZB R E -

Lost days due to work injury.

EAIBEATEEH-

Description of occupational health and

safety measures adopted, and how

they are implemented and monitored.

Ha I P ER AN B SRR R B 22 2 45 Bt

AREBERITRERTE -

NERNEBMERAT S —FEERE

Health and Safety

Health and Safety

fEEEZ E
Health and Safety

fEREZ S
Health and Safety

BFEEZE

b
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Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs
TEHR - EEH  —REER
BARENER

Description

it

Section/Declaration

801

Aspect B3: Development and Training

EEB3: 2R K
General Disclosure

—RWE

KPI B3.1

852 45 A FE 12 B3.1

KPI B3.2

R A2 B3.2

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[BmEB4 : & T XA

General Disclosure

—MRIX R

KPI B4.1

B SR A IR 12 B4.1
KPI B4.2

PR S AR MIR1R B4.2

Policies on improving employees’
knowledge and skills for discharging
duties at work. Description of training
activities.
EHARAEERITIIEBENAH KR
KREEHVIER - B ® -

The percentage of employees trained
by gender and employee category
(e.g. senior management, middle
management).

BRI R EEER (e RERE -
HRERE)ESNZIIEEBDLL o
The average training hours completed
per employee by gender and employee
category.

RIERIREERFIE D  BEER T
B 51| B S 15 By B

Information on:

(@ the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced

labour.

BN IEET K& ss T :

(@ EXE: &k

b) BTHBITABERZENHEA
FERRBROINEHR -

Description of measures to review

employment practices to avoid child

and forced labour.

f i st RIS B DI B A 2 B T

Kesg g T e

Description of steps taken to eliminate

such practices when discovered.

R R ERB AR ERABIBR

FRERER Y 2P 8% o

Development and Training

R MIE

Development and Training

TR R

Development and Training

TR R

Labour Standards

Labour Standards

8 T AR
Labour Standards

5T

VAN
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Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs
TEHR - EEH  —REER
BAREMER

Description

it

Section/Declaration

801

Operating Practices

EEREM

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

EEBS5: HEHEEE
General Disclosure

—REE
KPI B5.1

RS AE B 1R B5.A
KPI B5.2

FA S 4B IR 1R B5.2

KPI B5.3

FA AR M5 1R B5.3

KPI B5.4

BA A 1R B5.4

Policies on managing environmental
and social risks of the supply chain.
IR P 5 A IR OR R At B BB IBUR -
Number of suppliers by geographical
region.

iR E S HHEREA o
Description of practices relating
to engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are
being implemented, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

G RIS ARV EN] - mEHR
TERAEONHEREE - A RIBHE
MITRERE -

Description of practices used to
identify environmental and social risks
along the supply chain, and how they
are implemented and monitored.
A BRI EESERSNRE
Mg mEa B - LA RABERITR
ERTE-

Description of practices used to
promote environmentally preferable
products and services when
selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

el A BROE L E R RS2 2 2 RIRIREE
m R ARG EB B - LA RARBEEATT I BE
BHIE -

64 FEmMERERAT —To—EEERE

Supply Chain Management

HrEEER
Supply Chain Management

HEEER
Supply Chain Management

HrEgEE s

Supply Chain Management

HEEER

Supply Chain Management

HEREE
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RE - HERER

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs

TEHE-BH - —

BEEARIER

WE oA

Description

it

Section/Declaration

801

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

EEB6: EmET
General Disclosure

—MRIXER

KPI B6.1

A AR MHE 15 B6. 1

KPI B6.2

A S AR IR 1R B6.2

KPI B6.3

RSB NI 1EB6.3

KPI B6.4

B R AE ISR B6.4

KPI B6.5

R 4E IR 1EB6.5

Information on:

(@ the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety,

advertising, labelling and privacy

matters relating to products and

services provided and methods of

redress.

FEMEHEMRRBNRERR

2 BE BERMLBEEUARERK

TR

@ BR: Rk

b)) BEBFHBETAGEAZENEH
ERRBOINEH -

Percentage of total products sold or

shipped subject to recalls for safety

and health reasons.

EEXRCEREMBAH T AL H{E

FRIBEHmMAR W B St

Number of products and service

related complaints received and how

they are dealt with.

BN EmIRRBHRFEE AR

JE¥ 30K -

Description of practices relating to

observing and protecting intellectual

property rights

i EEEERRENBEEE@NE

Bl -

Description of quality assurance

process and recall procedures.

T ng Eﬂ*ﬁ&%uu@”ﬁﬁir

Description of consumer data
protection and privacy policies,
and how they are implemented and
monitored.

R & & & RHRIE R AL B BUR
NIRRT RERT A -

Product Responsibility

mt
=l
b}
o

Product Responsibility — Food
Quality and Safety

EmEf-REnEE8RY

Hp

Product Responsibility — Food
Quality and Safety

FDE\H} BEnEslE%y

Product Responsibility —
Intellectual Property Rights

EmE - FMBERE

Product Responsibility — Food
Quality and Safety, Customer
Service

EmBEEt-ARmEEHEZTE .
=P R%

Product Responsibility -
Customer data privacy

EmBEE-EPBELRE
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Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs
TEHR - EEH  —REER
BAREMER

Description

it

Section/Declaration

801

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
BEB7: RES
General Disclosure

—MRIXEE

KPI B7.1

RSB IR 1R BT A

KPI B7.2

BB UIEIR BT .2

KPI B7.3

B A ISR B7.3

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and

money laundering.

BRI ILERES - 1R BEF AR E

Yy -

(a) B &

b) BFHBTAGEAXENEH
EERROINER o

Number of concluded legal cases

regarding corrupt practices brought

against the issuer or its employees

during the reporting period and the

outcomes of the cases.

RERANEETAKE ESREIL

EEENETFARMGHNEE KFL

R o

Description of preventive measures

and whistle-blowing procedures,

and how they are implemented and

monitored.

el 77 045 bt [ BRARFF - LA AR RS

MITRERAE-

Description of anti-corruption training

provided to directors and staff.

fHmEE KB TRENRETHE -

06 FENEEARAR —T--—SEEHRS

Anti-corruption

Anti-corruption

k&5

Anti-corruption — Whistle-blowing
Mechanism

RE S — B m
Anti-corruption

RES
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Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs
TEHR - EEH  —REER
BARENER

Description

it

Section/Declaration

801

Community
#HE

Aspect B8: Community Investment

EEB8: HERE

General Disclosure

—MRIX R

KPI B8.1

RS AE B 1R B8
KPI B8.2

PR S AR IR 1R B8.2

Policies on community engagement
to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’
interests.

BRI RZER T REIT NEERN
EMHEREFEMEREZBEDHSER
A1 M as B BUR o

Focus areas of contribution (e.g.
education, environmental concerns,
labour needs, health, culture, sport).
ErEREE (HE - REEH -
BITHENK @K Xt 8BF) o
Resources contributed (e.g. money or
time) to the focus area.
EEIBHBABAEIR (I0E B
fE)
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HERIRE

Community Investment

HRIKRE
Community Investment

HERIRE

67



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

ESEREHE

Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Chun Kit (B #& #¢) (“Mr. Chan”), aged 67,
is the chairman of the Board, the chief executive officer
of the Company, an executive Director and one of the
controlling shareholders of the Company (the “Controlling
Shareholders”). He is also the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”)
and a member of the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Chan
was appointed as a Director on 1 September 2015 and re-
designated as an executive Director on 23 September 2015.
Mr. Chan is responsible for the Group’s overall management,
strategic development, financial management and major
decision-making of the Group. He is also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Group. He is the father of Ms. Chan Wai
Sze Josephine, an executive Director.

From December 2012 to May 2014, Mr. Chan completed 13
courses including construction and operation management of
catering corporations of chain-store franchise system* (& X
125 6 38 ZE R LB & E 12) held by the Graduate School
in Shenzhen, Tsinghua University in order to enhance the

brand management of the Group.

Mr. Chan has over 20 years of experience in the restaurant
business. He is currently the vice chairman of the Association
of Restaurant Managers. Mr. Chan is also the committee
member of the training committee of Chinese Cuisine Training
Institute.

* For identification purpose only

68 FENEEARAR —T--—SEEHRS
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

EEZEEFE @)

Ms. Chan Josephine Wai Sze (FR#Z7F) (“Ms. Chan”), aged
37, was appointed as an executive Director on 7 January
2020. She joined the Group in December 2019 and is also the
business development director of the Company. Ms. Chan
is the daughter of Mr. Chan Chun Kit, the Chairman of the
Board, an executive Director and a Controlling Shareholder.

Ms. Chan holds a degree of Bachelor of Commerce from
Ryerson University in Canada and a degree of Master of
Business Administration from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Chan worked at Yahoo!
Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd from April 2008 to September 2014 and
was subsequently promoted to senior operations engineer in
2013. Ms. Chan also worked at Kering Asia Pacific Limited
from September 2014 to September 2017 as a IT service
manager, and has then been engaged in the food and
beverage industry till November 2019.

Ms. Zhu Xueqin (%k £ &) (“Ms. Zhu”), aged 45, was
appointed as an executive Director on 7 January 2020.
She is the general manager of a restaurant of the Group
located at Kerry Plaza, Futian District, Shenzhen, the PRC
(the “Shenzhen Restaurant”) and is responsible for the
management and administration of the Shenzhen Restaurant.
She joined the Group in May 2013.

Ms. Zhu obtained a degree of Bachelor of Business
Administration from the Open University of China, the PRC in
2023. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Zhu worked at &I T
T FEEE# AR A A (Shenzhen Prince Kitchen Catering
Company Limited*) from 2003 to 2009 with her last position as
deputy manager. From 2009 to 2012, she worked at )T & T
T &R JEBBR A A (Jiangsu Prince Catering and Management
Limited®) with her last position as general manager.

* For identification purpose only

MBSz (Hatl)  37x W_ZE=
TEF-—ALtHEZTARTEET -FR =
E—NEF+_AMALREER  TEEIAQ
AIMERERPBE Rt BRIRE L
E2RRE BRIRGEERESSER BT
BEENITERRKE -

BRZ T B 1l & Kk B & A 2 (Ryerson
University) B 7 2 2 + B F1 F B B XK 2
M ITRAEEBE TSN - RINAKRERR - BR
ZREITER-_ZTEN\FHAE=-FT—WFA
B {EB R Yahoo | Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd * B& 14
RZE—=ZFEALBRELTRZM MR
ZERR-_E—NFALAZE=_ZT—LFAH
A 7£ Kering Asia Pacific Limited #& 1T IT iR 7%
e He—BETBRRRRRGBITE B
—E-NF+—HR-

KEELT ([Rzx]) 45 KT =
TFE-RALtABZERBMITEFE KAA

SEUNTER)IEEREEEZRESDN
B (DRINER D B2 a8 RXIEE

EELRTRER -BRR_F—Z=FAAM
AREE -

REITHR - E-_=ZFESBERBERKRET
BRERELEN - RIMAXREER - A& L
BE-EE=_F=2_TTNFRENFIT
TFEHEEHERAAT - BERATEERIL
B-BZEZNFE_T——F - ﬁﬂ&ﬁ

TE# I TERIEERAR - BEBATEEALE

Li Bao Ge Group Limited  Annual Report 2022 69



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

EEERFHE @)

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Chow Yiu Pong David (/& & #8) (“Mr. Chow”), aged
37, was appointed as an executive Director on 23 September
2015 and re-designated as a non-executive Director on 7
January 2020.

Mr. Chow obtained a Higher Diploma in Web-based
Technology for Business from Hong Kong Institute of
Vocational Education (Sha Tin) in July 2005. He further holds
a degree of Bachelor of Science (Information Technology)
from the Swinburne University of Technology in Melbourne,
Australia by way of distance learning in March 2007.

From July 2005 to March 2012, Mr. Chow worked at
Compass Business Solutions Limited as a programmer, and
was subsequently promoted to a technical consultant since
October 2008. Since July 2012, Mr. Chow has been working
at Tectura Hong Kong Limited as a client services consultant.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lee Cheung Yuet Horace (Z 15 1% 5t &) (“Mr. Lee”),
aged 41, was appointed by the Board as an independent
non-executive Director on 1 January 2022, and is mainly
responsible for overseeing the management independently
and providing independent judgment on the issues of
strategy, performance, resources and standard of conduct of
the Company. He is also the chairman of the Audit Committee
and Legal Compliance Committee.

70 FimmEEERAT —T-o-—EEEHRE

FHITES

BRAxE ((AELE])  37%m R_F
— TN FNLA - +=AEETAHITES
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BEER_ZZERFLARBTEEEHE
B PHAIR)ESEFBERMSAX
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RIBAFGERBAHFHARRAZESBE

BB 88+ 8 -

—ETRFLARET——-F=A" A
%t 4 7 Compass Business Solutions Limited
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EAARMER B _E——Ft A A
% 4 A Tectura Hong Kong Limited fE 8 & P
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SEBEE (ShED 415 K-
——4-A-PEEFESEABIIEN
TEE RIBAEBUEEERERH
AR - R - ARRITAELMEE
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Mr. Lee obtained a Bachelor’'s Degree of Commerce
(Accounting) from The University of Queensland, Australia
in 2004. He has been a member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants since 2009 and became
a fellow member since 2014. Mr. Lee has over 18 years of
experience in financial reporting, investment analysis, merge &
acquisition exercises and business development. Mr. Lee has
been taking up various senior positions in the financial and
business sectors for over 12 years and he also has extensive
experience in terms of Hong Kong listed companies. Mr. Lee
is currently an independent non-executive director of Hybrid
Kinetic Group Limited (Stock Code: 1188), Diwang Industrial
Holdings Limited (formerly, Sunlight Technology Holdings
Limited) (Stock Code: 1950) and Kirin Group Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 8109). Mr. Lee was an independent non-
executive director of Asia Television Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 707) from February 2020 to December 2022. Mr. Lee
had been an independent non-executive director of Chuan
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1420), and an executive
director of Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited (Stock Code:
8148).

Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen (R¥ &) (“Mr. Yuen”), aged
75, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
during the period from 7 January 2020 to 30 April 2022,
and was mainly responsible for overseeing the management
independently and providing independent judgment on the
issues of strategy, performance, resources and standard
of conduct of the Company. He was also the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee and a member of each of the
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Legal
Compliance Committee.

THRER_ZTNFERMNE LB AREE
SEEL(gm B8 A ST NFR
ARBEFFARSHMAEEE  YH =
T NFRKNBERSE - FTRERUE
R RESM HBEDRELERES
AEEBISFREB FTRHEESHARD
RETZESHBBB12F  BINEAR
EEMNBTALMAAER - THEBATE
TEEEBEAR QA (BMHASE: 1188) -
wIEEERARAG (B ARER T
BRABERRDR) (BRMDASE - 1950) A K BB 5%
B AR AR (MDA 8109) 2 BiL
PITEE B _E_TFE_ARE_F
T CE+-AIEM FhREBETTM
BERIEWER AT (RMHBNREE : 707) 2B
FRAITEZ -TEEGETIZEBRERA
A (BB R5E  1420) ZBYIERTTEE R
BEPEEEEGR AR (RMHAE : 8148)
ZHITESE -

REREE(REED 755 R_F
TF-—ALBET-__FWA=+HH
RERE/BUIFNTES TEREH
VEEEEEMRAARRE KRB ER
RIREAFEEREBE LG RITER
FZEeTREUANERZES REZ
EgMERAREEGKE -
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Mr. Yuen graduated with a Master of Science in Interdisciplinary
Design and Management from The University of Hong Kong.
He is an Eminent Fellow Member of the Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors, a Fellow Member of the Chartered
Institute of Housing, a Fellow Member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Housing and a Member of the Chartered Institute
of Arbitrators. He has approximately 50 years of real estate
experience in both public and private sectors. He is currently
a non-executive chairman of InfraredNF Investment Advisers
Limited and an independent non-executive director of
Autotoll Limited. Mr. Yuen was ex-chairman of the Industry
Training Advisory Committee (Property Management) of the
Education Bureau, past chairman of the Real Estate Service
Training Board, ex-committee member of the Employee
Retraining Board, ex-member of the Land and Building
Advisory Committee, past chairman of the Chartered Institute
of Housing (Hong Kong Branch), past president of the Hong
Kong Association of Property Management Companies and
past president of the Hong Kong Institute of Real Estate
Administrators. Mr. Yuen is currently an independent non-
executive director of Winson Holdings Hong Kong Limited
(Stock Code: 6812).

Mr. Yuen has resigned as an independent non-executive
Director on 1 May 2022.

Mr. Kan Sze King Kenneth (f& £ %}) (“Mr. Kan”), aged 57,
was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
1 September 2020, and is mainly responsible for overseeing
the management independently and providing independent
judgment on the issues of strategy, performance, resources
and standard of conduct of the Company. He is also a member
of each of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Legal Compliance
Committee.

Mr. Kan was awarded a diploma by the Architectural
Association School of Architecture in the United Kingdom
in August 1989. He was then received a MA in property
valuation and law from the department of property valuation
and management, Business School, City University, the
United Kingdom in August 1993.
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Currently, Mr. Kan is the director of CHK Partnership Limited,
an architecture and interior design company that was found
and directed by Mr. Kan in 1996 until he left the company in
2015. Mr. Kan rejoined the company in 2018 and has been
responsible for overseeing the design projects undertaken by
the company. Previously, Mr. Kan was a project director for
Kerry Properties (China) Limited from January 2017 to August
2017.

Mr. Kan has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Architects since 2016 and has been registered with the
Architects Registration Board of Hong Kong since 2017. Mr.
Kan has also been a certified interior designer of the Hong
Kong Interior Design Association since 2018. Mr. Kan became
a member of Royal Institute of British Architects in 1992, and is
currently registered with the Architects Registration Board of
the United Kingdom.

Mr. Chan Ming Kei (BR # &) (“Mr. MK Chan”), aged
40, was appointed by the Board as an independent non-
executive Director on 1 May 2022, and is mainly responsible
for overseeing the management independently and providing
independent judgment on the issues of strategy, performance,
resources and standard of conduct of the Company. He
is also the chairman of the remuneration committee and
a member of each of the Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Legal Compliance Committee.

Mr. MK Chan holds a Bachelor of Business Administration
(Hons) majoring in Accounting from The Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology. He is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has over
17 years experiences in accounting, financial management
and company secretarial works.

Mr. MK Chan is currently a joint company secretary and
the financial controller of Diwang Industrial Holdings Limited
(formerly, Sunlight Technology Holdings Limited) (Stock
Code: 1950). From January 2018 to April 2021, he acted as
company secretary and assistant financial controller of Fullsun
International Holdings Group Co., Limited (Stock Code: 627).
Mr. MK Chan was an independent non-executive director of
Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
907) from April 2017 to June 2019.
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The Board is pleased to present herein the corporate
governance report of the Company for the Year.

The Directors and the management of the Group recognise
the importance of sound corporate governance to the long-
term success and continuing development of the Group.
Therefore, the Board is committed to upholding good
corporate standards and procedures, so as to improve the
accountability system and transparency of the Group, protect
the interests and create value for the Shareholders.

Corporate Culture and Strategy

The company embeds with a strong corporate culture for
compliance, corporate governance and corporate social
responsibilities, and at the same time, strives to provide high
quality and reliable products and services, and to create
values to the stakeholders through sustainable growth
and continuous development. The Company acts as an
investment holding company and the principal activities of its
subsidiaries are operating of a chain of Chinese restaurants in
Hong Kong and the PRC. As a group with a well-established
business foundation, it is the Board’s role to foster a corporate
culture with the following principles to guide the conduct and
behaviours of its employees, and ensure that the Company’s
vision, mission and business strategies are aligned to it:

(i)  Integrity — we strive to do what is right;
(i) Excellence —we aim to deliver excellence;
(i) Collaboration — we are always better together;

(iv) Accountability — we are accountable for delivering on our
commitments;

(v) Empathy we care about our stakeholders — employees,
customers, supply chain and the community; and

(vi) Sustainability — we are committed to a sustainable future.
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The Group continuously reviews and updates its strategies
to provide better clarity on direction and business models.
In addition, the Group takes active and prompt measures
to meet market changes through adjustment of business
strategies and control over costs for supporting continuous
business development of the Group.

Compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code

The Company is committed to ensure a high standard of
corporate governance in the interests of the Shareholders and
devotes considerable effort to maintain high level of business
ethics and corporate governance practices. The Company’s
corporate governance practices are based on the principles
and code provisions as set out in the section headed
“Part 2 — Principles of good corporate governance, code
provisions and recommended best practices” of Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules. The Company has applied the principles of, and
complied with, the applicable code provisions of the CG Code
for the Year, except for certain deviations as specified with
considered reasons for such deviations which are explained
below.

Under Code Provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the
chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”) and chief executive
officer (the “CEQ”) of the Company should be separated and
should not be performed by the same individual.
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For the Year, the Company has not separated the roles of
Chairman and the CEO. Mr. Chan was the Chairman and
also the CEO and is responsible for overseeing the operations
of the Group during such period. In view of the fact that Mr.
Chan has been operating and managing the Group since
1998, the Board believes that it is in the best interests of the
Group to have Mr. Chan taking up both roles for effective
management and business development. The Board also
believes that vesting the roles of both Chairman and CEO in
the same person has the benefit of ensuring the consistent
leadership within the Group and enables more effective and
efficient overall strategic planning for the Group. Although
Mr. Chan performs both roles of Chairman and CEO, the
division of responsibilities between the two roles is clearly
established. While the Chairman is responsible for supervising
the functions and performance of the Board, the CEO is
responsible for the management of the Group’s business.
The Board considers that the balance of power and authority
for the present arrangement will not be impaired given the
appropriate delegation of the power of the Board to the
Senior Management for the day-to-day management of the
Group, and the effective functions of the independent non-
executive Directors representing at least one-third of the
Board such that no one individual has unfettered power of
decisions. This structure will also enable the Company to
make and implement decisions promptly and effectively.
The Board will continue to review and consider splitting the
roles of Chairman and CEO at a time when it is appropriate
and suitable by taking into account the circumstances of the
Group as a whole.

The Board will periodically review on the Company’s
corporate governance functions and will continuously improve
the Company’s corporate governance practices by assessing
their effectiveness with evolving standards to meet changing
circumstances and needs.
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Board of Directors

The key responsibilities of the Board include formulation of
the Group’s overall strategies, the setting of management
targets and supervision of management performance. The
management is delegated with the authority and responsibility
by the Board for the management and administration of the
Group. In addition, the Board has also delegated various
responsibilities to the board committees of the Company
(the “Board Committees”). Further details of the Board
Committees are set out in this annual report. Under the terms
of reference, the duties of the Board in respect of corporate
governance are as follows:

1. to develop and review the policies and practices
on corporate governance of the Group and make
recommendations;

2. 1o review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and Senior
Management;

3. to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to Directors and
employees; and

5. to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the corporate governance report of the
Company.
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Composition of the Board

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
annual report, there have been changes in the composition
of the Board. As at the date of this annual report, the
Board comprises seven Directors, including three executive
Directors, one non-executive Director and three independent
non-executive Directors. The composition of the Board and
the aforesaid changes are set out as follow:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Chun Kit (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Chan Wai Sze Josephine

Ms. Zhu Xuegin

Non-executive Director
Mr. Chow Yiu Pong David

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen (resigned on 1 May 2022)
Mr. Kan Sze King Kenneth

Mr. Lee Cheung Yuet Horace

Mr. Chan Ming Kei (@ppointed on 1 May 2022)

In compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules, the Board was consisted of three independent non-
executive Directors during the Reporting Period. During the
Reporting Period and as of the date of this annual report, the
number of independent non-executive Directors represents
more than one-third of the Board. As such, there is a strong
independent element in the Board to provide independent
judgement. Amongst the independent non-executive
Directors, Mr. Lee Cheung Yuet Horace and Mr. Chan Ming
Kei have the appropriate professional qualifications and
accounting and related financial management expertise
required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Company has entered into a service agreement with each
of the independent non-executive Directors for a term of one
year, which may be terminated earlier by no less than three
months written notice served by either party on the other.
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The Company will use its best efforts to achieve the board
diversity policy and ensure that the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity which is appropriate to
the needs of the Company’s business. The selection of
candidates will be based on a range of criteria, including
but not limited to, gender, age, cultural and educational
background, experience (professional or otherwise), skills
and knowledge. The appointment of Directors will continue
to be made based on merit and potential contribution by the
candidate to the Board and the Company. Each of Directors’
respective biographical details is set out in the section
“Biographical Details of Directors” of this annual report.
The Directors have the necessary skills and experience
appropriate for discharging their duties as Directors in the
best interest of the Company.

Pursuant to Article 108 of the Articles, one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or if their number is not a multiple
of three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one-
third), not including those Directors who are subject to re-
election pursuant to Article 112 of the Articles, shall retire from
office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject
to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once
every three years. Mr. Chan Chun Kit, Ms. Zhu Xuegin and
Mr. Chow Yiu Pong David will retire from office as Directors
and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the
“AGM”).

Specific enquiry has been made by the Company to each
of the independent non-executive Directors to confirm their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
In this connection, the Company has received the positive
annual confirmations from all of the three independent non-
executive Directors. Based on the confirmations received, the
Company considers all independent non-executive Directors
to be independent under the Listing Rules.
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Board and General Meetings

During the Reporting Period, eight board meetings were held
to approve, among others, the annual results for the year
ended 31 December 2021, the interim results in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2022. The AGM which was held
on 24 June 2022 was the general meeting of the Company

during the Reporting Period.

The attendance of the respective Directors at the Board

meetings are set out below:

EEERRERAE
RIBEHA BEEERITT/URSEUE
(EmeE)HE—_E-—4*F+-_HA=+—
HFEFFEN2FEER BE_T=-_=
+— A=+ HULEFENPHEE - N =
T - _EXNA-THHBITHRERBFAK
ENARBRREHRRNOBRERE -

BEEFTHFESTEQRMCEHIINT ¢

Attendance/ Attendance/
Number of Number of
Board meetings general meeting
during the during the
Reporting Period Reporting Period
BEHE BEHH
EEgel BRAE
HERE S8R HERYE S8R
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Chan Chun Kit (Chairman and BRIRGESE & (FEETTBAEE)

Chief Executive Officer) 7/8 1/1
Ms. Chan Wai Sze Josephine BREFT L 8/8 1/1
Ms. Zhu Xuegin REELL 6/8 11
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Chow Yiu Pong David BRBLE 6/8 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors ~ BYFHITES
Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen REREE (R=ZFE=-—#F Not applicable

(resigned on 1 May 2022) AH—HET) 3/3 TiEA
Mr. Kan Sze King Kenneth BrHEsE 7/8 11
Mr. Lee Cheung Yuet Horace FHNTE 7/8 1/1
Mr. Chan Ming Kei BRSGELE (R=F=——F

(appointed on 1 May 2022) BA—HEZF) 4/4 1/1
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The Directors can attend meetings in person or through other
means of electronic communication in accordance with the
Articles. All minutes of the Board meetings were recorded in
sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board and the
decisions reached.

To facilitate the decision-making process, the Directors are
free to have access to the management for enquiries and to
obtain further information when required. The Directors can
also seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense, in discharging
their duties to the Company. All Directors have unrestricted
access to the company secretary of the Company (the
“Company Secretary”) who is responsible for ensuring that
the Board/committee procedures are complied with, and for
advising the Board/committee(s) on compliance matters.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover
in respect of possible legal action against its Directors and
senior officers.

Relationships among Board Members and
Senior Management

Saved as disclosed in the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors” of this annual report, there is no financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationship
among members of the Board and the Senior Management.

Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions
by Directors

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors
in respect of the Shares (the “Code of Conduct”). The
Company has made specific enquiry to all Directors, and
all Directors have confirmed that they have fully complied
with the required standard of dealings set out in the Code of
Conduct during the Year.

ExnRstEeE  KEERZA[ A
RETEFAASTA2EEE -MEAES
CERCHRAACHRETEERENTER
EEKHIRIE °

RIMPRRF B - EEABERREEEEH
WEBRECEN(MBEFLE) - EFTAIGL
BITERARABEMEFEEBN FTHRK
BUBXER BERSAARAN - 288
E=HAERHMBEARFNARWE
(rAME])  REAIMENEERRES
G/ ZERRFETZERNEER AR
ZBRNERAEEE ZRERIES -

ARFEREEZRSRBEFJLHEHED
ERFRAEHEERRTYE

ESENERESAEERZEN
B8 1%

BRAFRIEFEEFE| —HAREEIN
ESe RN EEBXRB AL E R
% KESEMERKBBEBE -

ESETESRGNRTTE

ARFEERMA LR BN E+ FTE e iR E
EAERESHABRNETESFR R ZHNET
SA(RIFFAUD - ARFRIEAE2EES
FHAREH MEBEFOER  BER
AEE-—EE2EBTHRTTRHMEOEE

BEER -

81

Li Bao Ge Group Limited Annual Report 2022



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
TEERRE @)

Directors’ Continuing Professional
Development Programme

The Group acknowledges the importance of adequate and
ample continuing professional development for the Directors
for a sound and effective internal control system and
corporate governance. In this regard, the Group has always
encouraged its Directors to attend relevant training courses to
receive the latest news and knowledge regarding corporate
governance.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has provided
the Directors at least one training course on the updates of
the Listing Rules concerning good corporate governance
practices. The Company will, if necessary, provide timely and
regular trainings to the Directors to ensure that they keep
abreast with the current requirements under the Listing Rules.

According to the training records maintained by the Company,
the continuous professional development programmes
received by each of the Directors during the Reporting Period
is summarised as follows:

EENFEEXRREE

AEBESTEZTERREARTOFEERR
ZRUREMITZARNAMEERG R
TEERANERN - Bt - AEE—E=E
HEZHFABEIRE ABEREHAL
EERNRFIHE M A -

RBEHA  ARAREMESFRERfARD —
RIBFIRE ARABLEMARAP I RR
HERERABRONRMER - AR AR
FELEFRMER RIEREI - ARERF
WEZBREMRANRITHE

BREARAFENEICHE  SEERH
SHERINBEEEEIIBRAT

Type of Training

AR

Executive Directors HITES :
Mr. Chan Chun Kit (Chairman and PR HRA4E 5 A

Chief Executive Officer) (EEFTEAEH) A&B
Ms. Chan Wai Sze Josephine PREEFF L A&B
Ms. Zhu Xueqin KEEL L A&B
Non-executive Director FHTES:
Mr. Chow Yiu Pong David BB E A&B
Independent non-executive Directors BYHTES:
Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen REBRERE (R=ZF=ZZ

(resigned on 1 May 2022) AHA—HEF) A&B
Mr. Kan Sze King Kenneth B E A&B
Mr. Lee Cheung Yuet Horace TG EE A&B
Mr. Chan Ming Kei PREESE (RZF-_—F

(appointed on 1 May 2022) AH—HEZ(T) A&B
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A: attending training sessions, including but not limited to, seminars, briefings,
conferences, forums and workshops.

B: reading newspapers, journals and updates relating to the economy, general
business, corporate governance and directors’ duties and responsibilities.

Corporate Governance Function

The Board recognises that corporate governance should be
the collective responsibility of the Directors which includes:

(@ to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and Senior
Management;

(c) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual applicable to employees and
Directors;

(d) to develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board and report to the Board
on such matters; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the annual report.

Corporate Governance Policies and
Mechanism

The Board recognizes that a comprehensive corporate
governance management structure is crucial in helping the
Company to implement its strategies and policies effectively
and consistently throughout the Group, and safeguard
the long-term interests of its shareholders. Accordingly,
the Company has established the following policies and
mechanism and has continuously reviewed them to ensure
that the Group meets the requirements of the applicable laws
and regulations:

° Board Diversity Policy

o Mechanisms Ensuring Independent Views Available to
the Board
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° Anti-corruption Policy

o Whistle-blowing Policy

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy whereby
it recognises and embraces the importance and benefits of
a diversity of Board members. It endeavours to ensure that
the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the
Company’s business. All Board nominations, appointments
and reappointments will continue to be made on a merit
basis with due regard for the benefits of diversity of the
Board members and the nomination policy of the Company.
Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills and knowledge.

The Board will strive to maintain gender diversity when
recruiting and selecting the workforce across the Group’s
operation. As at 31 December 2022, the Board members
include two female members which achieved gender diversity
in respect of the Board.

The Board and the Nomination Committee will review
the Board Diversity Policy at least annually to ensure that
its continued effectiveness, and where necessary, will
make revisions that may be required and the Nomination
Committee will recommend any such revision to the Board for
consideration and approval.

At the meeting held on 29 March 2023, the Board and the
Nomination Committee have reviewed the Board Diversity
Policy and was satisfied with its implementation and
effectiveness during the Year.
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Workforce Diversity

As at 31 December 2022, the ratio of male and female in
the workforce by gender and age of the Group (including
executive directors and senior management) is 72% and 28%
respectively as set out in the section B1. Employment of the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages 40
to 44 of this annual report. The goal of a workplace diversity is
to create the right environment where people feel comfortable
working together with both collaboratively and effectively in an
environment without judgment; all staff is able to reach their
full potential while working as a team. The Group considers
that the current composition of workforce diversity objective
(gender ratio, plan or measurable objectives for gender
diversity, factors or circumstances affecting the gender ratio,
etc) had been achieved at acceptable level.

Independent Views of the Board

In compliance with Code B.1.4 of the CG Code, the
Company has established mechanisms to ensure that a
strong independent element on, and independent views and
input are available to the Board (the “Mechanisms”).

The Mechanisms are to ensure that a strong independent
element on, and independent views and input are available
to, the board of directors of the Company. The Mechanisms
cover composition of the board and board committees;
independence assessment; compensation; Board decision
making; and review of the policy implementation.

The Board will review the implementation and effectiveness
of the Mechanisms annually. At the meeting held on 29
March 2023, the Board has reviewed the implementation
and effectiveness of the Mechanisms during the Year
and considered that the Group was satisfied with the
independence status of all the independent non-executive
directors.

Anti-corruption Policy

To outline the Company’s expectations and requirements
on prevention, detection, reporting and investigation of any
suspected fraud, corruption and other similar irregularities;
and to provide information and guidance on recognizing
and dealing with bribery and corruption, the Company has
established its group-wise anti-corruption policy that complies
with Code D.2.7 of the CG Code.
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Under the anti-corruption policy, the Group has established
the Code of Business Conducts, and has put in place internal
control mechanism to prevent the occurrence of fraud,
theft, bribery, corruption and other misconducts involving
employees, customers and other third parties.

The anti-corruption policy is reviewed and updated
periodically to align with the applicable laws and regulations as
well as the industry best practice.

Whistle-blowing Policy

The Group is committed to achieving and maintaining the
highest standards of openness, probity and accountability,
the Company has established a whistle-blowing policy which
forms an important part of its effective risk management and
internal control systems.

Under the whistle-blowing policy, the Group allows
stakeholders to report suspicious negligence, corruption,
bribery and other misconduct to the Group anonymously. All
reported cases are investigated confidentially to ensure the
whistle-blower is protected.

The whistle-blowing policy is reviewed and updated
periodically to align with the applicable laws and regulations as
well as the industry best practice.

Board Committees

The Board has established a number of functional committees
in compliance with the relevant Listing Rules and to assist the
Board to discharge its duties. Currently, four committees have
been established:

1. The Audit Committee was established on 16 June 2016
with its terms of reference in compliance with Rules 3.21
to 3.23 of the Listing Rules, and paragraphs D.3.3 and
D.3.7 of the CG Code;

2.  The Remuneration Committee was established on 16
June 2016 with its terms of reference in compliance with
paragraph E.1.2 of the CG Code;
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3. The Nomination Committee was established on 16
June 2016 with terms of reference in compliance with
paragraph B.3.1 of the CG Code; and

4. The Legal Compliance Committee was established on
16 June 2016.

The functions and responsibilities of these committees
have been set out in the relevant terms of reference
which are of no less stringent than that stated in the CG
Code. The relevant terms of reference of each of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee can be found on the Group’s website
(http://www.starofcanton.com.hk/) and the website of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) in accordance with the CG Code. All committees
have been provided with sufficient resources and support
from the Group to discharge their duties.

Audit Committee

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
annual report, the Audit Committee comprised three
members, namely Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen (resigned
on 1 May 2022), Mr. Lee Cheung Yuet, Horace (Chairman),
Mr. Chan Ming Kei (appointed on 1 May 2022) and Mr.
Kan Sze King Kenneth, all of whom are independent non-
executive Directors. Pursuant to the terms of reference of
the Audit Committee, the members of the Audit Committee
shall comprise three non-executive Directors and shall be
appointed or removed by the Board. If any member of the
Audit Committee ceases to be a Director, he/she will cease to
be a member of the Audit Committee automatically.

The Audit Committee must comprise a minimum of three
members, at least one of whom is an independent non-
executive Director with appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise as
required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

Upon the resignation of Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen as a
member of the Audit Committee on 1 May 2022, Mr. Chan
Ming Kei has been appointed as a member of the Audit
Committee with effect from 1 May 2022.
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With reference to the terms of reference, the primary
responsibilities of the Audit Committee are, among others (for
the complete terms of reference please refer to the Group’s
website (http://www.starofcanton.com.hk/) or the website of
the Stock Exchange):

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the
Company’s external auditors, and approve the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the
Company'’s external auditors;

2. to review and monitor the Company’s external auditors’
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the
audit process in accordance with applicable standards;

3. to monitor the integrity of the Company’s financial
statements and annual report and accounts and half-
year report and review significant financial reporting
judgments contained in them;

4. to discuss with the Company’s external auditors
questions and doubts arising in the audit of annual
accounts;

5. to review the statement about the Company’s internal
control system (if any) as included in the Company’s
annual report prior to submission for the Board’s
approval;

6. to review the Company’s financial reporting, financial
controls, internal control and risk management systems;

7. to discuss the internal control system with the
Company’s management to ensure that management
has performed its duty to have an effective internal
control system;

8. to consider major investigation findings on internal
control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own

initiative and management’s response to these findings;

9. to review the financial and accounting policies and
practices of the Group;
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10. to review the external auditor’s management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to the management
in respect of accounting records, financial accounts or
systems of control and management’s response;

11. to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response
to the issues raised in the external auditor’s management
letter; and

12. to review the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company'’s accounting and financial reporting function.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee had
reviewed the Group’s annual results and annual report for
the year ended 31 December 2021, and interim results and
interim report for the six months ended 30 June 2022, and
discussed internal controls, risk management and financial
reporting matters. The Audit Committee had also reviewed
audited annual results for the Year, this annual report, and
confirmed that this annual report complies with the applicable
standard, the Listing Rules, and other applicable legal
requirements and that adequate disclosures have been made.
There is no disagreement between the Directors and the Audit
Committee regarding the selection and appointment of the
external auditors. The Audit Committee has recommended
to the Board that Ting Ho Kwan & Chan (“THKC”) be
nominated for re-appointment as the Company’s auditor at
the forthcoming AGM.

The Board is of the view that the Audit Committee has
properly discharged its duties and responsibilities during the
Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report.
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The Audit Committee meets at least four times a year. During
the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee had held four
meetings together with the management of the Group and/
or the Company’s auditors. The attendance records of the
members of the Audit Committee are summarised below:
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Attendance/Number
of meetings during
the Reporting Period

HREHBEEE
RE BERE
Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen REFEREE (RZFZZF
(resigned on 1 May 2022) AH—HE) 11
Mr. Kan Sze King Kenneth Br¥EE 4/4
Mr. Lee Cheung Yuet Horace TG E 4/4
Mr. Chan Ming Kei PREGEE S E (R=ZF=ZZF
(appointed on 1 May 2022) AR —HEZE) 3/3
Remuneration Committee FEES
During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual E/\iﬁ HARBERFREABIL  FWE
report, the Remuneration Committee comprised three SRE=ZBKE BRBRELE(EE) (R
members, namely Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen (Chairman) :E::iﬂﬂ BEfT) BRESEE KL (£

(resigned on 1 May 2022), Mr. Chan Ming Kei (Chairman)
(appointed on 1 May 2022), Mr. Chan Chun Kit and Mr. Kan
Sze King Kenneth. Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen, Mr. Chan
Ming Kei and Mr. Kan Sze King Kenneth are independent
non-executive Directors.

With reference to the terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee, the primary responsibilities of
the Remuneration Committee include (for the complete
terms of reference please refer to the Group’s website
(http://www.starofcanton.com.hk/) or the website of the
Stock Exchange):

1. to consult the chairman of the Board and/or chief
executive about their remuneration proposals for other
executive Directors;

2. to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all Directors’
and Senior Management remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy;
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10.

14

12.

13.

to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals
and objectives;

to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors
and Senior Management;

to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive Directors;

to consider salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities and employment
conditions elsewhere in the Company and its
subsidiaries;

to review and approve compensation payable to
executive Directors and Senior Management for any loss
or termination of office or appointment to ensure that it
is consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair
and not excessive;

to review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for
misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with
contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and
appropriate;

to review and/or approve matters relating to share
schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules;

to advise Shareholders on how to vote with respect
to any service contracts of Directors that require
Shareholders’ approval under Rule 13.68 of the Listing
Rules;

to ensure that no Directors or any of his close associates
is involved in deciding his own remuneration;

to do any such things to enable the Remuneration
Committee to discharge its power and functions
conferred on it by the Board; and

to conform any requirement, direction and regulation that
may from time to time be prescribed by the Board, or
contained in the articles of association of the Company
or imposed by applicable rules and regulations.
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The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year.
During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee
had held two meetings. The attendance records of the
members of the Remuneration Committee are summarised
below:

FNZEEeRELEBFRIT R - KR
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Attendance/Number
of meetings during
the Reporting Period

HREHBEEE
RE BERE
Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen (Chairman) REREE (FE)(RZF=ZZF
(resigned on 1 May 2022) AH—HE) 2/2
Mr. Chan Chun Kit PR 4R 4 5% 4 2/2
Mr. Kan Sze King Kenneth B 2/2
Mr. Chan Ming Kei (Chairman) BREGELE () (RZF-Z—F
(appointed on 1 May 2022) AR —HEZE) 0/0
During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee RBEHAN  FHEZESCREZT LSRN

reviewed and made recommendations on the remuneration
package of the Directors and Senior Management. The
Remuneration Committee has also reviewed the Share Option
Scheme at its meeting held on 29 March 2023. The Board is
of the view that the Remuneration Committee had properly
discharged its duties and responsibilities during the Reporting
Period and up to the date of this annual report.

Nomination Committee

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual
report, the Nomination Committee comprised three members,
namely Mr. Chan Chun Kit (Chairman), Mr. Yuen Ching
Bor Stephen (resigned on 1 May 2022), Mr. Chan Ming Kei
(appointed on 1 May 2022) and Mr. Kan Sze King Kenneth.
Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen, Mr. Chan Ming Kei and Mr. Kan
Sze King Kenneth are independent non-executive Directors.

92  FEMERERAT —To-EEEHE

EEBNTMNEBEITRN RESE - &
ZEEeNMRN _E_=ZF=ZA-_t+ BT
ez BHEREE  -EEEeRE R
REHREBEAFHRAHL  FHEES
EZEBEITHEBRE KB -

RELEE®
RBEHARBEEAFRBABIL  RBEBE
BeaiE=8KE8 @ BIRIREGELE (EFE) -
BEREE(R-_BE-—FHA—HET) -
PG E S E (RS- —FRA—HEZT)
MELESAE  c RIEREE  BREELER
MLt SHEETBYLIFRITES -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

=540

TEERRE @)

According to the terms of reference the Nomination
Committee, the Nomination Committee shall convene
meeting at least once a year and the primary responsibilities
of the Nomination Committee include (for the complete
terms of reference, please refer to the Group’s website
(http://www.starofcanton.com.hk/) or the website of the
Stock Exchange):

1. to review the structure, size, composition and diversity
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board and make recommendations on proposed
changes, if any, to the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy;

2. to review the Company’s Board Diversity Policy and the
progress on achieving the objectives set for implementing
the said policy;

3. to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships;

4. to assess the independence of independent non-
executive Directors; and

5. to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the
chairman and the chief executive.

Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted the nomination policy which sets out
the nomination criteria and procedures for the Company to
appoint or re-elect Directors. The nomination policy aims to:

e set out the criteria and process in the nomination and
appointment of Directors;

e ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
Company; and

e  ensure the Board continuity and appropriate leadership
at Board level.
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The nomination policy applies to the Directors and, where
applicable, Senior Management prepared for Board positions
under the succession planning of the Company.

In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship, the
following criteria should be considered:

e  Character and integrity

e Qualifications including professional qualifications,
skills, knowledge and experience and diversity aspects
under the board diversity policy that are relevant to the
Company'’s business and corporate strategy

e Any measurable objectives adopted for achieving
diversity on the Board

e Wilingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties
as a member of the Board and/or Board Committee(s)

e Requirement for the Board to have independent
Directors in accordance with the Listing Rules and
whether the candidate would be considered independent
with reference to the independence guidelines set out in
the Listing Rules

e Any potential contributions the candidate can bring to
the Board in terms of qualifications, skills, experience,
independence and gender diversity

e  Such other perspectives that are appropriate to the
Company’s business and succession plan and where
applicable, may be adopted and/or amended by the
Board and/or the Nomination Committee from time to
time for nomination of directors and succession planning

The Nomination Committee will recommend to the Board
for the selection, appointment and re-appointment of a
Director, including an independent non-executive Director,
in accordance with the procedures and process as set out
in the nomination policy. Nomination Committee will shortlist
candidates for consideration by the Board based on the
selection criteria and such other factors that it considers
appropriate.
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The Nomination Committee is responsible for monitoring and
reviewing the nomination policy and recommend any changes
thereto to the Board for its adoption as and when necessary.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee
had held two meetings. The attendance of the members of
the Nomination Committee at the committee meetings is as
follows:
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Attendance/Number
of meetings during
the Reporting Period

HREHBELE

RE EERE™

Mr. Chan Chun Kit (Chairman) BRIRGE S (£ /) 2/2
Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen REREE (RZFZZ4F

(resigned on 1 May 2022) A A —HFE) 2/2

Mr. Kan Sze King Kenneth L 2/2

Mr. Chan Ming Kei PREEESE (R-ZF =
(appointed on 1 May 2022) AH—HEZ(T) 0/0

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee
reviewed and assessed (i) the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board, (i) the performance of each of the Directors, (jii) the
independence of independent non-executive Directors, and
proposed the appointment or re-appointment or succession (if
applicable) of Directors.

Legal Compliance Committee

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual
report, the Legal Compliance Committee comprised three
members, namely, Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen (resigned on
1 May 2022), Mr. Lee Cheung Yuet Horace (Chairman), Mr.
Chan Ming Kei (appointed on 1 May 2022) and Mr. Kan Sze
King Kenneth. Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen, Mr. Lee Cheung
Yuet Horace, Mr. Chan Ming Kei and Mr. Kan Sze King
Kenneth are independent non-executive Directors.
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Upon the resignation of Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen as a
member of the Legal Compliance Committee on 1 May 2022,
Mr. Chan Ming Kei has been appointed as a member of the
Legal Compliance Committee with effect from 1 May 2022.

According to the terms of reference of the Legal Compliance
Committee, the primary duties of the Legal Compliance
Committee are to assist in overseeing the Group’s compliance
with laws and regulations relevant to its business operations
and to review the effectiveness of its regulatory compliance
procedures and system, and the Legal Compliance
Committee shall hold meeting at least once a year.

During the Reporting Period, the Legal Compliance
Committee had held one meeting. The attendance of
the members of the Legal Compliance Committee at the
committee meetings is as follows:

RREKEENR_ZT__FHHA—HEE
FRARZEGNER MEBELLER
EREREREZEGKE
EA—HBER-

—_—— —

REBEZEERZESNRBERE  XEA
REEEMTIERERWPHEEEAKE
EGEBRBNARIEARNETHMR
VTEHEEEAREFAGIERT AR
MERARZEGAEIBFRIT - REH -

RIFEHRN ARZAREZEEEERIT— X
THOAEAREESNENRZES SR
ZHEIREN T

Attendance/Number

of meetings during
the Reporting Period

BREHEHE
Y EERE
Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen REREE (RZFEZZ

(resigned on 1 May 2022) AH—HEA) 1/1
Mr. Kan Sze King Kenneth Br¥ieE 1/1
Mr. Lee Cheung Yuet Horace TG E 1/1

Mr. Chan Ming Kei PREESE (R=ZF=ZZF
(appointed on 1 May 2022) AR —HEZET) 0/0

During the Reporting Period, the Legal Compliance
Committee reviewed (i) the compliance policies of the
Company against the applicable laws and regulations, and (ii)
the training and continuing professional development of the
Directors and Senior Management.
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Auditor’s Remuneration

During the Reporting Period, the Group had engaged Ting
Ho Kwan & Chan CPA Limited (“THKC CPA”) as the Group’s
external auditor (the “Auditor”) and to hold office until the
conclusion of the forthcoming AGM. On 18 January 2023,
due to their reorganisation of client base, THKC CPA has
resigned as the Auditor and, with the recommendation from
the Audit Committee, the Board has appointed THKC as
the Auditor, which the partners and management were the
same as the directors and management of THKC CPA. The
Company’s consolidated financial statements for the Year
have been audited by THKC. The remuneration paid or
payable to THKC CPA and THKC is set out as follows:

¥ B B i A

RBEHRN AEBELET M @RS
MEXMAERAR ([THRAREMER
Frl) BAREEMINEZ AN ([ BEm]) -
HIEHBEZEERRBAFRSERL -
RZZE-_=ZF—A+NB @R T R
SHMESEFEEETREE  WHED
BERZHMBY  CERZESHER &
EeCLETHER(EARAREEER
THARSTMEEMMNESEREEEMRR)
BB c AR R AFENEA KR
RO T MEREZ - B ERT AR
PREFHEI A AT & T (IREPR A B ENEZ 20 T -

Services rendered Friz AR 75 Fees paid/payable
B ERER
for the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—HLEE
2022 2021
—E=-= R A
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Statutory audit services EEBZRE
~ THKC CPA — T eI BAPR & 5T RD = 75 A - 1,000
- THKC — T fa] BEPR 1,020 -
Non-audit services IEBZ RS
- THKC CPA — T ] BAPR & 5T Rh E 75 P 95 282
- THKC — T AR 97 -

Company Secretary

Ms. Leung Ho Yee (“Ms. Leung”) was appointed as the
Company Secretary on 1 October 2020. Ms. Leung has
been nominated by Boardroom Corporate Services (HK)
Limited (“Boardroom”), an external service provider, under
an engagement letter made between the Company and
Boardroom to be the Company Secretary.
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During the Reporting Period, Ms. Leung undertook not less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training in accordance
with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. The primary person at
the Company with whom Ms. Leung has been contacting in
respect of company secretarial matters is Ms. Chan Wai Sze
Josephine, an executive Director of the Group.

Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems

The Board is responsible for monitoring the adequacy and
reviewing the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems (including those relating to ESG
risk, performance and reporting) of the Group. The scope
of the review is determined and recommended by the Audit
Committee and approved by the Board annually. The review
covers:

1. all material controls, including but not limited to financial,
operational and compliance controls;

2. risks management functions; and

3. the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff in connection with the accounting and financial
reporting function, as well as those relating to the
Group’s ESG performance and reporting of the Group
and their training programmes and relevant budget.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee assessed
the risk management and internal control environment of
the Group and reviewed the internal control review report
and internal control procedural manual of the Group and
is satisfied with the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems (including those relating to ESG risk,
performance and reporting). The Board considered the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems
were effective during the Reporting Period. The systems are
designed in consideration of the nature of business and the
organisation structure. Further, the systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure in operational
system and to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss. The system
is designed further to safeguard the Group’s assets, maintain
appropriate accounting records and financial reporting,
achieve efficiency of operations and ensure compliance with
the Listing Rules and all other applicable laws and regulations.
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The Group has engaged external independent professionals
(the “Adviser”) to review its risk management and internal
control systems for the Year and further enhance its risk
management and internal control systems as appropriate.
Such review is conducted annually. During the Reporting
Period, no material deficiency was discovered. with regards
to the recommendation on internal control system provided
by the external independent professionals, the Group has
established action plans for improvement.

The Board and the Audit Committee are of the view that there
are no material internal control defeats noted. The Board
considered that the risk management and internal control
systems are effective and adequate.

There is currently no internal audit function within the Group.
The Board has reviewed the need for an internal audit
function and is of the view that in light of the size, nature and
complexity of the business of the Group, it would be more
cost effective to appoint external independent professionals
to perform internal audit functions for the Group as the need
arises. Nevertheless, the Board will continue to review the
need for an internal audit function annually.

Directors’ and Auditor’s Responsibility for
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge and understand their responsibility
for preparing the consolidated financial statements and to
ensure that the consolidated financial statements of the Group
are prepared in a manner which reflects the true and fair view
of the state of affairs, results and cash flows of the Group and
are in compliance with the relevant accounting standards and
principles, applicable laws and disclosure provisions required
of the Listing Rules. The Directors are of the view that the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for each
financial year have been prepared on this basis. The Directors
continue to adopt the going concern approach in preparing
the consolidated financial statements.

Statement of the Company’s external auditor’s responsibilities
in respect of the consolidated financial statements is set out
in the Independent Auditor’s Report of this annual report.
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Disclosure of Inside Information

The Group acknowledges its responsibilities under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong and the Listing Rules and the overriding principle
that inside information should be announced promptly
when it is the subject of a decision. The procedures and
internal controls for the handling and dissemination of inside
information are as follows:

e the Group conducts its affairs with close regard to the
disclosure requirement under the Listing Rules as well
as the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information”
published by the Securities and Futures Commission of
Hong Kong;

e the Group has implemented and disclosed its policy
on fair disclosure by pursuing broad, non-exclusive
distribution of information to the public through channels
such as financial reporting, public announcements and
the Company’s website;

e the Group has strictly prohibited unauthorised use of
confidential or inside information; and

e the Group has established and implemented procedures
for responding to external enquiries about the Group’s
affairs, so that only the Executive Directors, the Company
Secretary and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company
are authorised to communicate with parties outside the
Group.

General Meetings with Shareholders

The AGM is a forum in which the Board and the Shareholders
communicate directly and exchange views concerning the
affairs and overall performance of the Group, and its future
developments, etc. At the AGM, the Directors (including
independent non-executive Directors) are available to attend
to questions raised by the Shareholders. The external auditors
of the Company is also invited to be present at the AGM to
address to queries of the shareholders concerning the audit
procedures and the auditors’ report.

The forthcoming AGM will be held on Tuesday, 20 June 2023,

the notice of which shall be sent to the Shareholders at least
20 clear business days prior to the meeting.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Convening of Extraordinary General Meeting on
Requisition by Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles, the Board may,
whenever it thinks fit, convene an extraordinary general
meeting (“EGM”). EGMs shall also be convened on the
requisition of one or more Shareholders holding, at the date
of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting at
general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing
to the Board or the Company Secretary for the purpose of
requiring an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition. If, within 21 days
of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisition(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to
the requisition(s) by the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings
and Procedures for Shareholders’ Nomination of
Directors

To put forward proposals at a general meeting, Shareholders
should submit a written notice of those proposals with
detailed contact information to the Company Secretary at
the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at
Room B, 5/F, On Fat Industrial Building,12-18 Kwai Wing
Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong. The request
will be verified by the Company’s branch share registrar and
transfer office in Hong Kong and upon their confirmation that
the request is proper and in order, the Company Secretary
will ask the Board to include the resolution in the agenda for
the general meeting.

Pursuant to Article 113 of the Articles, no person, other than
a retiring Director, shall, unless recommended by the Board
for election, be eligible for election to the office of Director at
any general meeting, unless notice in writing of the intention
to propose that person for election as a Director and notice
in writing by that person of his willingness to be elected shall
have been lodged at the head office or at the registration
office of the Company. The period for lodgment of the notices
required under the Article will commence no earlier than the
day after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election and end no later than 7 days prior
to the date of such general meeting and the minimum length
of the period during which such notices to the Company may
be given will be at least 7 days.
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Communication with the Shareholders

The Company has adopted a Shareholders’” Communication
Policy with the objective of providing the Shareholders with
equal and timely access to information about the Company in
order to enable the Shareholders to exercise their rights in an
informed manner and allow them to engage actively with the
Company.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries
to the Board

Shareholders may direct their enquiries concerning
their shareholdings to the Company’s share registrars.
Shareholders may also make a request for the Company’s
information to the extent that such information has been
made publicly available by the Company. All written
enquiries or requests may be forwarded to the Company’s
head office or by fax to (852) 2525 2081, or by email to
ir@starofcanton.com.hk.

The addresses of the Company’s head office and the
Company’s share registrars can be found in the section
“Corporate Information” of this annual report.

Investor Relations

To ensure transparent and comprehensive disclosures to
investors, the Group delivers information of the Group to the
public through various channels, including general meeting,
public announcement and financial reports. The investors are
also able to access the latest news and information of the
Group via our website (http://www.starofcanton.com.hk).

In order to maintain good and effective communication, the
Company together with the Board extend their invitation to all
Shareholders and encourage them to attend the AGM and all
future general meetings.
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The Shareholders may also forward their enquiries and
suggestions in writing to the Company to the followings:
Address: Room B, 5/F

On Fat Industrial Building
12-18 Kwai Wing Road
Kwai Chung, New Territories
Hong Kong

Email: ir@starofcanton.com.hk

The Board has reviewed the Group’s shareholders and
communication activities conducted during the Year and is
satisfied with the implementation and effectiveness of the
Shareholders” Communication Policy.

Dividend Policy

The Board has adopted a dividend policy. Subject to
the approval of the Shareholders and requirement of the
relevant law, the Company shall pay annual dividends to
the Shareholders if the Group is profitable, operations
environment is stable and there is no significant investment or
commitment made by the Group.

In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall also take
into account, inter alia: (a) the Group’s actual and expected
financial performance; (b) the Group’s expected working
capital requirements and future expansion plans; (c) the
Group’s debt to equity ratios and the debt level; (d) any
restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed
by the Group’s lenders; () general economic conditions,
business cycle of the Group’s business and other internal and
external factors that may have an impact on the business
or financial performance and position of the Company; (f)
dividends received from the Company’s subsidiaries and
associates; (g) the Shareholders’ and investors’ expectation
and industry’s norm; and (h) any other conditions or factors
that the Board deems relevant.

The Board may update, amend, modify and/or cancel the
dividend policy upon review from time to time.
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Significant Changes in Constitutional
Documents

During the Year, there had been no significant changes in the
constitutional documents of the Company.

The Company proposes to amend the M&A in order to
comply with the Listing Rules and CG Code that came into
effect on 1 January 2022. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 29 March 2023.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EETHE

The Board is pleased to present the annual report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements (the
“Financial Statements”) of the Company for the Reporting
Period.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out
in Note 41 to the Financial Statements of this annual report.
During the Reporting Period, the Group is principally engaged
in the operation of a chain of Chinese restaurants in Hong
Kong and the PRC.

An analysis of the Group’s results for the Reporting Period by
segments is set out in Note 7 to the Financial Statements of
this annual report.

Business Review

The business review of the Group for the Reporting Period,
including a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group and an indication of likely future
developments in the business of the Group, is set out in the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 8 to 21 of this annual report. These discussions form
part of this Directors’ report.

Results and Appropriations

The Group’s results for the Reporting Period are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 130 to 131 of this annual
report.

Dividend

The Directors has resolved not to recommend the payment of
a final dividend for the Reporting Period (2021: Nil).

Summary of Financial Information

The summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on pages 255 to 256
of this annual report.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in Note 15 to the Financial
Statements of this annual report.

Share Capital

The Company’s issued share capital as at 31 December 2022
was 1,105,100,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each.

Details of movements of the share capital of the Company
during the Reporting Period are set out in Note 28 to the
Financial Statements of this annual report.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige
the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing Shareholders.

Reserves

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company
and the Group during the Year are set out in Note 37 to the
Financial Statements and the consolidated statement of
changes in equity of this annual report, respectively.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2022, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution as calculated in accordance with the Articles
and the Companies Act Cap. 22 of Cayman Islands, was
approximately HK$23.5 million inclusive of share premium
and accumulated losses.
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Major Customers and Suppliers
For the year ended 31 December 2022:

M

(i)

due to the nature of the Group’s business, its customers
mainly represented walk-in customers from the general
public. As such, the Directors consider that it is not
practicable to identify the five largest customers of
the Group, and the Group did not rely on any single
customer; and

the aggregate amount of purchases attributable
to the Group'’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 49.8% (2021: approximately 34.4%)
of the Group’s total purchases, and the largest
supplier accounted for approximately 26.6% (2021:
approximately 18.4%) of the Group’s total purchases.
To the best of the knowledge of the Directors, none of
the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder
which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s share capital had an interest in
these major suppliers.

Directors

The Directors during the Reporting Period and up to the date
of this annual report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Chun Kit (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Chan Wai Sze Josephine

Ms. Zhu Xuegin

Non-executive Director
Mr. Chow Yiu Pong David

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen (resigned on 1 May 2022)
Mr. Kan Sze King Kenneth

Mr. Lee Cheung Yuet Horace

Mr. Chan Ming Kei (appointed on 1 May 2022)
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Pursuant to Article 108(a) of the Articles, at each AGM, one-
third of the Directors for the time being (not including those
Directors who are subject to re-election pursuant to Article
112 of the Articles shall retire from office by rotation, whereby
Mr. Chan Chun Kit, Ms. Zhu Xueqgin and Mr. Chow Yiu Pong
David will retire from office as Directors at the forthcoming
AGM, and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Biographical Details of Directors

The biographical details of the Directors are disclosed in the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors” on pages
68 to 73 in this annual report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has entered into a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save for the related party transactions disclosed in Note 40 to
the Financial statements of this annual report, no contract of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries,
holding company or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director had a material interests directly or indirectly
subsisted at the end of the Reporting Period or at any time
during the Reporting Period.

Management Contracts

No management contracts concerning the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered
into or existed during the Reporting Period.

Contract of Significance

There was no contract of significance between the Company
or any of its subsidiaries, and a Controlling Shareholder or any
of its subsidiaries for the Year.
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Remuneration of the Directors, Senior
Management and the Five Highest Paid
Individuals

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five
highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in Note 9 to
the Financial Statements of this annual report.

The emoluments paid or payable to the Senior Management
of the Group who are not Directors were within the following
bands:

EE SREEERINVBSHA
T#E

EERAEERINERFATHMESFIEHR
RAFHAERRMEEY o

AEESREEE GEES) BN HEMF
e E T

Year ended 31 December

BE+t=-A=+—-HLHFE

2022 2021
—E-= g
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A NEX
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T 2 2
Permitted Indemnity Provision BETRERME

Pursuant to the Articles, the Directors, managing Directors,
alternate Directors, auditors, secretary and other officers of
the Company for the time being shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which they or any of them shall or may incur or sustain by or
about the execution of their duty in their offices or in relation
thereto.

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ liability
insurance which provides appropriate cover for the directors
of the Company and directors of the subsidiaries of the
Group.
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Emolument Policy

The Remuneration Committee is set up for reviewing the
Group’s emolument policy and structure for all remuneration
of the Directors and the Senior Management, having regard
to the Group’s operating results, individual performance
and comparable market practices. The remuneration of
the Directors is determined with reference to the economic
situation, the market conditions, the responsibilities and
duties assumed by each Director as well as their individual
performance.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as
incentive to Directors and eligible employees, details of which
are set out in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
below.

Pension Schemes

Details of the Group’s pension schemes for the Reporting
Period are set out in Note 3.22 to the Financial Statements of
this annual report.

Directors’ Interests in Competing
Businesses

Set out below are details of certain catering businesses of
the Directors which were not included into the Group as at
the date of this report. As disclosed in the Prospectus, Mr.
Chan was engaged in such businesses as at the date of
Listing. For further details, please refer to the section headed
“Relationship with Controlling Shareholders — Excluded
Catering Businesses” in the Prospectus.
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Non-Competition Undertaking

On 16 June 2016, Zhao Tian, Mr. Chan, Ms. Liu Siu Kuen
(“Mrs. Chan”), Bright Creator Limited (“Bright Creator”),
Hong Cui Developments Limited, Mr. Wong Ka Wai (“Mr.
Wong”), Sun Foo Sing Development Limited (“Sun Foo
Sing”), Sky Gain Investments Limited (“Sky Gain”), Mr. Ho
Wood Yam (“Mr. Ho”), Mr. Tsui King Foo (“Mr. Tsui K. F.”),
Mr. Chow Yiu Pong David (“Mr. David Chow”), Mr. Chow
Chor Ting Anthony, Mr. Lam Kwok Leung Peter (“Mr. Lam”),
Ms. Tsui Yuk Yi (“Ms. Tsui”), Mr. Tsui Chi Kit (Mr. Tsui
C. K.) and Mr. Tam Chie Sang (each a “Covenantor” and
collectively the “Covenantors”) have entered into a deed of
non-competition (the “Deed of Non-competition”) in favour
of the Company and its subsidiaries. Pursuant to the Deed
of Non-competition, each of the Covenantors has irrevocably
and unconditionally undertaken to the Company (for itself
and for the benefit of its subsidiaries) that, save and except
as disclosed in the Prospectus, during the period that the
Deed of Non-competition remains effective, she/he/it shall
not, and shall procure that her/his/its close associates (other
than any member of the Group) not to develop, acquire,
invest in, participate in, carry on or be engaged, concerned
or interested, or otherwise be involved, directly or indirectly, in
any business in competition with or likely to be in competition
with the existing business activity of any member of the
Group within Hong Kong and such other parts of the world
where any member of the Group may operate from time to
time, save for the holding of not more than 5% shareholding
interests (individually or with her/his/its close associates) in
any company listed on a recognised stock exchange and at
any time the relevant listed company shall have at least one
shareholder (individually or with her/his/its close associates,
if applicable) whose shareholding interests in the relevant
listed company is higher than that of the relevant Covenantor
(individually or with her/his/its close associates).

Each of the Covenantors further undertakes that if she/he/
it or her/his/its close associates other than any member of
the Group is offered or becomes aware of any business
opportunity which may compete with any business
opportunity of the Group, she/he/it shall procure that her/
his/its close associates to promptly notify the Group in
writing with such required information to enable the Group to
evaluate the merits of the relevant business opportunity and
the Group shall have a right of first refusal to take up such
opportunity and jointly pursue the same with the relevant
Covenantor. The parties shall then negotiate in good faith with
respect to a collaboration for such new business.
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The Group shall, within 30 days after receipt of the written
notice (or such longer period if the Group is required to
complete any approval procedures as set out under the
Listing Rules from time to time), notify the Covenantor(s)
whether the Group will exercise the right of first refusal. The
Group shall only exercise the right of first refusal upon the
approval of all independent non-executive Directors who
do not have any interest in such opportunity. The relevant
Covenantor(s) and the other conflicting Directors (if any) shall
abstain from participating in and voting at and shall not be
counted as quorum at all meetings of the Board where there
is a conflict of interest or potential conflict of interest including
but not limited to the relevant meeting of the independent
non-executive Directors for considering whether or not to
exercise the right of first refusal.

Details of the Deed of Non-Competition have been set
out in the section headed “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders” of the Prospectus.

Pursuant to the announcements “AMENDMENT OF
CONCERT PARTY DEED AND CHANGE IN CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS” dated 8 October 2019 and 9 April 2021,
the QOutgoing Parties are no longer bound to comply with the
Concert Party Deed to cast unanimous vote collectively for
or against all resolutions in the shareholders’ meetings of the
Company and discussions of the Group together with the
Remaining Concert Parties. As a result, the Outgoing Parties
are no longer part of a group of shareholders of the Company
acting in concert with the Remaining Concert Parties; and the
Outgoing Parties and the Remaining Concert Parties are no
longer deemed to be interested in the Shares held by each
other.

As a result of the aforesaid, (i) the Outgoing Parties ceased
to be the Controlling Shareholders of the Company; and (ii)
Mr. Chan, Mrs. Chan and Bright Creator became the only
Controlling Shareholders of the Company.
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Since the Outgoing Parties ceased to be the Controlling
Shareholders of the Company, each of them will no longer
be bounded by the Deed of Non-competition. The Remaining
Concert Parties, on the other hand, will continue to be
bounded by the Deed of Non-competition. The terms used
herein shall have the same meanings as those defined in the
announcements dated 8 October 2019 and 9 April 2021.

The Directors confirmed that the undertakings contained in
the Deed of Non-competition have been fully complied with
by the Group and the Remaining Concert Parties during the
Reporting Period and up to the date of this report.

Save as disclosed above and as of the date of this report,
none of the Directors or Controlling Shareholders or their
respective close associates had any interests in a business
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group, nor any other
conflict of interest which any such person has or may have
with the Group.

All the independent non-executive Directors are delegated
with the authority to review the Deed of Non-Competition.
The independent non-executive Directors were not aware of
any non-compliance of the Deed of Non-Competition given
by the Controlling Shareholders from the date of the Deed of
Non-Competition and up to the date of this annual report.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased or sold any of the listed securities of the Company
during the Year. The Company did not redeem any of its
listed securities during the Year.
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Arrangements to Purchase Shares or
Debentures

Apart from the sections headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures”, “Substantial Shareholders” and
Other Persons’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures” and “Share Option
Scheme” below, at no time during the Reporting Period
were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of Shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
Director or their respective associates nor was the Company
and any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors, or their respective associates to acquire
such rights in any other body corporate.

Equity-Linked Agreement

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” below, no equity-linked agreements were entered
into during Reporting Period or subsisted at the end of the
Year.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group is devoted to promoting and maintaining the
environmental and social sustainable development of the
regions where it operates. As a responsible enterprise,
the Group strives to comply with all the relevant laws and
regulations in terms of the environmentally friendliness, health
and safety, adopts effective measures, conserves energy and
reduces waste.

A report on environmental, social and governance matters
is set out in the section headed “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” on pages 22 to 67 of this annual report.

Compliance with Relevant Laws and
Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements and the risk of non-
compliance with such requirements. The Group conducts on-
going reviews of newly enacted/revised laws and regulations
affecting its operations. The Company is not aware of any
non-compliance in any material respect with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the business
and operation of the Group during the Reporting Period.
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Relationship with Employees, Suppliers,
Customers and other Stakeholders

The Group understands that the success of the Group’s
business depends on the support from its key stakeholders,
including employees, customers, suppliers, banks, regulators
and shareholders. The Group will continue to ensure effective
communication and maintain good relationship with each of
its key stakeholders.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee together with the management have
reviewed the accounting standards and practices adopted
by the Group and discussed auditing, internal controls and
financial reporting matters in connection with the preparation
of the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the Year.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Directors confirmed that, the Company has maintained the
amount of public float as required under the Listing Rules as
at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual
report.

Auditor

Reference is made to the Change of Auditor Announcement,
THKC CPA had resigned as the Auditor with effect from
the 18 January 2023 as THKC CPA was commencing
a reorganisation of their client base. The Board, with the
recommendation from the audit committee of the Board,
had resolved to appoint THKC, which the partners and
management are the same as the directors and management
of THKC CPA, as the Auditor with effect from 18 January
2023. Please refer to the Change of Auditor Announcement
for details. THKC will retire, and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM. A
resolution for its re-appointment as auditor of the Company
will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM. The Financial
Statements have been audited by THKC.
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Share Option Scheme

The Company has conditionally adopted a share option
scheme on 16 June 2016. The terms of the share option
scheme are in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 17
of the Listing Rules. Particulars of the share option scheme
which was adopted on 16 June 2016 are set out in Note 42
to the Financial Statements of this annual report. No share
options were granted since the adoption of the share option
scheme and there were no share option outstanding as at 31
December 2022.

The Remuneration Committee, at its meeting held on 29
March 2023, has reviewed the Share Option Scheme.

Disclosure of Interests

A. Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures
As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short
positions of the Directors and chief executives of
the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meanings of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFQO”)) which were notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which any such director or
chief executive is taken or deemed to have under such
provision of the SFO) or which were required pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
of members of the Company, or which were required,
pursuant to standard of dealings by Directors as referred
to the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange were as follows:
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Long Position in the Shares

AR 7 B 4F 2

Number of
Shares held/

Approximate
percentage of

Name of Directors Capacity/Nature interested in  shareholding
BE /BEER
Exps 5/ HE MROBE RESLEIL
Mr. Chan Interest in a controlled 376,531,400 34.07%
corporation (Notes 1 and 2)

PR A XEHlEERER (M1 &2)
Beneficial owner 18,630,000 1.68%
ExBEBA

Ms. Chan Josephine Wai Beneficial owner 3,275,000 0.29%

Sze
REFLL EmEAA
Mr. David Chow Interest in a controlled 19,324,960 1.74%

R EE

corporation (Note 3)

REH AR (HEE3)

Notes:

)

Mr. Chan owns 50% of Bright Creator, which in turn owns
approximately 34.07% of the entire issued share capital of
the Company. As such, Mr. Chan is deemed, or taken to
be, interested in all the Shares held by Bright Creator for the
purposes of the SFO. Mr. Chan is a director of Bright Creator.

Mr. Chan (together with Mrs. Chan, Bright Creator) are parties
acting in concert (having the meaning ascribed to it under The
Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Buy-backs) (the
“Takeovers Code”) pursuant to the concert party deed, the
supplemental deed, the first amendment deed and the second
amendment deed dated 25 September 2015, 6 June 2016,
8 October 2019 and 9 April 2021, respectively. As such, Mr.
Chan (together with Mrs. Chan, Bright Creator) together control
approximately 35.756% of the entire issued share capital of the
Company.

Mr. David Chow owns 37.5% issued shares of Sky Gain, which
in turn owns approximately 1.74% of the entire issued share
capital of the Company.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022,
none of the Directors and the chief executive of the
Company had any interest or short position in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO), which were: (a) notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO to (including interests and
short positions in which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO); (b) pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, entered in the register as
referred to therein; or (c) notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 31 December 2022, the interest and short
positions of the persons/entities (other than the Directors
or chief executive of the Company) in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which were notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or required to
be recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long Position in the Shares

BREXFREN R-_T__F+=
A=Z+—B BMEARAEZFRTE
THRABRAR B X E B EE
(EERRBHSMBEHROIFEXVER) 8 E
s - MR EEEFENR - #E @
RIBFES MAEHROIEXVERET 28D
MABARRA RO ERS MORE
(BREBRERZRAERIINZFHRX
BERG RSIRERB R SIRR)
(D) 1R 1% 78 7 S B & {5k ) 5 362 15k i2 A
& FRFrIE M B R B s MUK R © 3k(c)
RIBZEST R KA S AR B M B XA
B R MR R ©

FTERREEMATRES -
RO REEENEZER AR

R-ZZTE-_—_F+-_A=+—8 #H#
AL/ ER (ESHAR2FAHZSTHRA
BRI RAR B S AB B AR D P
ERBRBFRPEBRAIIEXVEE2 R
F 3D FMEBAA R R R TR
SRARIERE 75 &G 1505 336 1R AR
AATFENECMP ELHAOER K
KRBT -

NG vz R =)
Number of Approximate
shares held/ percentage of

Name of Shareholders Capacity/Nature interested in shareholding
BE/REER
i 5%/ %8 ZROEE REBNEDL
Bright Creator Interests held jointly with other persons (Note 1) 18,630,000 1.68%
B EEME AT HARENER (1)
Beneficial owner 376,531,400 34.07%
EREEA
Mrs. Chan Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 2) 376,531,400 34.07%
BRA Rz EER (F2)
Interests held jointly with other persons (Note 1) 18,630,000 1.68%
EEME S AL HARENER (1)
Sincere Expand Limited Beneficial owner (Note 3) 66,912,500 6.05%

HWHABRAR ExmAA (H5E3)
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Number of
shares held/

Approximate
percentage of

Name of Shareholders Capacity/Nature interested in shareholding
BE/BERED
& g/ HE ZROHE KRESHNEIL
Richmax Investment Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 3) 66,912,500 6.05%
(H.K) Limited (‘Richmax”) X #2 &% Bz (FFE3)
BRIRE(BFH)BRAA  Beneficial Owner 16,750,000 1.51%
(E&)) ERBEA
Mr. Cheung Yuen Chau Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 3) 83,662,500 7.57%
(“Mr. Cheung’)
RITMEE ([REE]D Xt xEER (HEE3)
Mr. David Chu (“Mr. Chu”) Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 3) 83,662,500 7.57%
REREE(REE]D s EEER (HE3)
Ms. Tsang Siu Lan Interest of spouse (Note 4) 83,662,500 7.57%
LRELT iofBEs (MaE4)
Ms. Phyllis Woon Kink Cheng Interest of spouse (Note 5) 83,662,500 7.57%
g+ A @iEz (M aEs)
Ms. Cho Sin Sum Fion Interest of spouse (Note 6) 19,324,960 1.74%
BRELLLT A (MzE6)
Notes: B o
1, Mrs. Chan, Bright Creator, together with Mr. Chan, are parties acting in 1. BEEH I NE-_Z—RFEFNA_+HAB =
concert (having the meaning ascribed to it under the Takeovers Code) T—XFEXAXNB - ZE-AFT+ANBERZ
pursuant to the concert party deed, the supplemental deed, the first T -—FMANBH—BITBALRY - #x
amendment deed and second amendment deed dated 25 September B4 E—ETRAORE_MHETRLY KR
2015, 6 June 2016, 8 October 2019 and 9 April 2021, respectively. X BRERBREEA-BITBHAL (RKE
As such, Mrs. Chan, Bright Creator and Mr. Chan, together control STRIFTE FRORE) - At - BRA - BREER
approximately 35.75% of the entire issued share capital of the BREEHKREHARRFZHBE HITRAAL
Company. 35.75% °
2. Mrs. Chan owns 50% issued shares of Bright Creator. As such, Mrs. 2. BRAMBBEDBITRMHIS0% - Fit - 5t &
Chan is deemed, or taken to be, interested in all the Shares held by FRHMEEFME  RAKEEARE ENELR
Bright Creator for the purposes of the SFO. Mrs. Chan is the spouse of RAENEZBROPEEER - RARBRILEN
Mr. Chan and is deemed or taken to be interested in all the Shares in BB - Bt B H RENE IR 5 #AR fESk
which Mr. Chan has, or is deemed to have, an interest for the purpose EERREERE IR EEERRHOTERM
of the SFO. R o
3.  Sincere Expand Limited is an investment-holding company 3. HABRAR A HRREBEXLHESFMAL

incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and wholly-owned by
Richmax. Each of Mr. Chu and Mr. Cheung owns approximately
46.67% and 40% issued shares of Richmax respectively. As such,
each of Richmax, Mr. Chu and Mr. Cheung is deemed, or taken to
be, interested in all the Shares held by Sincere Expand Limited for the
purposes of the SFO.

WIRERRAR BERZ2EEAR - KEER
REEZBDRIEESRA46.67% R40%E
BT ~EM MBS RS EANE - BA
REERKEEFERIEXWEERAAERA
RIEAMTA R RS R

Li Bao Ge Group Limited  Annual Report 2022 119



DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
BEEERE @)

4. Ms. Tsang Siu Lan is the spouse of Mr. David Chu and is deemed or
taken to be interested in all the Shares in which Mr. David Chu has, or is
deemed to have, an interest for the purpose of the SFO.

{53 Ms. Phyllis Woon Kink Cheng is the spouse of Mr. Cheung Yuen Chau
and is deemed or taken to be interested in all the Shares in which
Mr. Cheung Yuen Chau has, or is deemed to have, an interest for the
purpose of the SFO.

6. Ms. Cho Sin Sum Fion is the spouse of Mr. David Chow and is
deemed or taken to be interested in all the Shares in which Mr. David
Chow has, or is deemed to have, an interest for the purpose of the
SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2022, no
other persons/entities (other than the Directors or chief
executives of the Company) had any interest or a short
position in the Shares and underlying Shares of the
Company which were notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO or required to be recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336
of the SFO.

Connected Transactions and Related Party
Transactions

The Company had not entered into any connected transaction
during the Reporting Period which is required to be disclosed
under the Listing Rules. Related party transactions entered
into by the Group during the Reporting Period are disclosed
in Note 40 to the Financial Statements.

Other than the related party transaction disclosed in Note 40
to the Financial Statements, no transactions, arrangements,
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party,
and in which a Director or his connected entity had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, were entered into or
subsisted at the end of the Reporting Period or at any time
during the Reporting Period.

2023 Annual General Meeting and Closure
of Register of Members

The forthcoming annual general meeting (the “AGM”) is
scheduled to be held at Li Bao House, 4th Floor of Century
Square, 1-13 D’Aguilar Street, Central, Hong Kong on
Tuesday, 20 June 2023 at 10:00 a.m.
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The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 15 June 2023 to Tuesday, 20 June 2023, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of the Shares
will be registered. In order to attend and vote at the AGM,
all share transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Share Registrar,
Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited, at 2103B, 21st
Floor, 148 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong, for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 14 June
2023.

Change in Information of Directors

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the change of
information of the Directors is set out below:

e On 28 December 2022, Mr. Lee Cheung Yuet Horace
resigned as an independent non-executive director
of Asia Television Holdings Limited (stock code: 707),
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

Events after the Reporting Date of 31
December 2022

Details of the events after the reporting date of 31 December
2022 has been disclosed in Management Discussion and
Analysis section of this annual report. Save as disclosed
therein and elsewhere in this annual report, the Board is not
aware of any significant event requiring disclosure that has
taken place subsequent to 31 December 2022 and up to the
date of this report.

On behalf of the Board
Chan Chun Kit
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 29 March 2023

AARBR-_E-_=FA+HH (EHM)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B MBI R &

K@

TING HO KWAN & CHAN

To the Members of Li Bao Ge Group Limited
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Li
Bao Ge Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
130 to 254, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2022, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Material Uncertainty Related to Going
Concern

We draw attention to note 3.1 to the consolidated financial
statements which indicates that the Group incurred a net
loss of approximately HK$43,094,000 during the year ended
31 December 2022. As of that date, the Group had a net
liabilities of approximately HK$66,662,000 and its current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by approximately
HK$79,780,000. As stated in note 3.1, these conditions,
along with other matters as set forth in note 3.1 to the
consolidated financial statements, indicate that a material
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is
not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current year. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

FREERENERTRERE

BMRRE BT IESAUBRRMESA
EXPAREBEE T _—_F+_A=+—H
IFFE - BEEEESEFEEL 43,094,000
BLo-BEZHE  BESEMNFAGAYD
66,662,000 TR ERBEEHRBERD
EE#)79,780,000,8 7T © AN FE 3.1 B -
ZEBRERGAEVEHREM TIAMEN
HEMEBEXRA FEERTHEERZ 8
¥ BEEEMBFELCEENERERSEE
B BB FIHIERER o

FRRETEE

RERFMNEXHE  BREFZTESRK
MRRYBECAFEEAMBRERITIED
REEMNFH UFFHEAMEETHE
BEREMBRERALETKRERKETE
BWMEER RIS FRERES
MER

Li Bao Ge Group Limited  Annual Report 2022 123



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

B ZEEIRE (@)

Carrying value of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets of

restaurants

Key audit matter

HRESSE

HRYE BERRBEREAESR
ENREE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BHHESNAEREZSEE

Refer to notes 15 and 16 to the consolidated financial staterments

BRI E I EHRFEN T 15K 16

The carrying value of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets as at 31
December 2022 was approximately HK$18,794,000
and HK$62,847,000 respectively. The total
depreciation charge and net impairment loss for the
year ended 31 December 2022 were approximately
HK$40,115,000 and HK$16,962,000 respectively.
RZEZ__F+_A=+—H ' EEEHNY
* BMEARBREREEEZEREESNOR
18,794,000/ 7T % 62,847,000 8L c BLE T - —
FT_RA=+T—RHILFE @B FERIIKE
&5 18 7% 5 9 B 4 /40,115,000 7t K& 16,962,000
T °

Depreciation rates, useful lives and the carrying value
of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets are reviewed annually by the management.
The Group carries these assets at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment. The management considers each
restaurant as an individual cash-generating unit as
each restaurant generates independent cash flows.
The Group determines the impairment provision
based on the discounted cash flow forecasts of
underperformed restaurants. The preparation of
discounted cash flow forecasts involves the exercise
of significant management judgement, in particular,
in estimating projected revenue, growth rate,
operatmg margin and discount rate applied.

TEREESTFHUNE  BE K& ﬁ&fﬁﬁﬁééﬁﬂﬁ
%ﬁ EX CAEAFHARERELETES - BE5E
H#LL%F&WZKH%DHEE&EHE%\J}@ZTE)\
- BEREEREGRBERR —EAREREEELSE
i RAASHEAEHELABURERE . S
ERBEXRAMEAE R REARNHEEEH
BERE RUBBRERERAALREEEED
BRI - CHRMEEPIERZIERWA BRE -
AR R RITHEEK -
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We have reviewed the management’s estimates
and assertions regarding, estimated useful lives and
residual values of the property, plant and equipment.
B EHEREEHYE  BEMREBOGE A E
REBREFIRBEN A REH -

We have reviewed the management’s estimates and
assertions regarding, the appropriate lease term and
incremental borrowing rate that used for recognising
the right-of-use assets.

BRPEENEEENERAEREEEMRBNE
B EF B NOR S TN KPR E I eV (5T R B2 EA -

We have discussed the current status of leasehold
improvements and right-of-use assets of each
restaurant with the management team regarding any
indicator of possible impairment identified.

AP 2 BEAE ] AT B2 3R RUE ) 15 1R 61 E 3R E B X
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Carrying value of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets of

restaurants (Continued)

Key audit matter

HRESSHE

BEVYE BERREBRERAES
ENREE @

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMHESNAERZSEE

We identified the above assessment of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets as a
key audit matter due to the carrying value of such
assets are significant to the consolidated financial
statements and high degree of management
judgement was required in making assumptions and
estimations.
HRYE BERXKEBREREEENREEY
e BREMEBEAEERENELHBR
R REaEAE  AHBEMNEEEEE . &
MEF BRI RERETEFE -

We have assessed the reasonableness of the
projected revenue, growth rate and operating
margin of the relevant restaurants used in the cash
flow projections with reference to past results of
operations of the restaurants and management’s
development plans.
BHM2ZEEBENRKEXRENEBEENERT
2SI R B TRR A EEEZFERUA
BERREENBRHSEME -

We have reviewed the discount rate used in the cash
flow projections by comparing to relevant external
source of market data and tested mathematical
accuracy of the cash flow projections.

AP E 3 3B B AR B S0 B 05 BUR RORE TR
EReRERACAHANERXTAHXRERER
B8y 2w -

We have assessed the reasonableness of
management’s assumptions and critical judgements
by using the past restaurant operation experiences
within the Group.
ZFEREAEENATBENESELR  F1EHE
BENRELARABESSE -

We concluded that management’s conclusion and
estimates on assessing the carrying value of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets to be
consistent with the available evidence.

B ERE  BIEEMTEYE  BERREBR
gg@%i%%@%@fﬁﬁﬂ’ﬁﬁ B #Em MLt IR A
A UK T °
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the Other
Information. The Other Information comprises all information
in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon (“the
Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information
and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of the Other Information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend
to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in

discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risk, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Continued)

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
B 2B ENERE (@)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current year and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Mr. Wong Kam Chuen.

TING HO KWAN & CHAN
Certified Public Accountants (Practising)

9th Floor, Tung Ning Building
249-253 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

29 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meBmREMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #t2 —F — —F+ - H=4+—HIFF/ZF

2022 2021
—FE=-= —E-—
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FHET
(Restated)*
(&E7)~
Revenue Uy &5 8 135,552 274,566
Other income Hitb g A 8 7,180 6,656
Other gain H bz - 5
Cost of materials consumed FITFEM B R AR (51,730) (106,399)
Employee benefits expense EERAMAX 9 (50,801) (78,238)
Depreciation e 10 (40,115) (58,432)
Other expenses H i 10 (44,355) (74,658)
Operating loss REEE (44,269) (36,500)
Gain on early termination of RERIEERRFE
leases, net 24,879 i3
Impairment loss on amount JE U — & FEHERR IR R IR
due from a non-controlling BEEE
shareholder - (9,858)
Impairment loss on property, plant ¥1% - & K& &R E
and equipment, net E 18 F 5 15 (6,015) (406)
Impairment loss on right-of-use ~ EAEEEREREFHE
assets, net 16 (10,947) (14,309)
Impairment loss on intangible B EEREEE
assets 17 - (28,695)
Finance costs YR IDIN 11 (9,865) (11,533)
Loss before income tax BRETERAIE 8 (46,217) (101,288)
Income tax FTis i 12 3,123 1,150
Loss for the year FAER (43,094) (100,138)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income E b 2 m (E18), /WA
ltem that may be reclassified AIRERNE BB ABREN
subsequently to profit or loss: HH :
Exchange difference arising from 32 8§ 5 5 75 B 75 3R % MO &
translation of financial statements X, =8
of foreign operations (199) 982
Total comprehensive loss FRE2EBEAHE
for the year (43,293) (99,156)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)
mEelEREkEMEZAEWER @)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F — —#F+ - H=+—HIFF

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 5 FHET FET
(Restated)*
(&E5)~
Loss attributable to: AT ALE(GEE -
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE =N (41,352) (92,430)
Non-controlling interests FEVE RS (1,742) (7,708)
(43,094) (100,138)
Total comprehensive loss ITALTEGEZHEEIEERE
attributable to:
Owners of the Company KRNBHEE A (41,913) (91,369)
Non-controlling interests FEVERR B (1,380) (7,787)
(43,293) (99,156)
HK cent (4.12) HK cent (9.24)
Basic loss per share EREREE 14 AL 7L

*Note: Comparative figures for the year ended 31 December 2021 have been
restated for the change in accounting policy. Details of the restatements are
set out in note 4.2 to these consolidated financial statement.

The notes on pages 138 to 254 form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Ra R R

As at 31 December 2022 R —ZE - —4#F+=-H=+—H

As at 31 December As at
RT=A=t—-H 1 January 2021
2022 2021 W-T-—%
—B-= —E_—F —A—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
By 5E FExT FET FET
(Restated)* (Restated)
(&)™ (&E5)
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ~ ¥1% « BE K& & 15 18,794 38,592 57,297
Right-of-use assets FREEE 16 62,847 85,769 131,654
Intangible assets BEEE 17 - - 30,516
Rental deposits Heke 6,502 12,773 14,871
Deposits placed for life insurance R EES B RE R E
policies 18 - 2,247 2,176
Deposit paid for property, plant  #1% « BE MR ED
and equipment Ze - = 1,873
Deferred tax assets BIERIBEE 35 3,244 320 1,435
91,387 139,701 239,822
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 20 9,412 13,893 12,375
Trade receivables B ZRKFIE 21 1,603 2,302 5,462
Deposits, prepayments and e BNFEREAM
other receivables JE Wk IE 22 13,745 10,250 18,006
Loan receivable Y E R 23 1,470 3,706 10,000
Current tax recoverable A Y B B ER R TR 6 42 855
Amount due from a non- FE I — & FEFE R AR R
controlling shareholder $IA 24 - - 9,825
Amounts due from related JiE Uk B Bt 2 R R
companies 40 7 9 70
Financial asset at fair value BRRERABER
through profit or loss THEE 25 791 = =
Pledged bank deposits EHEFRITER 26 - 4,076 -
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReEED 27 23,503 26,817 28,949
50,537 61,095 85,542
Total assets EEALE 141,924 200,796 325,364
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)
GEBBEARRER @)

As at 31 December 2022 R —ZFE — —#F+=-H=+—H

As at 31 December As at
RT=A=t-H 1 January 2021
2022 2021 W-T-—%
—B-= —E-—F —A—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000
i TER TET TET
(Restated)* (Restated)
(L&)~ (&)
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to owners Z&A T #HE A E{EER
of the Company
Share capital [N 28 11,051 10,000 10,000
Reserves i (72,651) (50,756) 40,613
(61,600) (40,756) 50,613
Non-controlling interests FEERER (5,062) (3,682) 4,105
Total (deficit)/equity (B54t) RERAE (66,662) (44,438) 54,718
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities ¥RBEE
Lease liabilities HEBE 33 74,794 102,999 128,209
Provision for reinstatement costs 1& 18 f 25 & 34 3,475 3,833 4,573
Deferred tax liabilities BRERESE 35 - - 2,902
78,269 106,832 135,684
Current liabilities REAE
Trade payables B 5 BN FIE 29 11,638 16,646 19,418
Accruals and other payables ~ fEFHE B R E A0 fE(S
KIE 30 50,640 32,443 29,329
Amount due to a non-controlling & f — & JE# A% A 3R
shareholder B 24 1,262 723 241
Amounts due to related JE A< B Bt A R FUR
companies 40 1,117 307 =
Contract liabilities aRAaR 31 16,903 23,451 21,823
Bank borrowings RITIER 32 20,776 24,724 22,408
Lease liabilities HEBE 33 26,031 38,168 40,431
Current tax payable FE T BN HAT 18 - 28 =
Provision for reinstatement costs & 18 B A # & 34 1,950 1,912 1,312
130,317 138,402 134,962
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

GEBEARRER @

As at 31 December 2022 R —ZE — —#F+—-H=+—H

As at 31 December

“ As at

RT=A=t—-H 1 January 2021

2022 2021 RZTZ—%F

—s-= —T_—F —H—H

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

i FExT FET FET

(Restated)* (Restated)

(&5 (&E5)

Total liabilities BELE 208,586 245,234 270,646
Total (deficit)/equity and BB, BEREE

liabilities 141,924 200,796 325,364

Net current liabilities RBAEFE (79,780) (77,307) (49,420

“Note: Comparative figures for the year ended 31 December 2021 have been
restated for the change in accounting policy. Details of the restatements are
set out in note 4.2 to these consolidated financial statements.

These consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29 March
2023 and are signed on its behalf by:

CHAN Chun Kit
B i 45
Director

EF

The notes on pages 138 to 254 form an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GARRBDE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #t2 —F — —F+ - H=4+—HIFF/ZF

Attributable to owners of the Company

LIGE LN 1

Exchange Non- Total
Share Share Other ~ translation  Accumulated controlling equity/
capital ~ premium  reserves reserve losses Total  interests (deficit)
5:7
Rx  ROEE HEBE EXBE  ZiEE g FEREE  (BY)4E
HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSOO0  HKBOOD  HKS0OO  HKS000
Thn  TEr TR TEn AT TR TEn TEn

(note 37)

(Hit7)

Balance asat 1 January 2021 “EC-E-B-ANER(HER)

(as previously reported) 10000 98,884 423% (1524 (93807) 55949 4105 60,004
Changein accounting policy poted) ~ EHBREE (Hit4) - = = o 629 B3 = (,33%)
Balance as at 1 anuay 2021 etated ~ 8=~ - RIS (E3) 000 W LM (%) 09 B8 46 578
Loss for the year (estated) EnER(ES) - - - - 40 @80 [y (100139
Curency transiton diferences SEnEEE(E))

(restated) - - - 1,061 - 1,061 M 9%
Total comprehensive loss EnrERRER(E)

for the year (restated) - - - 1,061 @430 (01369 (1787 (99,156)
Balanceas at 31 December 2021~ Z¥=-FTZf=T-AHEH

festate) (85 000 B N6 B0 (94 [07H B (M4
Balance as at 1 January 2022 W-BZZE-3- Ak (ES)

(restated) 10,000 98,684 42,396 (570)  (191,466) (40,756) (3,082 (44.438)
Loss for the year EREE - - - - (B W35 (1740 (43004
Curency translaton cferences ghpEEE - - - (561) - (561) %2 (199)
Tota comprehenshie oss EMREERLE

for the year - - - (561) (41,352) (41,91 (1,380) (43,293)
Plecing o new shares rote 26 RENKA (i) 1060 2018 - - - 208 - 2069
Balanceasat 31 December 2022 W-B--E+-f=t-QlLH 11,051 118,902 42,39 (1,131)  (232818)  (61,600) (5,062 (66,662

The notes on pages 138 to 254 form an integral part of these $F 138 B EF 254 B T B S48 %

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n‘lj_\ EE%/)“JE%E

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % — & — —4#+ - A =+—HIFF/ZF

2022 2021
—=E=-= T
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5T FHExT FHET
Operating activities RETER
Cash generated from operations #& & FTBIRE 27(o) 10,178 41,810
Income tax refunded, net RGN FE 87 195
Net cash generated from RETHREZRE
operating activities FEE 10,265 42,005
Investing activities RETE
Interest received 2 S 202 304
Purchases of property, BEYME BELRE
plant and equipment (3,361) (4,132)
Payment of purchase of financial BB A B AEBZA
asset at fair value through SREENNTR
profit or loss (2,100) -
Proceeds from disposal of HEZERANEFAERD
financial asset at fair value EREENFTENIA
through profit or loss 1,283 -
Proceeds from termination of RIESBRENMSRIE
the life insurance policy 2,245 -
Proceeds from disposal of HEME  BER
property, plant and equipment R & TS FKIAE 24 10
Net cash used in investing REBETHFAZES
activities bk (1,707) (3,818)
Financing activities REES
Borrowing costs paid B fE SRR 27(c) (660) (634)
Repayment of bank borrowings  1EER1TE X 27(c) (2,846) 2,791)
Repayment of loan from BEEEEEX
a director 27(c) (4,000) -
Proceeds from loan from EEERWFAENIA
a director 27(c) 4,000 -
Proceeds from new bank FraRITE RGN
borrowings 27(c) - 4,000
Capital element of lease ENEEEARLD
rentals paid 27(c) (18,464) (32,069)
Interest element of lease ENEEF D
rentals paid 27(c) (8,472) (10,659)
Proceeds from placing of Bic & ¥ IR 17 7Y AT 15 3K 18
new shares, net FRE 28 21,069 =
Net cash used in financing METEHMAZEESEEE
activities (9,373) (42,153)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

mERERER @)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —F + - H =+ —HIFFZ

2022 2021
—E-= T —%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5T FHExT FHET
Net decrease in cash and HeRBESEEY
cash equivalents WD R (815) (3,966)
Cash and cash equivalents FHNEERESEEY
at beginning of the year 27(a) 25,715 28,949
Effect of foreign exchange B2EHNTE
rate changes (1,397) 732
Cash and cash equivalents FREGSRESEEY
at end of the year 27(a) 23,503 25.719

The notes on pages 138 to 254 form an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR R R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # % — & — —4#+ - A =+—HIFF/ZF

1

General Information

Li Bao Ge Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 1 September
2015 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law (2013 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands. The address of the Company’s registered office
and principal place of business are Windward 3, Regatta
Office Park, PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108,
Cayman lIslands and Room B, 5/F, On Fat Industrial
Building, 12-18 Kwai Wing Road, Kwai Chung, New
Territories, Hong Kong, respectively. The Company’s
shares (the “Shares”) are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the operation of a chain of Chinese
restaurants in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”).

Statement of Compliance With Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2022 have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes
all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”).

138 smmemsRAm —T--—EEERs

1

— &R

MEREEARAR ((X2AH]) K=
T-—HFNA—BRBEHRESHESAF
FE(ZE—=ZFEIIR EREHST
ML REREBR AR - AR Al
i 9% = B2 b 5 A Windward 3, Regatta
Office Park, PO Box 1350, Grand
Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands :
FTELEMBARBEBRAZLRELR
12-185 R BT X RNESEBE - AR
AR ((RBDREEBERSME
PRAR ([BERFT]) EMR o

ARB/—EREZRAR - EH B
NA (G [AEE]) T2EFBRT
FEARKME ((HE)) KEHAEE

ERVBHRELENSREH

BHE_T-_—_F+-_A=+—HL*F
EMREMBRRDEREERS
ISR ER ([ BRRBREER])
MEE  ZABEIEAEBSHEAA
e ((EREHMAE) BH AR
RERNESTERELER  FBESH
R ([EBEFER 2B -BF
TIBRRA 2 G ERI KB B D FEH
CHERTE WEREVBRRNF
AHMRMESFEMAMN T LEHRHRA])
REAEERT °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

ey
:%/T\/\

I ASERAR T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 82 —F -~ —F+ - A =+—HIFFZ

3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FESHBRHE
Policies

3.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2022 comprise the Company
and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“Group”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) which is the same
as the functional currency of the Company and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
where otherwise indicated.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for certain financial instruments which have
been measured at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements, are disclosed in note 6.

3.1 RBEXE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

AN
I%T\l:l

ISR MEE (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; 2

—E - —Ff —HA=1—HIFE

3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FTEFHBXRHEME @)
Policies (Continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2022,
the Group recorded a consolidated net loss of
approximately HK$43,094,000 and, as of that
date, the Group had net liabilities of approximately
HK$66,662,000 and its current liabilities exceeded
its current assets by approximately HK$79,780,000.

Notwithstanding the above results, the consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis, the validity of which is dependent
upon the success of the Group’s future operations,
its ability to generate adequate cash flows in order
to meet its obligations as and when fall due and its
ability to refinance or restructure its borrowings such
that the Group can meet its future working capital
and financing requirements.

The Group has taken a number of measures to
improve its liquidity position, including, but not
limited to, the following:

() the Group had interest-bearing bank
borrowings of approximately HK$20,776,000
as at 31 December 2022, of which
approximately HK$3.192,000 is repayable
within one year. The remaining interest-bearing
bank borrowings, amounting to approximately
HK$17,584,000 were classified as current
liabilities due to the existence of a repayment
on demand clause in the loan agreements. The
Group will actively negotiate with the bank for
the renewal of the Group’s bank borrowings
when they fall due in order to secure necessary
funds to meet the Group’s working capital and
financial requirements in the foreseeable future.
In the opinion of the Directors, the Group
will be able to roll over or refinance the bank
borrowings upon their maturity;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IIRRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 82 —F -~ —F+ - A =+—HIFFZ

3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FTESHBXHEE @)
Policies (Continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 3.1 REE%E (#)

(i) the Group is actively negotiating with banks to
obtain additional funds to finance the Group’s
working capital and improve the liquidity
positions;

(i) the Group will continue to take active measures
to control expenses through various channels
including human resources optimisation and
management remuneration adjustments; and

(iv) a substantial shareholder of the Company
has agreed to continuously provide financial
support for the continuing operations of the
Company so as to enable it to meet its liabilities
when they fall due and carry on its business
without a significant curtailment of operations.

After taking into consideration of the above factors
and funds expected to be generated internally from
operations based on the Directors’ estimation on
the future cash flows of the Group, the Directors are
of the opinion that there will be sufficient financial
resources available to the Group to enable it to
meet its liabilities as and when they fall due and
to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the
Directors have prepared the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue its
business as a going concern, adjustments would
have to be made to write down the value of assets
to their recoverable amount, to provide for future
liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-
current assets and liabilities to current assets and
liabilities respectively.

The effects of these potential adjustments have
not been reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 82 —F — —F+ - A =+—HIFFZ

3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FTEFHBXRHEME @)

Policies (Continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
The significant accounting policies applied in
the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

3.2 Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

Investments in subsidiaries are consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
company, and in respect of which the Group has
not agreed any additional terms with the holders of
those interests which would result in the Group as
a whole having a contractual obligation in respect
of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination,
the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IIRRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 82 —F -~ —F+ - A =+—HIFFZ

3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FTESHBXHEE @)
Policies (Continued)

3.2 Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests 32 ME AR RIFERER (@)

(Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests in
the results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of the
total profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between non-controlling interests and
the owners of the Company. Loans from holders
of non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as
financial liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position in accordance with notes 3.18.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are
made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained
in that former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount
is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of
a financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate or
joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 3.10), unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for
sale).
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FTEFHBXRHEME @)
Policies (Continued)

3.3 Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured
at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised
at their fair value, except that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets
or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes and
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

* liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree
or share based payment arrangements of the
Group entered into to replace share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-
based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below);

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are measured in accordance with
that standard; and
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 82 —F -~ —F+ - A =+—HIFFZ

3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FTESHBXHEE @)
Policies (Continued)

3.3 Business combinations (Continued)

* |ease liabilities are recognised and measured
at the present value of the remaining lease
payments (as defined in HKFRS 16) as if
the acquired leases were new leases at the
acquisition date except for leases for which
(a) the lease term ends within 12 months of
the acquisition date; or (b) the underlying
asset is of low-value. Right-of-use assets are
recognised and measured at the same amount
as the relevant lease liabilities, adjusted to
reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of the
lease when compared with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and
the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net
amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after
re-assessment, the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest
in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

When the consideration transferred by the Group
in a business combination includes a contingent
consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date
fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in
the fair value of the contingent consideration that
qualify as measurement period adjustments are
adjusted retrospectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FESHBXRHEME @)
Policies (Continued)

3.3 ¥4 6t @)

3.3 Business combinations (Continued)

Measurement period adjustments are adjustments
that arise from additional information obtained
during the “measurement period” (which cannot
exceed one year from the acquisition date) about
facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date.

If the initial accounting for a business combination
is incomplete by the end of the reporting period
in which the combination occurs, the Group
reports provisional amounts for the items for which
the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional
amounts are adjusted retrospectively during the
measurement period (see above), and additional
assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new
information obtained about facts and circumstances
that existed at the acquisition date that, if known,
would have affected the amounts recognised at that
date.

3.4 Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business (see the accounting
policy above) less accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the value in use of the CGUs to
which goodwill has been allocated. The value-in-use
calculation requires the Directors to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the CGU
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 82 —F -~ —F+ - A =+—HIFFZ

3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FTESHBXRHEE @)

Policies (Continued)
3.4 Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently when
there is indication that the unit may be impaired.

3.4
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For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting EEZHEmMS BoEkEEmEZ
period, the cash-generating unit (or group of cash- ReEFEM(KBReELEUA
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allocated is tested for impairment before the end of WA e SELREREE: 8
that reporting period. If the recoverable amount is BEEEE S LD AEURE ﬂ

less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit (or group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit
or any of the cash-generating unit within the group
of cash generating units, the attributable amount
of goodwill is included in the determination of the
amount of profit or loss on disposal. When the
Group disposes of an operation within the cash-
generating unit (or a cash generating unit within
a group of cash-generating units), the amount of

EERREE  WREEIREMN (3
ReELBUAR) ABEENR
EERLIIDEEEMBEE

REEHEBAREELBEMRRS
ELEUHENANTIARESEL
BNUR gRETHEENNE
BeRERAABENEBGEEE -
EAKBLERCELEM (R
TELABEMANAN—ERSE
EEBEM) ANEBRE  THERE
CREAHERE (XREELE

goodwill disposed of is measured on the basis of i) BfTREREEE B (SR
the relative values of the operation (or the cash- SEABMNMAR) FoaELEER
generating unit) disposed of and the portion of = e
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3.5 Intangible assets (other than goodwill) 3.5 ,mﬂ/EF (BER)

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination are recognised separately from
goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair value
at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their
cost).
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FESHBXRHEME @)
Policies (Continued)

3.5 Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

(Continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination (Continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite useful
lives are recognised at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses, on the same basis as intangible assets
that are acquired separately. Intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with indefinite
useful lives are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful
lives is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives. The
following intangible assets with finite useful lives are
amortised from the date they are available for use
and their estimated useful lives are as follows:

—  Trademarks 8 years
—  Cooperation contracts 8 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured
as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset,
are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 82 —F -~ —F+ - A =+—HIFFZ

3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FESHBXRHME &

Policies (Continued)

3.6 Segment reporting 3.6

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker (the “CODM?”). The
CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the Chief
Executive Officer (“CEQ”) of the Group who makes
strategic decisions.

3.7 Foreign currency transactions 3.7

(@) Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the consolidated financial
statements of each of the Group’s entities
are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”),
which is also the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions
or valuation where items are re-measured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income within ‘other
gains and losses’.
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FESHBXRHEME @)

Policies (Continued)

3.7 Foreign currency transactions (Continued)

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all
the Group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that
have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement
of financial position presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date
of this consolidated statement of financial
position;

(i) income and expenses for each profit and
loss account are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at
the dates of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Currency
translation differences arising are recognised in
other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 82 —F -~ —F+ - A =+—HIFFZ

3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FTESHBXHEE @)
Policies (Continued)

3.7 Foreign currency transactions (Continued)

3.7 HNERZ ()

(c) Group companies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that
is, a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation, a disposal involving loss
of joint control over a jointly controlled entity
that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of significant influence over an
associate that includes a foreign operation), all
of the exchange differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable
to the equity holders of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or
loss. For all other partial disposals (that is,
reductions in the Group’s ownership interest
in associates or jointly controlled entities that
do not result in the Group losing significant
influence or joint control) the proportionate
share of the accumulated exchange differences
is reclassified to profit or loss.

3.8 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FTEFHBXRHEME @)
Policies (Continued)

3.8 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost to their residual values, if any, over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold
improvements

Shorter of 5 to 8 years and
the unexpired lease term

Furniture, fixtures and 3 to 5 years
equipment

Motor vehicles 4 to 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

Construction in progress represents property, plant
and equipment under construction or pending
installation and is stated at cost less impairment
losses, if any. No provision for depreciation is made
on assets under construction in progress until such
time as the relevant assets are completed and
available for their intended use. On completion, the
relevant assets is reclassified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (see note 15).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised within ‘other gains and losses’
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FTESHBXHEE @)
Policies (Continued)

3.9 Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets arising from leases over
leasehold properties where the Group is not the
registered owner of the property interest are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (note 3.10).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of right-of-use assets are
determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date
of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
right-of-use assets, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method as
follows:

— The Group’s interests in buildings situated
on leasehold land are depreciated over the
shorter of the unexpired term of lease and the
buildings’ estimated useful lives, being no more
than 50 years after the date of completion.

— Items of plant and equipment arising from
leases of underlying plant and equipment are
depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired
term of the leases and their estimated useful
lives.

Where parts of an item of right-of-use assets have
different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each
part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of
an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed
annually.
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FESHBXRHEME @)
Policies (Continued)

310 FFERME ERE

3.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an
indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment.

Other assets are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal
and value-in-use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
the end of each reporting period.

3.11 Financial assets

(@) Classification and measurement of
financial assets
All recognised financial assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value.

Debt instruments that meet the following
conditions are subsequently measured at
amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows; and

e the contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.
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3.11 Financial assets (Continued)
(@) Classification and measurement of

financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following
conditions are subsequently measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI”):

e the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by
both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling; and

e the contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

By default, all other financial assets are
measured subsequently at fair value through
profit or loss (FVTPL).

The Group’s rental deposits, deposits placed
for life insurance policies, trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables, loan receivable,
amount due from a non-controlling shareholder,
amounts due from related companies, pledged
bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents
are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
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Policies (Continued)

3.1 Financial assets (Continued)

(b) Amortised cost and effective interest

method

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a debt
instrument and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) excluding expected
credit loss (“ECL”), through the expected life
of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount
of the debt instrument on initial recognition.
The amortised cost of a financial asset is
the amount at which the financial asset is
measured at initial recognition minus the
principal repayments, plus the cumulative
amortisation using the effective interest method
of any difference between that initial amount
and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss
allowance.

On the other hand, the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset is the amortised cost of a
financial asset before adjusting for any loss
allowance.

Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method for debt instruments
measured subsequently at amortised cost.
Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial
assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired. For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss
and is included in the “Other income” (note 8).
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FTESHBXRHEE @)
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3.12 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on
future events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the
counterparty.

3.13 Credit losses and impairment of financial

assets carried at amortised cost

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses (“ECLs”) on the following items:

— financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including rental deposits, deposits placed
for life insurance policies, trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables, loan
receivable, amount due from a non-controlling
shareholder, amounts due from related
companies, cash and cash equivalents and
pledged bank deposits).

Other financial assets measured at fair value are not
subject to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive).
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

3.13 Credit losses and impairment of financial

assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

For undrawn loan commitments, expected cash
shortfalls are measured as the difference between (i)
the contractual cash flows that would be due to the
Group if the holder of the loan commitment draws
down on the loan and (ii) the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive if the loan is drawn down.

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using
the following discount rates where the effect of
discounting is material:

— fixed-rate financial assets, trade and other
receivables and contract assets: effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition or
an approximation thereof;

—  variable-rate financial assets: current effective
interest rate;

— lease receivables: discount rate used in the
measurement of the lease receivable;

— loan commitments: current risk-free rate
adjusted for risks specific to the cash flows.

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort. This includes
information about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions.
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

3.13 Credit losses and impairment of financial
assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)
ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default events
within the 12 months after the reporting date;
and

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible default
events over the expected lives of the items to
which the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables, lease
receivables and contract assets are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
ECLs on these financial assets are estimated using
a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors and an assessment of
both the current and forecast general economic
conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments (including loan
commitments issued), the Group recognises a loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there
has been a significant increase in credit risk of the
financial instrument since initial recognition, in which
case the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs.
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3.13 Credit losses and impairment of financial

assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)
Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at
the reporting date with that assessed at the date of
initial recognition. In making this reassessment, the
Group considers that a default event occurs when (i)
the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations
to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising security (if any is held);
or (i) the financial asset is 90 days past due. The
Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

failure to make payments of principal or interest
on their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in a financial instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor; and

— existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligation to the Group.
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

3.13 Credit losses and impairment of financial

assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)
Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

For loan commitments, the date of initial recognition
for the purpose of assessing ECLs is considered to
be the date that the Group becomes a party to the
irrevocable commitment. In assessing whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition of a loan commitment, the Group
considers changes in the risk of default occurring
on the loan to which the loan commitment relates.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit
risk is performed on either an individual basis or a
collective basis. When the assessment is performed
on a collective basis, the financial instruments are
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics,
such as past due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit
risk since initial recognition. Any change in the
ECL amount is recognised as an impairment gain
or loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account, except
for investments in debt securities that are measured
at FVTOCI (recycling), for which the loss allowance
is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the fair value reserve (recycling).
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FESHBXRHEME @)

Policies (Continued)

313 Credit losses and impairment of financial M REBENEAIENEERE
assets carried at amortised cost (Continued) FEmEERE@®)
Write-off policy Bl S R

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
lease receivable or contract asset is written off
(either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the
case when the Group determines that the debtor
does not have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a reversal
of impairment in profit or loss in the period in which
the recovery occurs.

3.14 Contract assets and Contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group
recognises revenue (see note 3.26) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration under
the payment terms set out in the contract. Contract
assets are assessed for expected credit losses
(“ECLs”) in accordance with the policy set out
in note 3.13 and are reclassified to receivables
when the right to the consideration has become
unconditional (see note 3.15).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue (see note 3.26). A contract liability
would also be recognised if the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration before
the Group recognises the related revenue. In such
cases, a corresponding receivable would also be
recognised.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest
accrued under the effective interest method (see
note 3.26).
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FTESHBXRHEE @)
Policies (Continued)

3.15

3.16

3.17

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration. A
right to receive consideration is unconditional if only
the passage of time is required before payment
of that consideration is due. If revenue has been
recognised before the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration, the amount is
presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less allowance for
credit losses. See note 3.11 for further information
about the Group’s accounting for trade and other
receivables and note 3.13 for a description of the
Group’s impairment policies.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks and other short-
term highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less. Cash and cash equivalents
are assessed for expected credit losses (“ECLs”) in
accordance with the policy set out in note 3.13.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.
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3.18

3.19

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Trade and
other payables are classified as current liabilities
if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If
not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at
fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, trade
and other payables are stated at amortised cost,
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at invoice amounts.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to
the extent that it is probable that some or all of the
facilities will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is
deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent
there is no evidence that it is probable that some
or all of the facilities will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services
and amortised over the period of the facilities to
which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IIRRMEE @)
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FTESHBXRHEE @)
Policies (Continued)

3.20 Borrowing costs

3.21

All borrowing costs are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in the period in which they
are incurred since no borrowing costs are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualified assets.

Current and deferred tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

(@) Current tax

The current tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date in the countries
where the Company’s subsidiaries operate
and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FTEFHBXRHEME @)
Policies (Continued)

3.21 Current and deferred tax (Continued)
(b) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
statement of financial position. However, the
deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred
tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is
settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between
the carrying amount and tax bases of
investments in foreign operations where the
Company is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Offsetting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred tax assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there
is an intention to settle the balances on a net
basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; 2
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FTESHBXHEE @)
Policies (Continued)

3.22 Employee benefits

@)

Pension obligation

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in Hong
Kong under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance, for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The full-time employees of the Group in the
PRC are covered by various government-
sponsored basic pension insurance under
which the employees are entitled to a monthly
pension based on certain formulas. The relevant
government agencies are responsible for the
pension liability to these retired employees. The
Group contributes on a monthly basis to these
pension plans. Under these plans, the Group
has no obligation for post-retirement benefits
beyond the contributions made. Contributions
to these plans are expenses as incurred and
contributions paid to the defined-contribution
pension plans for a staff are not available to
reduce the Group’s future obligations to such
defined-contribution pension plans even if the
staff leaves the Group.

The Group’s contributions are charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income in the period they
incurred.
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FESHBXRHEME @)
Policies (Continued)

3.22 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)

Housing funds, medical insurances and
other social insurances

The PRC employees of the Group are entitled
to participate in various government-supervised
housing funds, medical insurance and other
employee social insurance plan. The Group
contributes on a monthly basis to these funds
based on certain percentages of the salaries
of the employees, subject to certain ceiling.
The Group’s liability in respect of these funds
is limited to the contributions payable in each
period, and recognised as employee benefit
expense when they are due.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the reporting date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits when it is
demonstrably committed to a termination
when the Group has a detailed formal plan
to terminate the employment of current
employees without possibility of withdrawal.
In the case of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy, the termination
benefits are measured based on the number
of employees expected to accept the offer.
Benefits falling due more than twelve months
after the reporting date are discounted to their
present value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —F + - H =+ —HIFFZ

3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FTESHBXRHEE @)

Policies (Continued)

3.22 Employee benefits (Continued)
(e) Bonus plans
The Group recognises a liability and an
expense for bonuses. The Group recognises a
provision where contractually obliged or where
there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.

() Long service payments

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long
service payments to its employees in Hong
Kong upon cessation of their employment in
certain circumstances under the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance is the amount of future
benefits that the employees have earned in
return for their services in the current and prior
periods.

A provision is recognised in respect of the
probable future long service payments
expected to be made. The provision is based
on the best estimate of the probable future
payments which have been earned by the
employees from their service to the Group to
the end of the reporting period.

3.23 Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the first-
in-first out method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories less all
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary
to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 82 —F — —F+ - A =+—HIFFZ

3 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

3.24

3.25

Other provisions and contingent liabilities
Other provisions are recognised for other liabilities
of uncertain timing or amount when the Group
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot
be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed
as a contingent liability, unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Provision for reinstatement costs

Provision for reinstatement costs represents
the present value of the estimated cost for the
restoration work of the Group’s leased retail shops
agreed to be carried out upon the expiry of the
relevant leases using a risk-free pre-tax interest
rate. The provision has been determined by the
Directors based on their best estimates. The
related reinstatement costs have been included
as leasehold improvements in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 82 —F -~ —F+ - A =+—HIFFZ

3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FTESHBXHEE @)
Policies (Continued)

3.26 Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers
Revenues are recognised when or as the control of
the good or service is transferred to the customer.
Depending on the terms of the contract and the
laws that apply to the contract, control of the good
or service may be transferred over time or at a point
in time. The Group can recognise revenue over time
if the Group meets one of the following conditions:

— provides the benefits which are received and
consumed simultaneously by the customer as
the Group performs;

— creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs; or

— does not create an asset with an alternative use
to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to
date.

If control of the asset transfers over time, revenue
is recognised over the period of the contract
by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation.
Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the goods
and services.

Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to
the customer for more than 12 months, revenue
is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction with the customer, and interest income
is accrued separately under the effective interest
method. Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing
benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under
that contract includes the interest expense accreted
on the contract liability under the effective interest
method.
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FESHBXRHEME @)
Policies (Continued)

3.26 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue recognition
policies are as follows:

(@) Revenue from restaurant operations

Revenue is recognised at a particular point
in time when customers have control over
the goods, which is generally the time when
the related catering services are rendered to
customers.

(b) Revenue from sale of food ingredients

Revenue from sale of food ingredients consists
of sales of dried foods sold to third parties and
is recognised at a particular point in time when
customers have control over the goods, which
generally coincides with the date of delivery.

(c) Revenue from cooperation with Freshippo

Revenue is recognised at a point in time
when customers have control over the goods,
which is generally the time when the goods is
delivered to or consumed by the customers.

Other income
Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues under
the effective interest method using the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.
For financial assets measured at amortised cost or
FVTOCI (recycling) that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset. For credit-impaired financial
assets, the effective interest rate is applied to the
amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of
loss allowance) of the asset (see note 3.11).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FTESHBXHEE @)
Policies (Continued)

3.27 Leases 321 fAE

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s)
and non-lease component(s), the Group has
elected not to separate non-lease components
and accounts for each lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single lease
component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets.
When the Group enters into a lease in respect of
a low-value asset, the Group decides whether to
capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The
lease payments associated with those leases which
are not capitalised are recognised as an expense on
a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate.

After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured
at amortised cost and interest expense is calculated
using the effective interest method. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or rate
are not included in the measurement of the lease
liability and hence are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in.which they are incurred.
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FTEFHBXRHEME @)
Policies (Continued)

3.27 Leases (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset
is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 3.9).

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change in
the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be
payable under a residual value guarantee, or there is
a change arising from the reassessment of whether
the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a
purchase, extension or termination option. When
the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration
for a lease that is not originally provided for in the
lease contract (“lease modification”) that is not
accounted for as a separate lease. In this case
the lease liability is remeasured based on the
revised lease payments and lease term using a
revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification.

The Group presents right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IIRRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 82 —F -~ —F+ - A =+—HIFFZ

3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FTESHBXRHEE @)
Policies (Continued)

3.28

3.29

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the members of the
Company and its subsidiaries is recognised as a
liability in the consolidated statement of financial
position in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the shareholders or director, where
appropriate, of the respective companies.

Financial guarantee contract liabilities

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payments when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contract liabilities are initially
measured at their fair values and, if not designated
as at FVTPL and do not arise from a transfer of a
financial asset, are subsequently measured at the
higher of:

e the amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9; and

e the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance with the revenue
recognition policies.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined
based on the present value of the difference in cash
flows between the contractual payments required
under the debt instrument and the payments that
would be acquired without the guarantee, or the
estimated amount that would be payable to a third
party for assuming the obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —F - H =+ —HIFFZ

3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 TEEHEXHME@m)

Policies (Continued)

3.30 Related parties

(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group;
or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IIRRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —F + - H =+ —HIFFZ

3 Summary of Significant Accounting 3 FTESHBXRHEE @)
Policies (Continued)

3.30 Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (Continued)

(iv)

(V)

(vii)

(viil)

One entity is a joint venture of a third party
and the other entity is an associate of third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R MBHmAMNEE @
For the year ended 31 December 2022 82 —F — —F+ - A =+—HIFFZ

4 SIBEEH

4 Changes in Accounting Policies

4.1 The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments

to HKFRSs, which are effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022. The
Group has adopted the following amendments
to HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s
consolidated financial statements:

Annual Improvements to Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs HKFRSs 2018-2020

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost
of Fulfiling a Contract

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has
had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior
periods and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; 2

B FE R RMIEE (@)

4 Changes in Accounting Policies (Continued)
4.1 (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, plant
and equipment: Proceeds before intended
use

The amendments prohibit an entity from deducting
the proceeds from selling items produced before
that asset is available for use from the cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment. Instead, the
sales proceeds and the related costs should be
included in profit and loss. The amendments do
not have a material impact on these consolidated
financial statements as the Group does not sell
items produced before an item of property, plant
and equipment is available for use.

The Group has not applied any other new standard,
amendment or interpretation that has been issued
but is not yet effective for the current accounting
period.

4.2 The Group reassessed its accounting policy for

property, plant and equipment with respect to the
class of crockery, utensils and linens. The Group
had previously capitalised the initial expenditure
incurred for crockery, utensils and linens with no
depreciation was provided thereon and recognised
the cost of subsequent replacement for these
items in profit or loss when incurred. In the current
reporting period, the Directors of the Company,
to cope with the recent economic environment
and prevailing industry practices, determined to
recognise all expenditures for crockery, utensils and
linens in profit or loss when incurred. The Directors
believe that the new accounting policy provides
more consistent, reliable and relevant information
to the users of the Group’s financial statements
to understand the financial performance and the
financial position of the Group.

The change in accounting policy has been
accounted for retrospectively and the comparative
figures for the corresponding comparative prior
periods have been restated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —F - H =+ —HIFFZ

4 Changes in Accounting Policies (Continued)

4.2 (Continued)

The tables below illustrate the affected financial
statements line items upon the application of the

new accounting policy for the prior periods:

Consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December

2021 (extract)

4 BEHEXEE @

4.2 (&)
TRIAREAMEERATES
BREZZENMBERRIEAR

As previously

2 - —%+ - A
+—HIEFEZHFEEE
TR (EnE)

reported Impact of As restated
2021 restatements 2021
ERER K&
—T—F Bl wE —T-—F
HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FET TET
Other expenses HinF sk (74,678) 20 (74,658)
Operating loss REEHR (36,520) 20 (36,500)
Loss before income tax BRFTBHAIEE (101,308) 20 (101,288)
Loss for the year FEEBR (100,158) 20 (100,138)
Exchange difference MEBINEB I B
arising from translation REENERZ8
of financial statements
of foreign operations 1,104 (122) 982
Total comprehensive FEZHEBRAE
loss for the year (99,054) (102) (99,156)
Loss attributable to: UTALTELES:
Owners of the Company AR RIHEE A (92,450) 20 (92,430)
Total comprehensive BUTATEEZES
loss attributable to: B
Owners of the Company AR AEA A (91,267) (102) (91,369)
HK cent HK cent HK cent
il Al AL
Basic loss per share BREXEE (9.25) 0.01 (9.24)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AREMTHmAMNEE @
For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —F + - H =+ —HIFFZ

4 Changes in Accounting Policies (Continued) 4 3RS E ®)

4.2 (Continued) 4.2 (&)
Consolidated statement of financial position fRE MBI R (BR3E)
(extract)

As previously

reported As restated
31 December Impact of 31 December
2021 restatements 2021
K28 w5
T —E-—F
+=-A=+—H BizwE +t-H=1t—H
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHAT TAT TAEL
Non-current assets *RBEE
Property, plant and equipment % - BiE N & 44,629 (6,037) 38,592
Deferred tax assets ELEREEE - 320 320
Total assets EEHAE 206,513 (5,717) 200,796
Non current liabilities ERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities ELEREAE 279 (279) =
Equity B
Reserves [ (45,318) (5,438) (50,756)
Total deficit and liabilities BEMREE 206,513 (5,717) 200,796
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MR RMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —#F 1+ —-H=+—HIFFE

4 Changes in Accounting Policies (Continued) 4 &5HBRS ) @)

4.2 (Continued) 4.2 (4&)
ERE SRR R (B3E) ()

Consolidated statement of financial position
(extract) (Continued)

As previously

reported As restated
1 January Impact of 1 January
2021 restatements 2021
I =l
—E-—fF —E-—fF
—HA—H ERdld-7 - —H—H
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FAET

Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment #1% R K& & 63,216 (5,919 57,297
Deferred tax assets BEREEE 852 583 1,435
Total assets EEHLE 330,700 (5,336) 325,364

Equity B

Reserves s 45,949 (5,336) 40,613
Total equity and liabilities ~ #EX R & 1E 330,700 (5,336) 325,364
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; 2

B FE R RMIEE (@)

5 Financial Risk Management

5.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk and cash flow interest rate risk
and fair value interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance. The Group does not use derivative
financial instruments to hedge its risk exposures
to changes in foreign exchange rates and interest
rates.

(@) Market risk
(1) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that
the fair value or future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates.
Foreign exchange risk arises when
recognised assets and liabilities are
denominated in a currency that is not
the Group entities’ functional currency.
Most of the income and expenditures
of the Group are denominated in HK$
and RMB, which are the functional
currencies of the respective group entities.
Even HK$ is not pegged to RMB, the
historical exchange rate fluctuation on
RMB is insignificant. Thus there is no
significant exposure expected on RMB
transactions and balances. Hence, the
Group does not have any material foreign
exchange exposure. The Group has not
implemented or entered into any type of
instruments or arrangements to hedge
against currency exchange fluctuations
for the years under review. As at 31
December 2021 and 2022, the Group
did not have any outstanding hedging
instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —F - H =+ —HIFFZ

5 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

5.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

@)

Market risk (Continued)
(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that
future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. Fair value interest
rate risk is the risk that the value of a
financial instrument will fluctuate due to
changes in market interest rates.

The Group’s interest rate risk arises
from bank deposits and borrowings.
Borrowings issued at variable rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk
which is partially offset by bank deposits
held at variable rates. The interest rate
profile of borrowings is disclosed in note
32. The bank deposits generate interest at
the prevailing market interest rates.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to bank balances and
bank borrowings. The Group’s cash flow
interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of interest rates on
bank balances and the Best Lending Rate
arising from the bank borrowings.

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to
effective interest rates for the variable-
rate bank borrowings at the end of each
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IIRRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —F + - H =+ —HIFFZ

5 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

5.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

@)

Market risk (Continued)
(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, if the
effective interest rates of bank
borrowings amounting to approximately
HK$20,776,000 had been 1%, 2%,
3% higher/lower with all other variables
held constant, loss before tax for the
year would have been approximately
HK$186,000, HK$372,000, HK$558,000
higher/lower respectively, mainly as a
result of higher/lower finance costs on
floating rate borrowings.

As at 31 December 2021, if the
effective interest rates of bank
borrowings amounting to approximately
HK$24,724,000 had been 1%, 2%,
3% higher/lower with all other variables
held constant, loss before tax for the
year would have been approximately
HK$215,000, HK$429,000, HK$644,000
higher/lower respectively, mainly as a
result of higher/lower finance costs on
floating rate borrowings.

B 7 [ B B (am)
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H BB A R 3, A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R MBHmAMNEE @
For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —F - H =+ —HIFFZ

5 Financial Risk Management (Continued) 5 HMEREKEERE @

5.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 51 B EKREZ @)
(b) Credit risk b) EERK

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty
will default on its contractual obligations
resulting in a financial loss to the Group. The
Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to trade receivables, loan receivable, other
receivables, amounts due from related
companies and amount due from a non-
controlling shareholder. The Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from bank deposits
is limited because the Group places their
deposits to certain reputable banks with a
minimum rating of “investment grade” ranked
by an independent party. See note 27(a) for
further disclosure on credit risk.

Trade receivables

The Group applied simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses
a lifetime expected credit loss allowance
for all trade receivables. To measure the
expected credit losses, trade receivables have
been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IIRRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —#F 1+ —-H=+—HIFFE

5 Financial Risk Management (Continued)
5.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

5 BEEkKREE@E
1 ﬂﬁﬁ@?ﬁ@%(%)

(b) Credit risk (Continued) ) EERPR (4
Trade receivables (Continued) EZE //J?/ry( 15 &)
The following table provides information about TEREHBEERAEBRNR_-F
the Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs T FRkZZFEZ=+=H
for trade receivables as at 31 December 2021 =t+t—HFEBENEERR
and 2022: kB SR RENERES
BENER
2022 2021
—ECCE “E--f

2022 2021 Gross Gross

Expected  Expected Loss  carrying Loss carmying

Status R lossrate  lossrate allowance ~ amount  allowance amount

“B-CF —“BC-F

REFE: BUERZ FERF FEEE FERE  REEE

% %  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000

% % TiEn TEn TEL Fir

Current il 4%-6% 4%-6% 72 1,285 110 1915

010 30 days past due BH0E0A 18%-22%  12%-16% 30 139 R 242

311060 days past due AH3IE60H 2% 14%-17% 6 24 1 63

Over 60 days past due BHEE0RN L 24%-100%  15%-21% 161 424 78 316

269 1,872 234 2,536

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past 3 years. These rates
are adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over
which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of
the receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MBmRME (&

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # = —

5 Financial Risk Management (Continued) 5
5.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

Fo—FIT-A=+—HIFE

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Loan receivable, other receivables and
amounts due from related companies

The Group applied lifetime approach to
measuring expected credit losses for loan
receivable, other receivables and amounts due
from related companies. The Directors of the
Company believe that there are no significant
increase in credit risk of other receivables and
amounts due from related companies since
initial recognition and the Group provided
impairment based on 12-month ECL.

In determining the 12-month ECL for other
receivables and amounts due from related
companies, the management of the Group
has taken into account the historical default
experience and forward-looking information,
as appropriate. The Group has considered
the consistently low historical default rate in
connection with payments, and concluded that
credit risk inherent in these Group’s outstanding
balances is insignificant. Accordingly, no
loss allowance based on 12-month ECL was
provided for these assets.

The management of the Group are of
opinion that due to evidence indicating the
loan receivable is credit-impaired, lifetime
approach is used to measure the credit loss
on the loan receivable. During the year ended
31 December 2022, the Group recognised
approximately HK$1,922,000 ECL for the loan
receivable individually. See note 23 for the
credit losses provision.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —F + - H =+ —HIFFZ

5 Financial Risk Management (Continued)
5.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(©

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements
and its compliance with debt covenants, to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash and adequate committed lines of funding
from banks and other financial institutions to
meet their liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term. Management believes that
there is no significant liquidity risk as the
Group is able to generate net cash inflow
from operating activities and has sufficient
committed facilities to fund its operations and
debt servicing requirements and to satisfy
its future working capital and other financing
requirements from its operation cash flows and
available bank financing.

The following table details the Group’s
remaining contractual maturity for its non-
derivative financial liabilities. The table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required
to pay. Specially, bank borrowings with a
repayment on demand clause are included
in the earliest time band regardless of the
probability of the banks choosing to exercise
their rights.

5 BIERER @

(©

1 BEERREE(E

7t B 14 2 e

Zfiﬁlﬂﬁﬂlﬁﬁmﬂﬁﬁﬂ
HEBERRSHESTE E
BTEERZE BRE&R
TEREHEBRERITRA
fitb & BB IR B S s R
BEEE UhREEHOR
FME R - EEERATE
ERERNRSMHRRE AR
AEBEEMNBRKEEEEH
FEEFHRERA UHEAR
FREEBMERFEER REM
WK EEBRERFIRED
BN BN EKER SR
ERAHERRITRE BT
HERXAREEEREMAE

Fok e

TRAJNAEEFETES A
BENKTSOIMEAE T
RIOBRBEASBEAEBESR
BESFRYNAESREA
%m*ﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁ
2o AEEME ﬁﬁELﬂx
Iﬁﬁﬁmmﬁﬂf R
i 4R 1T EHEE%ﬂMT
RERE ST ARTRER

Lessthan Between1 Between2 Over
1year and2years and5 years 5years
—FR -ZEME ZhE BEFENE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TERT TERT TET TERT
At 31 December 2022 R-ZB=Z#F
+ZA=+-AH
Trade payables BAREMNRIE 11,638 - - =
Accruals and it ERREM
other payables AN 50,640 - - -
Amount due to a non- B —2EERBRE
controling shareholder MFIE 1,262 - - -
Amounts due to related s AR
companies 1,117 - - -
Bank borrowings HRITIE 22,976 - - -
Lease liabilties HEBR 33,409 27,668 47,855 14,705
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5 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

5.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(©)

5 FHEAREE@
5.1 9% mE bR E (#)

Liquidity risk (Continued) (€) mBEER R (&
Lessthan  Between 1 Between 2 Over
1year and2years and5 years 5 years
—ER —EWF MERF AFUE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THT THET THET
At 31 December 2021 R=B=-%
+=A=+-H
Trade payables EC NG 16,646 = = =
Accruals and A ERREM
other payables JERFA 32,443 = = =
Amount due to a non- R —RIEEBRBRE
controling shareholder 0B 723 - - -
Amount due to a related FE —FIBE RS 1 FIFIR
company 307 - - -
Bank borrowings BRITIEN 26,965 - - -
Lease liabilties HEAR 47,257 43,731 59,398 17,499

The following table summarises the maturity
analysis of bank borrowings with a repayment
on demand clause based on agreed
scheduled repayments set out in the bank loan
agreements. The amount includes interest
payments computed using contractual rates.
The Directors do not consider that it is probable
that the bank will exercise its discretion to
immediate repayment. The Directors believe
that such bank borrowings will be repaid in
accordance with the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the bank loan agreements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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5 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

5.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

Fr_A=+—HIFE

5 BIERER @
51 B EKREZ @)
(

(c) MENER KR ()

Maturity Analysis - term loans subject
to a repayment on demand clause
based on scheduled repayments

IMESIT-BEREREEKRRN

EHER (RFBERBY)

Over Over
1 year but 2 years but
Within  lessthan less than Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years
BE-F BEMF
R—FR" ZWMFA ZLFR BEIF
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FTET TET FET
At 31 December 2022 HR_-Z - "%
+=-A=+—H 3,844 3,845 11,533 3,754
At 31 December 2021  MZZTZ—4
+-A=+—8H 4,574 3,773 11,319 7,299

5.2 Capital risk management
The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

52 EXEMRERE

AEBEAERRRRERAS
BB L  URIRRTER@ R -
RIS SR B E AR 0 & M F 2 - I
HERREBEARRBIARD E SR o

RERNABEARARE  AKH
ARBEINTRRERAOKREEHE
BREBEANTIRR - BTHRMDHK
HEBENRDBE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —F - H =+ —HIFFZ

5 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

5.2 Capital risk management (Continued)

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as interest-bearing debts
divided by capital. Debts are calculated as total
borrowings (including current and non-current
borrowings as shown in the consolidated statement
of financial position). Capital represents total equity
of the Group.

The Group’s strategy, which was unchanged
during the year, was to lower the gearing ratio to
an acceptable level. The Group’s gearing ratio at 31
December 2021 and 2022 were as follows:

5 HM¥ERERE®@

52 EXEEE (&)
BEEANHEMEIT &K AEEIA
BERELESELEERHER -
ZLE IR B EBBRIABARGTE -
BB RIEREE (BEGEE BN
MEFNRERE R IERENEFK) o
BAREREE @R -

AEERAFERFTINENRE
Eﬁﬁﬁh%mTMﬁiTE

RKF - REEBR-_TE-_—FK
—E-_F+=-A=+—HHE

EBELENT

2022 2021 1 January 2021

—E-—F

—E== —E-—F —H—H

HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000

THT FAT FAL

(Restated) (Restated)

(FeE%)) (FeE7))

Bank borrowings (note 32) 817 f& =k (Ff5E32) 20,776 24,724 22,408

Lease liabilities (note 33)  FAE & & (K{5E33) 100,825 141,167 168,640

Total borrowings &R 121,601 165,891 191,048
Total (deficit)/equity of the 7N 2 @148 (E54L),

Group W= (66,662) (44,438) 54,718

Gearing ratio BERELLE (182.41%) (373.31%) 349.15%

192 nmmemspAs —T-—saEHs



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —F + - H =+ —HIFFZ

5 Financial Risk Management (Continued)
5.3 Fair value measurement

U)

Financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the carrying value
of the Group’s financial instruments measured
at fair value at the end of the reporting period
on a recurring basis, categorised into the
three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in
HKFRS 13. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique as
follows:

—  Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

—  Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not
using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available.

—  Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs.

HK$'000
TR TR TR TR

B 7% [ B B X (@)
53 D AEFE
() BAAREFABZNTE

BE
RA(EE R
TREVAEBMRBRE R
RIEEMEERDNAENE
Mem T EREAE %54
MTEESZABTBY KRS
HERFEIBFEANESFEMR
FH=—AAREBEER K&
] 2 88 LA T 14 1B 7 5% B 5%
MBASENTBEREER
EEH EBETFANBESEH
EFfESEBMER

- E-REHE EERS
—BEABIE (IR R
B BB IR 45 71 3 51 A 2
£ 550 % B35 2 A 48
RERE) HEODSE -

- F_RMEE-EREZ
At ABUR (BIRBEZR
FE-MOABEHAH
%) B RERAEXRANA
BERERABEFENR
RfE- PABEH A
EREM S EES A A
ZEABUE

- F=ZRMEE-EREKX
TAIBEGARENE
B RTE °

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2022

categorised into

AREFERZE-ZF+=ZA=+-HEA

Fair value

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
ARE F—-& -k F=R
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000

Financial asset at fair XA M EFT ABRER
value through profitor ~ £ BEE
loss

— Unlisted unit trust fund - 3F F BRI EEES

791 - 791 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

ey

e MR ERMNE @

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —F - H =+ —HIFFZ

5 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

5.3 Fair value measurement (Continued)

U)

Financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss (Continued)

The fair value of unlisted unit trust fund, a non-
principal guaranteed investment fund, is based
on net asset value of the investment fund at
the end of the reporting period provided by the
financial institution.

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and
2022, there were no transfers between Level
1 and Level 2, or transfer into or out of Level
3. The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the
end of the reporting period in which they occur.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
carried at other than fair value

The Directors consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated statement of financial position
approximate their fair values as at 31
December 2021 and 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AREMTHmAMNEE @
For the year ended 31 December 2022 82 —F -~ —F+ - A =+—HIFFZ

6

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates
will, by definition, seldom equal to the related actual
results.

(@) Useful lives of property, plant and
equipment
The Group has significant investments in property,
plant and equipment. The Group is required to
estimate the useful lives of property, plant and
equipment in order to ascertain the amount of
depreciation charges for each reporting date.

Useful lives are estimated at the time of purchase
of these assets after considering future technology
changes, business developments and the Group’s
strategies. The Group performs annual reviews
to assess the appropriateness of the estimated
useful lives. Such review takes into account any
unexpected adverse changes in circumstances or
events, including declines in projected operating
results, negative industry or economic trends and
rapid advancement in technology. The Group
extends or shortens the useful lives and/or makes
impairment provisions according to the results of
the review.

6 TEEHHFTRHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 82 —F — —F+ - A =+—HIFFZ

6 Critical Accounting Estimates and 6 TE&:{hsHRHAE @
Judgements (Continued)

(b) Income tax (b) PTEH

The Group is subject to current tax in Hong Kong
and the PRC. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The
Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit
issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the current tax and deferred tax assets and liabilities
in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred tax asset is realised or the
deferred tax liability is settled. Deferred tax assets
are recognised only to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The Group’s management determines the deferred
tax assets based on the enacted or substantively
enacted tax rates (and laws) and the best
knowledge of profit projections of the Group for
coming years during which the deferred tax assets
are expected to be utilised. In assessing the amount
of deferred tax assets that need to be recognised,
the Group considers future taxable income
and ongoing prudent and feasible tax planning
strategies. In the event that the Group estimates of
projected future taxable income and benefits from
available tax strategies are changed, or changes
in current tax regulations are enacted that would
impact the timing or extent of the Group’s ability to
utilise the tax benefits of net operating loss carry
forwards in the future, adjustments to the recorded
amount of net deferred tax assets and income
tax expense would need to be made. In addition,
management will revisit the assumptions and profit
projections at each reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AREMTHmAMNEE @
For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —F + - H =+ —HIFFZ

6 Critical Accounting Estimates and 6 T E&&H b5 & H @
Judgements (Continued)

c EZRUREARERERT

(c) Estimated impairment of trade and loan

receivables

The management of the Group estimates the
amount of loss allowance for trade and loan
receivables based on the credit risk of trade and
loan receivables. The loss allowance amount is
measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows with the consideration of expected
future credit losses. The assessment of the
credit risk of trade and loan receivables involves
high degree of estimation and uncertainty as the
management of the Group estimates the loss rates
for debtors by using forward-looking information.
When the actual future cash flows are less than
expected or more than expected, a material
impairment loss or a material reversal of impairment
loss may arise accordingly.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 82 —F — —F+ - A =+—HIFFZ

6 Critical Accounting Estimates and 6 T E&&H b5 & H @
Judgements (Continued)

(d) Determining the lease term

As explained in policy note 3.27, the lease liability
is initially recognised at the present value of the
lease payments payable over the lease term. In
determining the lease term at the commencement
date for leases that include renewal options
exercisable by the Group, the Group evaluates the
likelihood of exercising the renewal options taking
into account all relevant facts and circumstances
that create an economic incentive for the Group
to exercise the option, including favourable terms,
leasehold improvements undertaken and the
importance of that underlying asset to the Group’s
operation. The lease term is reassessed when
there is a significant event or significant change in
circumstance that is within the Group’s control. Any
increase or decrease in the lease term would affect
the amount of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets
recognised in future years.

Contingent liabilities

The Group is exposed to the risk of litigation in
the course of its normal operation. The Group will
make provision and/or disclose information as
appropriate. Changes in the assumptions around
the likelihood of an outflow of economic resources
or the estimation of any obligation would change the
amount of provision recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 82 —F -~ —F+ - A =+—HIFFZ

7

Segment Information

The chief operating decision maker (“CODM”) has been
identified as the chief executive officer of the Company
(the “CEQ”) who reviews the Group’s internal reporting in
order to assess performance and allocate resources. The
CODM has determined the operating segments based
on these reports.

The CODM assesses the performance based on a
measure of profit after income tax. The CODM considers
all business is included in a single operating segment.

The Group is principally engaged in the operation of food
catering services through a chain of Chinese restaurants.
Information reported to the CODM for the purpose of
resources allocation and performance assessment
focuses on the operation results of the Group as a whole
as the Group’s resources are integrated and no discrete
operating segment financial information is available.
Accordingly, the Group has identified one operating
segment — operation of restaurants and no operating
segment information is presented.

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2022, there
are no single external customers contributed more than
10% revenue of the Group.

7

7 #R &

ETEEEREE ((TEEEREE)
ERAAEEAABREATERRAR
HERERNAD ATRAE (17 HA
B) - FERERREENBBRE

P T Wa
EELEDEL -

TERERREBRBHABTREER
M EFERR  BRAEERBAA—
BEEBHEZDE -

4 B R A P 2T 2 T
EHRSG - HAARECRAER -
EBHYMEESBHBEN  HAE
EEERREREARPRARRT
ERBHANER FETEAREED
(AR - B AEEIEYIR — (A4S
B H— BT - T 2R S
HER -

BT _—_—Ffrk-_ZFE_—_F+_A
—t+—BULHEFE WEEIHIPLREP
HAEBWHWEEBB10% °

Li Bao Ge Group Limited  Annual Report 2022 199



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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7 Segment Information (Continued) 7 HEER @
Geographical information hE &R

TREMWESIEE-_ZE-_—FK =
T -+ A=+—BIFE®XH

The following table presents revenue from external
customers for the years ended 31 December 2021 and

2022 by geographic area. INERR P R ES ©
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

Revenue from external customers R B M85 F #y I

Hong Kong BB 26,595 76,944
Mainland China R A B 108,957 197,622
135,552 274,566

The revenue information above is based on the locations

of the customers.

A EWsmEMTREPHEZS

1 January
2021
2022 2021 —T-—F
—g=-= T —F —A—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TAT FET
(Restated) (Restated)
(& &%) (L E5)
Non-current assets FRBEE
Hong Kong B 2,926 11,939 44,552
Mainland China F B i 78,715 112,422 174,915
81,641 124,361 219,467

LAERBDEEEMTIAEEMR S
HEE TEREREENEEHREE

The non-current assets information above is based on
the locations of the assets and excludes financial assets
and deferred tax assets.
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8 Revenue and Other Income 8 WamRkHEMUA
An analysis of revenue and other income during the years BHE_ T FR-_FT-__F+=A
ended 31 December 2021 and 2022 are as follows: =t+—HIEFENREREMKBAS
e

2022 2021

—E=-= B —fF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FHET

Revenue from customers and REESEINETEF KRS
recognised at point in time
Revenue from Chinese restaurant EUE IR E S S

operations 131,197 244,934
Revenue from Thai Cuisine restaurant Z= 32 & B8 ¥ 5 U 25
operations 4,338 10,210
Revenue from cooperation with HEBFEERE
Freshippo 17 18,826
Revenue from sale of food ingredients & & # Wz - 596
135,552 274,566
Other income Hapg A
Interest income on short-term bank %2 HA$R 1717 2 89 Fl B A
deposits 164 54
Interest income on loan receivable & U B 2k &9 F B A 88 300
Interest income from deposits SIESRREREN
placed for life insurance policies F B A - 113
Reversal of provision for B BB AR EF 5
reinstatement costs, net 361 204
Reversal of impairment loss on BEE S EKZIEREERR
trade receivables - 98
Government subsidies and incentive (i) BT 8 85 5 228 (i) 757 3,569
Government grants (ii) BT & B (ii) 3,947 2,214
Miscellaneous income FEIEBA 377 104
Forfeiture of deposits received BB Wik e 1,486 =
7,180 6,656
Total revenue and other income W R Hat W A &% 142,732 281,222
Total interest income on financial REIEKATENEHEE
assets measured at amortised cost  F B Uk A 48 %8 252 467
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —F - H =+ —HIFFZ

8 Revenue and Other Income (Continued) 8

Notes:

(0] Government subsidies represent the refund of VAT in respect of
COVID-19 from the PRC Government. The government incentive
represented the amounts granted by the Economic Development
Bureau of different districts in the PRC to support the Group’s
contribution to local economy with no unfulfilled conditions or
contingencies and are recognised as other income upon receipts
during the year (2021: same).

(i)  Government grants represent subsidies from Catering Business
Subsidy Scheme under the Anti-epidemic fund in respect of COVID-19
from the Hong Kong Government (2021: same).

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
by geographic markets is disclosed in note 7.

(i) Contract liabilities

The Group has recognised the following revenue-
related contract liabilities:

Y= R E A &)

MiEE -

[0} RS # BL & P B BUAT 36 COVID-1945 T HE (B
FRT o BT IRE) A BT R @R 848 B 2
RAXBAEEE S MCEEL ERMEMHE
W A& ARER G R AFENTIE - WHRKEE
BRAFERRRBEMBA (ZZ=—F : 18
@) o

() BT EB) A E BB R COVID-197E B & Hu &
EETRUMERENE B B4 T oM (=
T_—%: R -

REMBEANTNRETF A O KRS
ZAFBEBERMIFET

i) 8H8E
REBERRUTKRSHEEE Y
BE:

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—%F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FAT

Contract liabilities (note 31) X B EFFES) 16,903 23,451

(i) Revenue recognised in relation to
contract liabilities
The following table shows how much of the revenue
recognised in related to carried-forward contract

(i) BenamERRn K

TRINTHERNELZEFSNE
ERMHKESER -

liabilities.
2022 2021
== —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FHET
Revenue recognised that was FFAFVIE N BEER
included in the balance of 7 B B R W e
contract liabilities at the beginning (&£ 31)

of the year (note 31) 9,277 11,563

202 FEREEARAR —T--—EEERS



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IIRRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —F + - H =+ —HIFFZ

9 Employee Benefits Expense

9 EERAFAX

2022 2021
—EgE== — = —

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAET

Wages, salaries and bonuses TE - #saekiEse 46,663 73,047

Directors’ fees EEYoka 706 452
Pension costs — defined contribution R{R & AAN — R EHERET 2]

plans (note a) (ffzxa) 3,432 4,739

50,301 78,238

(a) Pensions — defined contribution plans
The Group’s net contributions to pension plans are
mainly for employees in Hong Kong and Mainland
China. Summary of the pension plans are as
follows:

U)

(i)

The Group contributes to an MPF Scheme
for its employees in Hong Kong, under which
the Group and each employee each makes
monthly contribution to the scheme at 5% of
the qualifying earnings of the employee, subject
to a maximum of HK$1,500 (2021: HK$1,500)
per month. Contribution totalling approximately
HK$89,000 and HK$7,000 were payable to the
MPF fund as at 31 December 2021 and 2022,
respectively.

The Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China also
contribute to retirement plans for its employees
in Mainland China at a percentage of their
salaries in compliance with the requirements
of the respective municipal governments in
Mainland China. The municipal governments
undertake to assume the retirement benefit
obligation of all existing and future retired
employees of the Group in Mainland China.

(@) BT —REHRKGE

AEBZRARESABIHIOFET
ERBEEMTEAMEEMR -
BRASFEIBEMT

) AEBAEEERERERLA
FIMEATESFTE BHAE
ErkEREREHEKREEZA
BRABS%IET AR 1
& AHFEE LR A1,5008 7T
(ZEZ—F 15008 7T) °
RZE-_—FR_FT_—
+=—A=+—8 " 2 Rlm&H
MAESEL A H£489,000
77T & 7,000 78 T B X o

(i) AEBERHHRAHDAH B A
RINMEBEETHBARE AT
B RELRERPBERAH
MEEBHEHAEFE—TH
DR R IKET B 5K o TR
FIRBEREMBEAE KKK
AEBRPEANMESHE
RBFEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e B IEERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 —F — —#F+ - H=+—HIFF

9 Employee Benefits Expense (Continued) 9 EEREAMEX @
(b) Directors’ emoluments (b) E=EH M
The emoluments of directors for the year ended 31 BHE-_T-_—_F+=-H=+—H
December 2022 are set out below: IEFE EF0ME&HIAT :
Basic Employer's
salaries, contributions
allowances  Discretionary to pension
Fees  and benefits bonuses scheme Total
ExFe- USHE |
it REREA MERA EIHx 45

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn

Executive directors: #iEs:
CHAN Chun Kit BiRE - 2,244 - - 2,244
CHAN Josephine Wai Sze RE 86 74 - 2% 884
ZHU Xuegin et 86 299 - 90 475
Non-Executive director: FyrES.
CHOW Yiu Pong Daiid Bis 8 - - 4 %
Independent non-executive BUFUES:
directors:
WONG Lung Tak, Patrck - o S
(resigned on 1 January 2022) —F—R&f) - - - - -
LEE Cheung Yuet Horace X
(appointed on 1 January 2022) (R=B-=
—-A-REER) 149 - - - 149
CHAN Ming Kei RyE
(appainted on 1 May 2022) (R-B-Z
LA-REZf) 9% - - - %
YUEN Ching Bor Stephen RERW-F=F
(resigned on 1 May 2022) TA-HEI) 50 - - - 50
KAN Sze King Kenneth o] 150 - - - 150

706 3,317 - 118 4141
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
eI IEIRRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F — —#F+ - H=+—HIFF

9 Employee Benefits Expense (Continued) 9 EERAMX W@
(b) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (b) EEHM @)
The emoluments of directors for the year ended 31 HE—_Z-_—4F+=-_A=+—8H
December 2021 is set out below: LEFE - EZMeHINAT :
Basic Employer's
salaries, contributions
alowances  Discretionary to pension
Fees and benefits bonuses scheme Total
EREe - U HE
e REREN ML EEiR ag

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
TR TR TATL TR TEL

Executive directors: #iEs:
CHAN Chun Kit BiRE - 2,244 - - 2,244
CHAN Josephine Wai Sze RE - 844 - 2 866
ZHU Xuegin £2 - 413 5 50 468
Non-Executive director: FUnES:
CHOW Yiu Pong Daiid iR - 8 - 4 )
Independent non-executive BUEHTES:

directors:
WWONG Lung Tak, Patrick - o S

(resigned on 1 January 2022) —A—RE&{) 150 - = = 150
YUEN Ching Bor Stephen RER(R-Z_ZF

(resigned on 1 May 2022) TA-HET) 150 - - - 150
KAN Sze King Kenneth Bty 152 - - - 152

452 3,587 5 76 4120
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —F - H =+ —HIFFZ

9 Employee Benefits Expense (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(e)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

No director waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments during the year (2021: Nil). No incentive
payment for joining the Group or compensation for
loss of office was paid or payable to any directors
during the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021:
Nil).

Directors’ retirement benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to the directors of
the Company during the year ended 31 December
2022 by a defined contribution plan operated by the
Group in respect of their services as directors of the
Company (2021: Nil). No other retirement benefits
were paid to the directors in respect of their other
services in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Company or its subsidiary undertakings
(2021: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
termination benefits during the year ended 31
December 2022 (2021: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties
for making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Company did not pay any considerations to any
third parties for making available the services of
themselves as directors of the Company (2021: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans
and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

No loans, quasi-loans and other dealings were
entered into by the Company or its subsidiary
undertakings in favour of the directors of the
Company, a controlled body corporate or a
connected entity of such directors at any time
during the year (2021: Nil).
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(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

9 EET/ABEXZ @

BEEEHMN @

RAFEE BEESHEXRE
WEEAHM(ZE-—F : &)
RBEZTE__F+=ZA=+—
BIEFE SESNKEMER
B E A KK B A 42 ok B B
B(ZE=Z—%F &) -

EERNKER
REBEE_E_—_F+_A=+—
HIEFE AEBEBZEEMNRTH
HEFE T ERARRESATIRMG
R EELMEMBRKRERN(ZF
T—FE) - BMEREFERER
ARAKEWNB AR EHEMREN
H b R 75 A H 2 A K A R KR FI
(ZF=Z—F: |\&) -

EERRER
NBE-_E-_—_F+-_A=+—
BEFE BEEECWEEB
WHE BB EN (2T —F
/) o
RENEEREMEE=FH
T H2ZRE
REBEE-_E-_—_F+-_A=+—
BIEFEE KD AW E 5 ERK
ZEABARRESHNREMMEE
MEZAXNEMNRE(ZE=—
F M) o

o

N

EHEUNEE EEoZE4H
TERBEERASTAZ
ER EERREMKRZ Z
=g
RAFEEAERA - AR aE %K
HBARBEIUNARRESE
BEEIZRHAENBEERS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IIRRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —F + - H =+ —HIFFZ

9 Employee Benefits Expense (Continued)

() Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts
Save for transactions disclosed elsewhere in the
notes to these consolidated financial statements,
no other significant transactions, arrangements
and contracts in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year (2021:
Same).

(h) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were
the highest in the Group for the years ended 31
December 2022 include three directors (2021: three
directors) whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented above. The emoluments payable
to the remaining two (2021: two) individuals during
the years are as follows:

9 EERTABEXZ @
0 EERRSE ZTHIEHNZ

EWN £
Bt SHRa BRI EEMEMR
BRE2ZXH0 UEERASE

E¥BmARBEAEFR—FAX
ARAEBNEFR (TwmEEIHEE)
BEEREDZ REAFFRINE
REMER) MEARS TR
AH(ZE=—F : i RA) -

(hy EVEEHF AL
HE-_T-_—_F#+=-RA=+—H
tFEE AEBRNESHFALT
BR=ZZ2FF(ZT=—F: =%
BE)  HENFHEHN LIS
Mo-RAFE BB TMA (=
T —F:WMB) ATHHMET

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET

Basic salaries, allowances BEXRES  ZREF
and benefits 1,042 966
Discretionary bonuses B IEAT 43 =

Employer’s contribution to BN EEEHK

pension scheme 32 36
1,117 1,002

The emoluments of the above two (2021: two)
individuals were within the following bands:

FMB(ZCEZ—F WA A
TEE FIATEE :

Number of employees

EBEAH
2022 2021
—E=-= S
HK$NIl - HK$1,000,000 Z T —1,000,000 7% 7T 2 2

No incentive payment for joining the Group or
compensation for loss of office was paid or payable
to any of the five highest paid individuals during the
year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

RBEZTE-_—_F+=ZA=+—
BEFE TENALRAEENE
BB EE BN TRM
BEeHALTHREA—(ZF=—
F | o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

AN
:%vj?:l

B IEERIRMIEE (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;

~—F — —
F = -

10 Depreciation and Other Expenses

Fr_A=+—HIFE

10 IEREMAEX

2022 2021
—E=-= T4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHxT FHET
(Restated)
(KEE5)
Depreciation e
— Property, plant and equipment —W%E  BEREE 14,482 19,119
— Right-of-use assets —(EREEE 25,633 39,313
40,115 58,432
Other expenses include the following ~ E AR BIEAT&IE :
items:
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 85 A 5 B
— Audit services —EBZ R 1,020 1,000
— Non audit services — TR 192 282
Amortisation on intangible assets m B EEH - 1,874
Operating lease payments of premises ¥ ¥ 48 & fH & 1~ 3¢
— Contingent rent for premises (i) — A2 () 27 1,743
— Coronavirus disease 2019 ——ZE-hnEREER
(“COVID-19”) rent concessions (fcoviD-19)) #a &
R (1,664) (3,224)
— Variable lease payment —FEBEEMNK - 687
Lease payments not included inthe ~ T2 E & BRI ETAK
measurement of MERK
lease liabilities 2,015 4,026
Impairment loss on trade receivables & 5 & U A i (B &5 18 51 =
Impairment loss on loan receivable R EFUREEE 1,983 =
Property, plant and equipment WEEE - BB K&
written-off 15 5,811
Bad debts written-off W SE = AR 53 2,072
Value-added tax (“VAT”) recoverable i 7] Ug [2] 1% (E 77
written-off (ii) ([HBEB]) (i) - 2,511

FRMEERERREEEED LS EEN
REASFENEERS -

(0] The contingent rent refers to the operating rentals based on pre- 0]
determined percentage to the restaurant revenue less minimum rentals
of the respective leases.

Mg AT e ER EERETNERWB AR

ZETERWBARMNAEREEATMEEET -
ERZETERMBARKIEEER  AQF
business, the management of the Company considered the probability BIEERA - FIFA A e S E A A a1
of utilising such VAT recoverable to be remote. TRIK -

(ii) The VAT recoverable written-off was mainly derived from the dormant (ii)
subsidiaries. These dormant subsidiaries are still entitled to the VAT
recoverable. Given that these dormant subsidiaries ceased their
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

W

11

12

e MR RMET @

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & 2

Finance Costs

—E - —Ff - A=+—HIFE

11 B A

2022 2021
—E=-= T4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET
Interest expenses on bank borrowings 8 77 & 2 F 8. F &% 631 634
Interest expenses on lease liabilites ~ FAE & & F| 25X 9,205 10,899
Interest expenses on loan from a BEEERMERAE
director 29 _
Total interest expenses on financial R AABEFABRNESH
liabilities not at fair value through BEMEFRXEHE
profit or loss 9,865 11,533
Income Tax 12 fr8%
2022 2021
== TEC A
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET
Current tax B HA B 18
Current tax on profits for the year F N H ) BN ER R I8
- the PRC — - 556
(Overprovided)/underprovided in prior @F FE (FREEEE), BiE
year & (83) 75
(83) 631
Deferred tax EER IR
Origination and reversal of temporary ~E4 M BB EFE=8
differences (3,040) (1,781)
Income tax credit FrisfiE s (3,123) (1,150)

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax is made in the
consolidated financial statements as the Group has no
assessable profits derived in Hong Kong for the years

ended 31 December 2021 and 2022.

R 7 & B 15

BHE_ 2 -_—4FFk-_F-_—"F+=H
Zt—HBLEEE #E
RARBAENESHEE ARAELAEE

W EREBISERTOGAH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 — & — —

12 Income Tax (Continued)

Fr_A=+—HIFE

12 T (@)

No provision for the PRC profits tax is made in the
consolidated financial statement as the Group has no
assessable profits derived in the PRC for the year ended
31 December 2022.

According to the PRC Enterprise Corporate Tax Law
promulgated by the PRC government, the PRC’s
statutory income tax rate is 25%. Except for certain
preferential tax treatment available to one of its
subsidiaries of the Group, the other PRC subsidiaries are
subject to income tax at the rate of 25% for the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2022.

The tax on the Group’s loss before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using
applicable statutory tax rates as follows:

BHE_T-__F+-HA=+—BHL*F
B BENGREVHERRAIRS HF
SHEE AALXERYTEN B
1S FE RT3 F o

RIFFPBRBFBEME R R EERE - B
BRETEHMEBMRE25% REE —
T - —FR_E-_—F+-_A=+—
BEFEE AEBEBR—ZFXHBRAZE
EETEEHBFEBI  Hibp B
B A B BIRTE R 25% BN 1SH o

7R 55 [ B P 15 750 AT A5 48 RO B R B 4%
REAEREAERSER LB M
FZZEMT

2022 2021
—E=-= =T =
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FHET
(restated)
(FeE%)
Loss before income tax BrET1S R A E 1B (46,217) (101,288)
Tax calculated at applicable BHRAEEREFTENTIE
statutory tax rates (9,274) (19,153)
Income not subject to tax BARNZ WA (2,846) (510)
Expenses not deductible for tax TR HOR 2 2
purposes 1,904 4,886
Current tax (overprovided)/ BEFEEETIIA
underprovided in prior year (BEERE) BB (83) 75
Tax effect of deferred tax assets MEFEREETIAEERTE
overprovided in prior year BENMETE - 647
Tax effect of temporary differences ~ RERERFEZHN MG L
not recognised (1,003) 5,391
Tax effect of tax losses not RERMIEBENHETE
recognised 8,179 7,514
Income tax credit TSt % (3,123) (1,150)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IIRRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —F + - H =+ —HIFFZ

13 Dividend

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment
of any final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2022 (2021: Nil).

13 RE
EEeE A TERERNEBEEZEZ
T CFt+ - A=+—HIEFENIH
RKEBRBE(ZEZ—F : &) -

14 Loss Per Share 14 SREE
The calculation of basic loss per Share attributable to the KRB B ARBEEREXREEBLR
owners of the Company is based on the following data: BUATEEBE -
2022 2021
—FE=-= —E-—
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
(Restated)
(K& &%)
Loss 8
Loss for the year attributable to the AArEBE AREFAER
owners of the Company (41,352) (92,430)
2022 2021
—s=-= T
’000 000
T F i
Number of Shares ii&vig - 4=|
Weighted average number of Shares  FLaT & & AR E A8 & FII#Y &
for the purpose of calculating basic D EE
earnings per Shares 1,004,895 1,000,000

Diluted loss per Shares was the same as basic loss per
Share as there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares
outstanding for the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2022,

HREBE_E-_—FRK_FT -
+- A=+ HULEFEVETFEE
BETERRG  HNEREEEEHE
BREXNEEER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MR RMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & = —

—E - —Ff - A= —HIFFE

15 Property, Plant and Equipment

15 W%  BERRE

Furniture, Crockery,
Leasehold fixtures and utensils, Motor  Construction
improvements  equipment linens vehicles  in progress Total
FEKE EH 428
HE%E EL EHE RE  RBIR ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Thn TiEn Thn Th Th
Cost B
At 1 January 2021 R=F--f-A-H 99,996 37,325 5919 1,537 4,207 148,984
Change in accounting policy (note 4) EHEUREE (Fi:t4) = = (5,919) - - (5.919)
At 1 January 2021 restated) WZFZ-5-A-H
(g %3)) 99,99 37,325 - 1,587 4207 143,065
Additions AE 4,546 1,459 - - - 6,005
Disposals/written-off (restated) 1% /#i3# (B &) (11,311) (4,629) - (323) - (16,263)
Transfer g% 3,065 1,149 - - (4.214) -
Exchange algnment restated) 3 5% (£ &7]) 1722 814 = 7 7 2550
At31 December 2021 frestated)  HM=F=—-F+-A=F-H
(8%3)) 9,018 3,118 - 1,221 - 135,357
Additions WE 2,154 607 - - - 3,361
Disposals/iwritten-off HE /Wi (24,283) (5,526) - (919) - (30,728)
Exchange alignment A% (6,261) (2,629) - (24) - (8914)
At 31 December 2022 RZBZ_#+-A=1-H 70,228 28,570 - 218 - 99,076
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

eI IEIRRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —#F 1+ —-H=+—HIFFE

15 Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 15 ¥ ¥ - M E kR & @)
Fumniture, Crockery,
Leasehold fixtures and utensils, Motor  Construction
improvements  equipment linens vehicles  in progress Total
FE-RE EH 428
HE%E FEL EHE RE  RBIR L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Thr T AL T Th
Accumulated depreciationand B fEREE
impairment
At 1 January 2021 RZS--F-A-H 58,851 25472 - 1,445 - 86,768
Charge for the year Rt 13,293 6,035 - 43 - 19,371
Reversal of impaiment loss BERERE (299) - - - - (293)
Impairment loss HEER 699 - - - = 699
Written back on disposal/written-off  H} EE5 2]/ 34 (7,162 (2,966) - (319) K (10,447)
Exchange alignment EiAE 1,052 610 - 5 - 1,667
At 31 December 2021 RZBZ-§+-A=1-A 66,440 29,151 - 1,174 - 96,765
Charge for the year iR 0977 4,480 - 25 - 14,482
Impaiment loss HEER 4,833 1,182 - - - 6,015
Written back on disposal/writien-off 1} &85 /5 (04,555) (5,215) - (919) - (30,689)
Exchange alignment EjA% (4,053) (2,217) - (21) - (6,291)
At 31 December 2022 RZE-ZF+-A=1-H 52,642 27,381 - 259 - 80,282
Net book value EEE?E
At 31 December 2022 RZBZZ#+-R=1-A 17,586 1,189 - 19 - 18,794
At 31 December 2021 (estated)  R-F-—%+-A=+-H
(&=31) 31,578 6,967 - 4 L 38,592

As at 31 December 2021, depreciation expense of
approximately HK$252,000 had been expensed in cost

of materials consumed.

R—_ZE-_—F+_A=+—8 &
[ 32 49252,0007% 7T B 5 A B FEE A K

X7 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # = —

15 Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, as
restaurants in Hong Kong and the PRC underperformed
and incurred losses due to the COVID-19 outbreak,
the management of the Group concluded there was an
indication for impairment and conducted impairment
assessment on recoverable amounts of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets of relevant
restaurants. The Group estimated the recoverable
amount of these restaurants, each represents an
individual cash generating unit (“CGU”), to which the
asset belongs when it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually.

The recoverable amount of each CGU is determined
based on value-in-use calculations by preparing cash
flow projections of the relevant CGU derived from
the most recent financial forecast approved by the
management covering the remaining lease term. The
cash flows are discounted using pre-tax discount rates
in the range of 12.93% to 14.26% (2021: 12.57% to
16.31%).

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of certain
CGUs exceeds their recoverable amount, therefore, a net
impairment loss of approximately HK$10,947,000 (2021:
HK$14,309,000) and approximately HK$3,015,000
(2021: HK$406,000) which was allocated to the
assets including right-of-use assets and leasehold
improvements within the CGUs on a pro rata basis, was
recognised in profit or loss in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Significant management judgement is required in
determining the appropriate key assumptions, including
revenue growth rate, gross profit margin and discount
rate, to be applied in the value-in-use calculation. The
change in any of these key assumptions would affect
the recoverable amount of the CGUs and could result
in additional impairment loss. If the projected revenue
applied to the cash flow projections for the CGUs had
been 6% lower than the management’s estimates, the
Group would have had to recognise further impairment
loss of approximately HK$3,446,000 for the year ended
31 December 2022.
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E- g+ A= —AIEE

15 Y% - BERRE @

HE_T-_—_FK-_FT-_—%F+=-A
=+—HILFE AR FZCOVID-19/%
BEE FAERPEBHBERBEAR
ENEXEE AEEEEESLEN
EwmAEREDR  THEBEEBEN
ME BELEKEBENEAEEED]
e BETREN G EELER
BErAT e S BEHNBRT  AEEY
ERBENT KRB SEEET T BT
ERBEEEMBAERNRECELEE
([REEEEMN]) -

EREeELEEMNTKESREIRE
REAEHE AZRAREMABRESE
EBEMNMIBRSRETEN WA ERE
B ERERNGEEHOIOTB
FEASH -REeRFEABRABIREN
T12.93% £ 14.26% (=& = —F :
12.57% £16.31%) HIF[E AHETTRLIR -

RZEBE-_—_F#+=-_A=+—H8"
PHEEELEBNZEBREBRBLET
WE &g ALt 410,947,000 % 7T
(ZZ = — £ : 14,309,000 7T) K& 49
3,015,000 7T (= & = —4F : 406,000
BIL) 2 BEBBFREEERLASER
REeEFBEMNAZEE (BIEFERES
ERHERE)  TRGReEaREE
e EW R ER BB -

REEEREBRFTERAZBE BE
PR (BIERGEEREE ERERHIR
) BEEETEDENHE - EM
ZERRBIRZEILLBEYERSES
B A7 2 A YR [B] & %A I AT L B BB AN
BEEE - WREELEENUBRESRER
BlrEANTERKAEEEREN G
L% AEBBEREBEZE T —_—
+- A=+t HUIEFEE—THERR
B 518 493,446,000 8 7T °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IIRRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; 2

15 Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

If the gross profit margin applied to the cash flow
projections for the CGUs had been 2% lower than the
management’s estimates, the Group would have had
to recognise further impairment loss of approximately
HK$5,283,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022.

If the pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections for the CGUs had been 1.5% higher than the
management’s estimates, the Group would have had
to recognise further impairment loss of approximately
HK$1,043,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022.

As at 31 December 2021, as a result of judgements
made by a court in the PRC, property, plant and
equipment of a subsidiary with carrying amount of
approximately HK$4,704,000 were frozen for outstanding
salaries and construction cost payables. During the year
ended 31 December 2022, the lease agreement of a
factory of the above subsidiary was early terminated. The
Directors of the Company expected that the economic
value of the property, plant and equipment is zero and
the Group recognised full impairment of approximately
HK$3,000,000 on the carrying amount of property, plant
and equipment of this subsidiary.

—E - —Ff =1 —HIFE

15 Y% - BMERRE @

HMEARREcEEAEMNE S RETE8
MEMNEREEEN GRS 2%
AEEBREBEE-_T__F+=A
—t+—HIEFEE-—THERHRASE
#75,283,00078 TT °

HMEARRcEEAEMNRE S RE TR
/o AT RE IR R & E IR B /Y {4 5T 15 0
15%  AEEBEREBEE_T——
+T-_A=+—"BLEFEE—FSERR
B8 491,043,000 7T °

R-ZEBE-_—F+-_A=+—H &R
fBA B fE H HIR - — R B A AR
HE{E 44,704,000 T2 W% - BE K
BERMAZ e REMEERK
mMEEE - RNBE T -_—_F+=-A8
=+—BLFE RAKLE @B
RAIZBEHERZ ARAIEEHE
% BMELAZBHLCEEERS -
MAEBRZHBERRNDE WE
NSRRI ERER 2 5 R A 3,000,000
PETT ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

R MBHmAMNEE @

2Ny =]

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;

~ —F — —
S

Fr_A=+—HIFE

16 Right-of-use Assets 16 FHEEE
Premises
Y ES
HK$’000
FHET
Cost RS
At 1 January 2021 R-ZE-_—F—H—H 211,763
Exchange alignment ME H, 58 & 3,894
Additions =T 2,259
Adjustments upon modification of  {&5] 1 & ¥ 7 &
the leases 8,031
Written-off 1 55 (18,735)
At 31 December 2021 A—E-——F+_f
=+—H 202,932
Exchange alignment ME W, B (11,058)
Additions NE 23,102
Adjustments upon modification of & 7] & b5 F7 2
the leases 6,448
Written-off G| (87,207)
At 31 December 2022 MRZTB__F+_H
=+ -H 134,217
Accumulated depreciation B HERRE
and impairment
At 1 January 2021 RZE-—F—H—H 80,109
Charge for the year FANETR 39,313
Reversal of impairment loss B e EEE (591)
Impairment loss VEREY Ei=! 14,900
Written-off 88 (17,810)
Exchange alignment ME H, 58 & 1,242
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IIRRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —F + - H =+ —HIFFZ

16 FRAEEE @)

16 Right-of-use Assets (Continued)

Premises
L/ES
HK$’000
FAET

At 31 December 2021 RZZT=Z—F+=A
=+—H 117,163
Charge for the year FRFHE 25,633
Impairment loss EEE 10,947
Written-off 88 (77,458)
Exchange alignment ME W, B (4,915)

At 31 December 2022 RZTEZZ=F+=H
E=E 71,370

Carrying amount REE

At 31 December 2022 RZE-_—F+—-A
E1=E 62,847

At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F+=H
E—F 85,769

AEECERHERZRSRYMER
EERAERBENED HEWHZ
IﬂfﬁmEﬁim’] HEEETBE
REREER

The Group has obtained the right to use properties as
its office and restaurants through lease agreements. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants. Leased
assets may not be used as security for borrowing
pUrposes.

%ﬁ%iﬁ%‘aﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁzimio—ﬂﬁ

C AREE R I E A EE N E K
%fﬂ%ﬂféﬁ? HERHE-_ZT—_—
FR-_E-_—F+-_A=+—HLF
ErIRE M H B D R4 & 26,936,000
75 7T I 42,728,000 7T °

The leases typically run for an initial period of 2 to 10
years. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning
and subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.
Total cash outflow for the leases for the years ended
31 December 2022 and 2021 was approximately
HK$26,936,000 and HK$42,728,000 respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —F - H =+ —HIFFZ

16 Right-of-use Assets (Continued)

During the year, lessors of the relevant leases provided
rent concessions to the Group, these rent concessions
occurred as a direct consequence of Covid-19 pandemic
and met of all of the conditions in HKFRS 16.46(B), and
the Group applied the practical expedient not to assess
whether the changes constitute lease modifications.
For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the
effects on changes in lease payments due to forgiveness
or waiver by the lessors for the relevant leases of
approximately HK$1,664,000 and HK$3,224,000
respectively were recognised as negative variable lease
payments.

The amounts recognised in profit or loss for the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 in relation to leases
are as follows:

16 FHAEEE @)

FR-HAAEENEHEARAIEEIR
HESEE  ZEHLEETICovid-19
AMITHEEZEER UKHEEBHB
HMEERF 16.46B) IEH AT B 5 -
AEERRERER 2R TFH%Z
EEYPELEXNEEBF - HEZT
T oERN—E-_—F+-A=+—H
HFE ANBAREZEXHREHEBEMA
EMERMNHEENRESZED RN
1,664,000 7% 7T N 3,224,000/8 7T © E &
REBAEHEERNK -

B2 -~ -_F-—F+=-HA
=+ HLEFE REZAGRHEER
RHEROT

2022 2021
== =Ti= T
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
Depreciation charge of FAEEENITERS
right-of-use assets 25,633 39,313
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENE 9,205 10,899
Expense relating to short-term leases E15% B E B BRI A X 2,015 4,026
Operating lease payments of premises ) 5 48 4 1 & (3%
— Contingent rent for premises —MESREE 27 1,743
— Variable lease payment —FBHEEMNK - 687
Total amounts recognised in RIEEANERN B SRR
profit or loss 36,880 56,668
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IIRRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —F + - H =+ —HIFFZ

17 Intangible Assets 17 B EE
Cooperation
Goodwill Trademarks Contracts Total
kS 2] BEER et

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT THT TR TAT

Cost ES?.ZF
At 1 January 2021 \ZEZ—F

—HA—H 16,326 11,613 SR 31,296
Exchange alignment BE 3,58 B 426 302 88 816
At 31 December 2021 RZE-—F

+-B=+—H 16,752 11,915 3,445 32,112
Exchange alignment BE K G EE (1,420) (1,010) (292) (2,722)
At 31 December 2022 RZTZZF

== H=3F—H 15,332 10,905 3,153 29,390

Accumulated amortisation B3t & &R E
and impairment

At 1 January 2021 RZE=Z—F
—H—H - 605 175 780
Amortisation charge FNEHER
for the year - 1,454 420 1,874
Impairment loss HEEE 16,355 9,573 2,767 28,695
Exchange alignment BE K G EE 397 283 83 763
At 31 December 2021 i =
+=-A=+—A” 16,752 11,915 3,445 32,112
Exchange alignment B 54, 58 (1,420) (1,010) (292) (2,722)
At 31 December 2022 il =
+=—RA=+—H 15,332 10,905 3,153 29,390
Carrying amount FESE
At 31 December 2022 i —
+-B=+—H - - - _
At 31 December 2021 RZZE-—%&
+-B=+—H - - _ _
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # =

17 Intangible Assets (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, amortisation
of the Group’s intangible assets has been charged to
other expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

Impairment test

For the purpose of impairment testing, intangible assets
in respect of the goodwill, trademarks and cooperation
contracts in the consolidated financial statements have
been allocated to an individual CGU, namely Yaoliang
(Shanghai) Food Co., Limited (“Yaoliang”), engaged in
operating food counters in Shanghai, the PRC.

At 31 December 2021, all food counters operated
by Yaoliang under the brand name of “Sun Kau Kee
(¥ # 52)” in Shanghai, the PRC, were closed down.
All relevant cooperation contracts with Shanghai
Freshippo were also terminated in September 2021. The
management of the Group considered that Yaoliang’s
business performance was unsatisfactory and decided
to cease its operations. The Directors of the Group
expected that Yaoliang would not generate any economic
benefit in the foreseeable future. The management
determined the recoverable amounts of the goodwill,
trademarks and cooperation contracts by reference to
Yaoliang’s fair value less costs of disposal to be zero as
Yaoliang has ceased its operations and had net liabilities
position. Having considered the above conditions, the
Directors of the Group considered there were indications
of impairment in Yaoliang and recognised full impairment
loss of approximately HK$28,695,000 for the year ended
31 December 2021 on the intangible assets including
goodwill, trademarks and cooperation contracts.

220 FEMERERAT —To—EEERE

—E - —Ff —HA=1—HIFE

7 BLEE @)

B2 -_—F+-_A=+—HIHF
B AEBENEFEEBHENES
BakHEA2EBRARNEMR L F
B ©

AR S
SUREARAMS  EEE  BEREE
MBREREEANBENETLEED
DRTERREEEEM  HER (£
BIRMAERDE (NER]) - ZARR
TEEBRELERMEE -

NRZBE-_—F+_A=+—H BER
FEEEUFARL] REEREEE
FFERmREMHYE@E B EE85
ZFIBHRBEEEATER T Z—
FNARILE - AKBEEREERERER
CEBRBATBABIREFILEE -
AEBEETEHRRNAITER KRS
TEEAFNKENZ BEEELS
EREZANBEREEKAEEDE
FEREEGHZAREEEAT
RRARBREEFLEERGFEFAEG
MR-tk LHliER AEBES
RERREFEREAFRIREE -
%+ -_A=+—BHIFERER
EE (PREE BEREELGYN) E
RBEUR BB 1B 4) 28,695,000 7T °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

g =

e MBwRNE @

For the year ended 31 December 2022 82 —F -~ —F+ - A =+—HIFFZ

18 Deposits Placed for Life Insurance 18 RESRRAERE
Policies
2022 2021
—E-= =Tt
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Life insurance policy ShiRE - 2,247
Life Insurance Policy %—Fﬁﬁ B

In April 2009, the Group entered into a life insurance
policy with an insurance company to insure an Executive
Director, Mr. Chan Chun Kit. Under the policy, the
beneficiary and policy holder is Orient Century Limited
(“Orient Century”), a subsidiary of the Company and
the total insured sum is USD750,000 (approximately
HK$5,850,000). Orient Century is required to pay ten
annual instalments of USD26,055 up to 30 April 2019
(approximately HK$203,229) including a premium
charge at inception of the policy amounting to USD8,100
(approximately HK$63,180). Orient Century can
terminate the policy at any time and receive cash back
based on the cash value of the policy at the date of
withdrawal, which is determined by the accumulated
deposit payments plus accumulated interest earned and
minus the accumulated insurance charge and policy
expense charge.

In addition, if withdrawal is made between the 1st to
15th policy year, there is a specified amount of surrender
charge. The insurance company will pay Orient Century
an guaranteed interest of 5.55% on annum basis for first
20 years. Commencing on the 21st year, the interest will
become 3% per annum plus a premium determined by
the insurance company on an annual basis.

During the year 2022, the Group terminated the policy.

RZFEZNFMA - AEBEE—RERE
/AWM.: —HERIRE  LBRITES
BRIREGESEAEIRR - BEBRE  XHRAR
1% SR BEAABRRGMBARREE

~E (TR - M4 {R%8 4 750,000
%fz(,«%’%,%o,oooiﬁﬁ) o BESED T+
& ¥ 15126,055 F 7T (49208,229 % 1) -
BHE_ZE-AFENA=1H " 8FEMMR
BT AR 8,100 JT (4963,180
FETT) o BES T AT RS R AR LR EE -
TR ERBHRENRESEEKE
Be MREEEDNERIFZENE

Bﬁﬂﬂ%ﬁﬂglﬂfﬁuﬂ% 2 Uy B R
BRIWEBET -
BE WREEZF+HEAREFE

MRR R “‘Tiﬂlﬂﬁlﬂlr&%ﬁLﬁﬁﬁﬁ
RBABERE - TFREBFMNE
5E5ERBBIMNAMNE -BE -+ —
FHEFEKREFNERIEFTH - L0
BEXNBARBRAREBEENRE

RIB-_FE  AEERIEZRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEERRMEE @)

g ——

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 — & — —

19 Financial Instruments by Category

Fr_A=+—HIFE

19 REFETHEMT A

2022 2021
—E=-= T4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Financial assets at amortised cost REHERAFIERNESREE
Rental deposits Heke 6,502 12,773
Deposits placed for life insurance SIESRRERE
policies - 2,247
Trade receivables 2 5 e RIA 1,603 2,302
Deposits and other receivables & &HE b FE W FRIE 12,699 8,956
Loan receivable FEWE R 1,470 3,706
Amounts due from related JiE Y A Bt 1 7
companies IR 7 9
Pledged bank deposit EEFIRITER - 4,076
Cash and cash equivalents ReERRESEED 23,503 26,817
45,784 60,886
Financial asset at fair value through 2 2 A EFT ABZEH
profit or loss SREE
Financial asset at fair value through &2 A 70 EzF AR
profit or loss ERMEE 791 -
Financial liabilities at amortised RBERATIENEREE
cost
Trade payables 2 5N IR 11,638 16,646
Accruals and other payables JEETE R & E b FE RIE 50,640 32,443
Amount due to a non-controlling JERT— B IEE R AR R B9 5K IR
shareholder 1,262 723
Amounts due to related companies  JE{ BE B A &) FRIE 1,117 307
Bank borrowings RITHER 20,776 24,724
Lease liabilities HEAE 100,825 141,167
186,258 216,010
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MR RMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # =

CECCFL A=+ HIFE

20 Inventories 20 78
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FET
Food and beverages B M 9,412 13,893
As at 31 December 2021 and 2022, there were no JJL/\\\: T— G Ru= B = s = H
inventories stated at net realisable value. = B EFER A EIRFEYER
21 Trade Receivables 21 EZEWRIE
2022 2021
—E-- —EFE—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE& T FBT
Trade receivables B 5 rWKIA 1,872 2,536
Less: Allowance for B RB RS 1B
impairment losses (269) (234)
1,603 2,302

The Group’s sales from its restaurant operations are
mainly conducted in cash or by credit cards. The credit
period granted by the Group to its customers ranges

from O to 30 days.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables based on
invoice date (net of allowance for impairment losses) is as

AEHEBEEXGHNEXRBEIENRS
KEAREE AKBREEFRL

HEEHSHNF0E30H -

REZBHEINE 5 RKFR (kR
BB R R EER) Rk TaA T

follows:
2022 2021
—E-= =T =4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
0 to 30 days 02 30H 1,213 1,805
31 to 60 days 31260H 109 207
61 to 90 days 61290H 18 52
Over 90 days 90 H M £ 263 238
1,603 2,302
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —F - H =+ —HIFFZ

21 Trade Receivables (Continued) 21 B 5 EWRIE @)

The Group applies simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected
loss allowance for all trade receivables.

Movements in loss allowance recognised in respect of
trade receivables are as follows:

AEBRABLET ATERREES
B RAEANMAE S ERFIRER
EHITR AR -

BhE 5 B U R IR B i R M S 1R Bt 4
BT

2022 2021
—Eg=-= - —

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHExT FHET

As at 1 January Rn—HA—H 234 325
Loss allowance recognised for FRNBRNEERE

the year 51 =

Reversal of loss allowance for FABBRERE

the year - (98)

Exchange alignment [ 3 & (16) 7

As at 31 December R+=—A=+—H 269 234

Due to the short-term nature of the trade receivables,
their carrying amounts approximate to their fair values
and are denominated in HK$ or RMB, which are the
functional currencies of the respective group entities. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is
the carrying value of trade receivables mentioned above.
The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

224 FEmMERERAT —To—EEERE

RESRWFAENERELFEA H
REEEEQAAEMESE  KBITHA
RE (REEEERNIEER)HE-
RESAHMEENEXEERRS
LHE ZEYKRIBENRAEAE - A E
WER B IEA BT mIERER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
eI IEIRRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —#F 1+ —-H=+—HIFFE

22 Deposits, Prepayments and Other 22 %% - JE{tTIE R H it B
Receivables b1 |

2022 2021
—E=-= =Tt rF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Rental deposits Hekse 16,342 16,870
Utility deposits ~NAE® 465 1,068
Other deposits, prepayments and Hiixe - BIREREM
other receivables FE YRR 3,440 5,085
20,247 23,023
Less: Non-current portion — B FERNHAER D —
rental deposits Hetkse (6,502) (12,773
Current portion BN EF &L > 13,745 10,250
The carrying amounts of deposits, prepayments and B BN RIEREMERKENER
other receivables approximate their fair values and are HEHEQAABREE  UBTHAR
denominated in HK$ or RMB, which are the functional BANSEEEERBNEER)GE -

currencies of the respective group entities.
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e EERRME @

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —F - H =+ —HIFFZ

23 Loan Receivable 23 EIRE X
2022 2021
—E- = T —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
Fixed-rate loan receivable TEFEEUWER 3,392 3,706
Less: allowance for impairment loss & : J8i (B B 18 B 1 (1,922) =
1,470 3,706

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s loan receivable
represented secured loan receivable denominated in
RMB of approximately HK$3,392,000 (2021: unsecured
loan receivable of approximately HK$3,706,000) due
from an independent third party bearing interest at
a fixed rate of 3.85% (2021: 3.85%) per annum and
repayable on 31 December 2022 (2021: six months from
the date of loan withdrawn). The loan receivable was
secured by 10.5% equity interest in a unlisted company
and guaranteed by two independent third parties (2021:
guaranteed by two independent third parties).

The management of the Group are of the opinion that
the credit risk of the loan receivable is considered to
be high due to default events occurred in 2022. Having
considered the recoverable amount of the security and
liquidity position of the borrower, the Group recognised
approximately HK$1,922,000 (2021: Nil) lifetime ECL
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

226 FEMERERAT —To—EEERE

R-EBE-_—_F+-_A=+—H ' K&
ErMEKRERERK— 2B LE=F
MEEBRARETENERE XL
3,392,000 T (ZF = —F : M|IKIHfE
I & 7 493,706,000/87T) * 1RG4 3.85
E(ZT——% :385E) AT X
SRR AEAR_E_—_F+-_A=+—
B(ZZEZ—F: BEXRINE BT
NER)EE - EBRERB —MIELN
NAElZ10.5% R EE ML B M B BT
FE=HER(CE_—F - EMEBL
FE=FER) -

$%E§ﬁgwug EE _7::
BEENEH BRERNEER

WREERE NEEREE Amﬁﬁm
ZANEcERRBESHAKRE K
SEREE_ZE-_—_F+=-_A=+—
BIFrFERRALHEHEEBEY
1,922,000 T (ZE=_—F : &) -
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AN
e

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —#F 1+ —-H=+—HIFFE

S ENERC )

24 Amounts Due from/(to) Non-Controlling 24 FEU“(FE{T) FEIERIRERKIE

Shareholders
2022 2021
—E-= = Fime E
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FAET
Amount due from a non-controlling &Y — 42 FE 2 B A% B8 7K 18
shareholder
Interest-free (note i) % 8 (HF&ED) 2,277 2,487
Fixed rate of 3% per annum (note ii) TE F F & 3E (M axii) 6,965 7,610
9,242 10,097
Less: Allowance for impairment AR EEERE (V)
loss (note iv) (9,242) (10,097)
Amount due to a non-controlling JE 5 — 2 FEE R AR 3R 3R IE
shareholder (note iii) (Bf 7 iii) 1,262 723

Notes:

0

(i)

Secured by a non-controlling shareholder’s entire equity interest in
Yaoliang and has no fixed repayment term.

Secured by a non-controlling shareholder’s entire equity interest in
Yaoliang and repayable in December 2021. No interest income was
recognised for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2022.

Unsecured, interest free and has no fixed repayment term.

The Directors of the Company are of the opinion that the credit risk
of the amount due from a non-controlling shareholder is considered
to be high due to default events occurred. Having considered the
recoverable amount of security and the liquidity condition of the non-
controlling shareholder, the Group recognised full impairment loss
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Wit

(i)

(i)

(i)

B —AIFERRRMNER M2 ERAEET AR
B EE R

A—RIFERRERRR 2 BREER A
RIZEZ—FT_AER BE-_T_—FK
T CHFF A=+ —HIEFE  WERER
FEUA o

R 2B RERETEERY -

KAREFRE HRBEEENEH  HEK
—BFERBERENEERBRERARS °
EREIKIR R 2 U E 58 R IR AR A A
PEEMN BHE-_T-_—F+-_A=+—8H
IEFE - AKERRBENERFE -
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e IEERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —F - H =+ —HIFFZ

25 Financial asset at fair value through 25
profit or loss

BARERABRENESREE

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—%F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
Unlisted unit trust fund (note i) JEETEMETEES
(P3Ei) 791 —

Note i: As at 31 December 2022, unlisted unit trust fund represented an
investment in a non-principal guaranteed wealth management
product managed by a financial institution in the PRC. The
investment has unguaranteed vyield, a fixed maturity date and can be
redeemed at any time. The fair value of the investment is reported
by the financial institution with reference to the net asset value of the
underlying instruments (mainly bank deposits and non-convertible
debentures) at the end of the reporting period.

26 Pledged Bank Deposit 26
No pledged bank deposits as at 31 December 2022.

As at 31 December 2021, a short-term deposit carried
at the prevailing market interest rate at 0.1% per annum
was pledged to a bank to secure short-term general
banking facilities granted to the Group, and therefore
classified as current asset.

The pledged bank deposit was denominated in HKS.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AREMTHmAMNEE @
For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —#F 1+ —-H=+—HIFFE

27 Cash and Cash Equivalents and Other 27 RE& R B EEBYREMER S

Cash Flow Information REER
(@) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a RERREEEYEES -
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Cash at banks IR{TIR S 10,486 26,696
Cash on hand FERS 17 121
Short-term deposits R EREE 13,000 =
Cash and cash equivalents in RErE B RR KRR
the consolidated statement of ReRREEEY
financial position 23,503 26,817
Less: bank overdraft (note 32) B RITE S (MIFE32) - (1,102)
Cash and cash equivalents inthe RGAIRESREXRMNIES
consolidated statement of RBEeFEY
cash flows 23,503 DTN
Maximum exposure to credit risk = E EES 23,486 26,696
Majority of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents AEBRE»REEREEEY
are denominated in HK$ or RMB, which are the B THARE (AISEREEN
functional currencies of the respective group e B8 sHE - RITIRESUAEA
entities. Cash at banks earns interest at floating RITHERMNEREERF X
rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-term BREUFI B o s HATF RS F & 3.5%
deposits earn interest at rates of 3.5% to 4.9% per £ 4.9% FHEF) S ©

annum.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R MBHmAMNEE @
For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —F - H =+ —HIFFZ

27 Cash and Cash Equivalents and Other 27 BERBELZEEYREMERE S

Cash Flow Information (Continued) REER @
(b) Reconciliation of loss before income tax b) BRAITEHAIBGIEEKERS
to cash generated from operations: REMEER :
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—fF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B &E FET FET
(Restated)
(EE75))
Loss before income tax BRETS BRI EIE (46,217) (101,288)
Adjustments for: IR
Depreciation e 15+ 16 40,115 58,684
Amortisation 5 10 - 1,874
Finance costs BRI 11 9,865 11,533
Interest income S A 8 (252) (467)
Premium charged on life insurance SRR B WEUR B
policies 2 42
Impairment loss on property, plant  #1% ~ BE & & 1%
and equipment, net MEBEFE 15 6,015 406
Impairment loss on right-of-use EREEERE
assets, net BEFE 16 10,947 14,309
Impairment loss on trade B2 RWHIERE
receivables g 10 51 —
Impairment loss on loan receivables FEY E R B & 18 10 1,983 -
Impairment loss on intangible asset & & & il (B /&5 18 17 - 28,695
Impairment loss on amount due ~ JEU— & FEIERR IR R
from a non-controlling shareholder 38 & & &5 18 - 9,858
Reversal of provision for BESE AN B
reinstatement costs, net SRR 8 (361) (204)
Reversal of impairment loss on BEE 5 ERHRIER
trade receivables EEE 8 - (98)
Gain on early termination of leases, 1RE & IFTAE 7 Wz
net FE (24,879) (13)
Rent concessions HERE 10 (1,664) (3,224)
Property, plant and equipment W% BE
written-off B 10 15 5,811
Bad debts written-off Eihedis 10 53 2,072
VAT recoverable written-off W 5H AT Uk [l (B R 10 - 2,511
Gain on disposal property, HEWME - BB RE
plant and equipment = - (5)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AREMTHmAMNEE @
For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —#F 1+ —-H=+—HIFFE

27 Cash and Cash Equivalents and Other 27
Cash Flow Information (Continued)

HehBEEEEBEYREME S
REER @)
(b) BRFTESHAIBEREKE RS

(b) Reconciliation of loss before income

tax to cash generated from operations:

(Continued)

REWHER: @

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
By &E TExT TET
Operating cash flows before EEELRHAMN
changes in working capital REBEHRE (4,327) 30,496
Changes in working capital: LEEE
Decrease/(increase) in inventories ~ F &R,/ (&) 3,602 (1,334)
(Increase)/decrease in trade B ZEdRIE
receivables (&), B (545) 2,345
Decrease in deposits, prepayments 124 ~ B 7B I
and other receivables Hofth e Y 5/ IE
NN 2,543 6,774
Decrease in loan receivable =60 - 6,294
Decrease in trade payables B I EMNKIE
A (3,919) (3,154)
Decrease in amounts due from JE UK B st A R BB
related companies B 2 61
(Decrease)/increase in contract aHBECD)/
liabilities #mn (4,805) 1,079
Decrease/(increase) in pledged BIEBIRITER
bank deposit wA/ () 4,076 (4,076)
Increase in accruals and other FEsT &R &
payables H fth &1~ SR I8
bl 12,141 2,542
Increase in amount due to a FERt — B IFER
non-controlling shareholder AR R SRIEIE 10 600 476
Increase in amount due to a e — B A /)
related company TR N 810 307
Cash generated from operations E&fERE 10,178 41,810
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —F - H =+ —HIFFZ

27 Cash and Cash Equivalents and Other

Cash Flow Information (Continued)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities:

27

(c)

ReRBEEBYRHEMEASE
REEN &

R

METHMELEEENYEER:

The table below details changes in the Group’s TR ASEERMEEDFTE
liabilities from financing activities, including both SEEZEH(BREES MRS
cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from SH)FE BMEBTDAMELEN
financing activities are liabilities for which cash flow BERASERGEHENER
was, or future cash flow will be, classified in the DERMEEDFEHEREN
Group’s consolidated cash flow statement as cash REMEBARKRSRE ©
flows from financing activities.
Bank Lease  Loan from
borrowings liabilities a director Total
RiTfEHR HEBE EREX FCES
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL THET FET THET
At 31 December 2020 and R-E-BF+=A
at 1 January 2021 =t+t-BRR
—B2--%¥-A-H 22,408 168,640 - 191,048
Changes from financing cash BEREFE#F :
flows:
Repayment of bank borrowings B 1T1E 3k (2,791) = = (2,791)
Proceeds from new bank RIS AEIE
borrowings 4,000 = = 4,000
Capital element of lease ENHEHESHNER
rentals paid v - (32,069) - (32,069)
Interest element of lease rentals B A &M & HFI 8
paid B - (10,659) - (10,659)
Borrowing costs paid BRI ERRA (634) - - (634)
Total changes from financing &t éf Rengc#®
cash flows B 575 (42,728) - 42,153
Other changes Hoth 2 B
Increase in leases liabilities from  F R HHAE M
entering into new leases EENHEERE
during the year o = 2,259 = 2259
Adjustment on the modification & 3170 & (& 7% 4 73
of the lease term - 3,751 - 3,751
Adjustment on early termination  #e R 42 F T ERFEE
of leases - (938) - (938)
Rent concessions HeR® - (3,224) = (3,224)
Interest expenses (note 11) 86 (BaE11) 634 10,899 = 11,533
Exchange alignment e 5 2508 = 2513
Total other changes HihF e 639 15,255 - 15,894
At 31 December 2021 R-B=--%
+=ZA=1+—H 23,622 141,167 - 164,789
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
eI IEIRRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F — —#F+ - H=+—HIFF

27 Cash and Cash Equivalents and Other 27 B& K Eﬁ%’ﬁ%& ifthiR &
Cash Flow Information (Continued) nEER @)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from

2

financing activities: (Continued)

() ﬁ%)ﬁiﬁiﬂﬁﬁéiﬁ%ﬂ’ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁ :

—~

b

Bank Lease Loan from
borrowings liabilities  a director Total
RITER HEEE EZEXR B
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
THER TERT TERT TER
At 31 December 2021 and R=B=--%+=A
at 1 January 2022 =t-BRR
“E-_"%-AF-H 23,622 141,167 - 164,789
Changes from financing cash BEREHREZ 2 :
flows:
Repayment of bank borrowings & 3& SR 1715 (2,846) - - (2,846)
Proceeds from loan from a EXZEFMERE
director - - 4,000 4,000
Repayment of loan from a BEEEEN
director - - (4,000) (4,000)
Capital element of lease BENEERSHNER
rentals paid B - (18,464) - (18,464)
Interest element of lease rentals 2 FAEM & I FI 2
paid B - (8,472) - (8,472)
Borrowing costs paid B &R (631) - (29) (660)
Total changes from financing &% ﬁ BeRE 28
cash flows k] (3,477) (26,936) (29) (30,442)
Other changes Hith 25
Increase in leases liabilities from S ARE] A EM
entering into new leases EENHEERE
during the year #n - 22,240 - 22,240
Adjustment on the modification &3] E & HHFEE
of the lease term - 6,448 - 6,448
Transfer to other payables BREHMENFIR - (6,842) - (6,842)
Adjustment on early termination 1R R4 LT EWFAE
of leases - (34,628) - (34,628)
Rent concessions HeR® - (1,664) - (1,664)
Interest expenses (note 11) FMERx (FEE11) 631 9,205 29 9,865
Exchange alignment fE 5 - (8,165) - (8,165)
Total other changes Hub g 631 (13,406) 29 (12,746)
At 31 December 2022 R-B=Zf
+=-A=+-8 20,776 100,825 - 121,601

Li Bao Ge Group Limited

Annual Report 2022 233



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —F - H =+ —HIFFZ

28 Share Capital 28 IR A
Number of Nominal value
Ordinary of Ordinary
shares share
ZBEREE EEREE
HK$’'000
FHET
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each R-—ZZE-_—%—H—H8-
as at 1 January 2021, ZEZ—FR
31 December 2021 and 2022 —E-—_H+—-A
=+—HERMEEO0.01
Boz EBik 2,000,000,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTREE:
As at 1 January 2021 and RZE-_—F—H—HBK
31 December 2021 —E-—F+=A
= =H 1,000,000,000 10,000
Issue of shares upon placing (note) REERFEITRD (M52 105,100,000 1,051
As at 31 December 2022 A
+—-_A=+—H 1,105,100,000 11,051

Note: On 22 November 2022, the Company and the placing agent entered
into the placing agreement, pursuant to which the Company has
conditionally agreed to place through the placing agents 105,100,000
placing shares (“Placing Shares”) to not less than six placees at
the HK$0.204 per Placing Share. The placing was completed on
15 December 2022. An aggregate of 105,100,000 Placing Shares
have been placed to not less than six placees at HK$0.204 per
Placing Share pursuant to the terms and conditions of the placing
agreement. The gross proceeds and the net proceeds (after deduction
of the relevant expenses and fees) from the placing amounted to
approximately HK$21,440,000 and approximately HK$21,069,000,
respectively. The Company intends to use the net proceeds for the
purposes of replenishing the working capital of the Group, repayment
of debts and developing the Group’s business in Hong Kong and
China.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

W

e MR RMET @

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —F + - H =+ —HIFFZ

29 Trade Payables

30

The ageing analysis of trade payables based on invoice

29 ¥ 5 ENRIR
BRZAH2IINE SN RARR

date is as follows: DITEAT -
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FATT
0 to 30 days 0Z30H 2,284 6,943
31 to 60 days 31260H 2,751 3,443
61 to 90 days 61290 H 1,273 1,256
Over 90 days 90 B Ak 5,330 5,004
11,638 16,646

The carrying amounts of trade payables approximate
their fair values and are denominated in HK$ or RMB,
which are the functional currencies of the respective
group entities.

B RNRANKROEZLQREN
H YAETKARB (REEEER

KL E®) FHE

Accruals and Other payables 30 EtERARHMWEANKIE
2022 2021
—g-= CE—

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FHET

Accrued expenses EFtER 32,425 26,096

Other payables H th & 1~ 3RIB 17,275 5,510

Temporary receipts UK 940 837
Total accruals and other payables Bt ER R EM

e IB 485 50,640 32,443

All of the accruals and other payables are expected to be
settled or recognised as income within one year or are
repayable on demand.

The carrying amounts of accruals and other payables
approximate their fair values and are denominated in
HK$ or RMB, which are the functional currencies of the
respective group entities.

B FE AT & R I H A 8 5 5K TR 78 B
E—FREBRERR/LA  HIRF

g -

FEET & A N HE fth B A RIR &Y R T {E 2R
HRAREBEEE  LABTRHARE (B
EEEERNEEE)E-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —F - H =+ —HIFFZ

31 Contract Liabilities 31 EHNEE
The Group has recognised the following revenue-related AEEDHABUTRSEBESHNEE -
contract liabilities.

2022 2021

—E-= T —F

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FExT FHET

Current mE 16,903 23,451
Contract liabilities represent the advance payments S ON=! Tf ?Eu B P IEAFRIE - M AE AR
from customers, while the underlying services are not i‘“b"\ —E—Fk= 3 —ZF+ZAR
yet provided as at 31 December 2021 and 2022. The —t—BRAREHF - aHNBEEHS

contract liabilities are expected to be recognised as
income within one year and are classified as current

RN

liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial

ﬁé—iﬁﬂﬁﬁmﬁﬂﬁz}\&ﬁ(\%éﬁﬂ%ﬂﬁ
ﬁ)‘iﬁﬁum@gﬁl °

position.
Movement in the contract liabilities balances during the RBE_FT-—FRT__F+=
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2022 is as follows: A= + HIEFENEHNAGEERD
gEgmTr
2022 2021
—g=-= —E-—f
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HMEREE 23,451 21,823
Exchange alignment b 5, 3 2 (1,743) 549
Revenue recognised during the year A 2 FERURZS (B 73 8(i))
(note 8(i) (9,277) (11,563)
Forfeiture of deposits recognised BRBFERBWANILZ S
as income (note 8) (FffzE8) (1,486) -
Consideration received from BEREFPRE  TEEFA
customers, excluding amounts B R AW S IR
recognised as revenue during
the year 5,958 12,642
Carrying amount at 31 December R+-—A=+—B®EAE 16,903 23,451
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AREMTHmAMNEE @
For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —F + - H =+ —HIFFZ

32 Bank Borrowings 32 RITEN

2022 2021
—_E_-_= —ET-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FET
Bank overdraft — unsecured (note 27) $R17i% X—E I (K 5E27) - 1,102
Bank borrowings due for repayment 7 —FREIHAEERITER
within one year — unsecured — I 3 3,192 2,855
Bank borrowings due for repayment —FR B EERBITER
after one year which contain ( SHIREXRER f )
a repayment on demand clause — — 4K 1
unsecured 17,584 20,767
20,776 24,724
As at 31 December 2022, the bank borrowings of the R—_EBE-_—_F+-_A=4+—-B &%

Group amounting to approximately HK$20,776,000 B R 178 3 4920,776,0008 T (=&

(2021: HK$23,622,000) were guaranteed by the Hong
Kong Government, certain of the existing and former
controlling shareholders. As at 31 December 2021,
bank overdraft of approximately HK$1,102,000 was
guaranteed by the Company for a subsidiary. The
Company has not recognised any deferred income in
respect of the guarantee provided to a bank for the
subsidiary as its fair value cannot be reliably measured
and there is no transaction price.

No covenants relating to the Group or the subsidiary’s
financial ratios were required by the banks as at 31
December 2021 and 2022.

——% 123,622,000 7T) AEBBT
ETHERAZERREER RZF
T+ -_A=+—HB BIEXHYH
1,102,000 7t A A A &) 5t — M Mt B A
AIEHER - ARARTEAZNE A

A A ERIT IR 2 R FE AR A AT I SE UK

AN BEREEAREE L2

EIHER o
RZE-_—FR_FT-__F+-H
=t+—B T EERKEREH
B AR RIS EEEIRYL -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e MR RMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 —F — —#F+ - H=+—HIFF

32 Bank Borrowings (Continued)

Repayments of bank borrowings based on the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements are as

32 RITER &
ZE R %Fﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ Bl

EXEHE D

REERITERNFEBHT

follows:
2022 2021
—E-= T —%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
Within one year —F R 3,192 3,957
Over one year but less than BiE—FRLRME
two years 3,300 3,243
Over two years but less than BEmFEELRASF
five years 10,601 10,279
Over five years BBAF 3,683 7,245
20,776 24,724

The weighted average effective interest rates at the

RIARE R E B e P BB A =

respective reporting date were set out as follows: FIEAT -
2022 2021
—ZE2-C —E-—4F
Bank borrowings RITHER 3.38% 2.92%

The carrying amounts of current bank borrowings
approximate their fair values, as the impact of
discounting was not significant on the borrowings carried
floating interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IIRRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —F + - H =+ —HIFFZ

33 Lease Liabilities

As at 31 December 2022, the lease liabilities were
repayable as follows:

33 HE&RE
R_E__F+-_A=+—H HE&
BEEENT

2022 2021

—E=-= T —F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAET

Within 1 year —FR 26,031 38,168
After 1 year but within 2 years iR —FERFA 22,105 36,879
After 2 years but within 5 years HBMEERFA 39,740 49,815
After 5 years HiBAF 12,949 16,305
74,794 102,999

100,825 141,167

34 Provision for Reinstatement Costs 34 BERARERE
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHExT FHET

At 1 January m—H—A8 5,745 5,885
Transfer to other payables S H A R FOE (599) =
Additions NE 862 -
Provision made during the year FANFHREE 150 —
Reversal made during the year FAEDL Z D (511) (204)
Exchange alignment [ERIEEE (222) 64
At 31 December ®n+=—A=+—H 5,425 5,745
Less: Non-current portion B IERNEAES o (3,475) (3,833)
Current portion BN EF &L > 1,950 1,912

Provision for reinstatement costs is recognised for
the costs to be incurred for the reinstatement of the
properties used by the Group for its operations upon
expiration of the relevant leases. The Group expected
that the present value of the costs approximates their
undiscounted costs.

* For identification purposes only

EERABRBIRASBEREBEEE
IRREEELELETAMEMELEN
AR - REBRHPZERAND
BREEELRIERKARE
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i
=

SRR @)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —F - H =+ —HIFFZ

35 Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities)

35 EURIEEE/(EF)

(@) The analysis of deferred tax assets/ (@) i3 L?RIE /(BB EFM
(liabilities) is as follows: ZZ
2022 2021 1 January 202%
—E-= T % _ZE*E
HK$’000 HK$\'0070 HK$;0Cp
FERT FHET FHT
(Restated) (Restated)
(FeE%) (seE7)
Deferred tax liabilities ELRIA R (8 - - (2,902)
Deferred tax assets RAERIEE E 3,244 320 1,435
3,244 320 (1,467)
The movements in deferred tax assets/(liabilities) RAEENB _? TEEMIRERIR
during the current and prior years, without taking BE/(a@) 2% (WERRF—
into consideration the offsetting of balances within BT AR M S RE ) T -
the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:
Deferred tax FIETR IR
(Accelerated)
Decelerated
tax
depreciation Tax losses Others Total
(&) § & )
RERE REEE Hit ag
HKS000  HKSO000  HKSOD  HK$000
THL THT TEL THT
At 1 January 2021 (as previously E@:%E—E—H =IH
reported) (ERIZH) 834 645 (3529) (2,050)
Effect of change in accounting policy & BREBELNEE
(note 4) (Mizz4 583 - - 583
At 1 January 2021 (restated) RZE-_—5-H-AH
(mE5)) 1417 645 (3,529) (1,467)
Exchange alignment (restated) B AR (ME5) 1 1 6) 6
Credited/(charged) to consolidated W\/ (kB HeERR
statement of profit or loss and other ﬂ%@”ﬂ(“%
comprehensive income (note 12) (H312) (1,149) (646) 3,576 1,781
At 31 December 2021 (restated) RZZ=-%+ZA
=+—B(&575) 279 - 41 320
At 1 January 2022 (restated) RZE--%-H-H
(& =51) 279 - # 320
Exchange alignment s (14) (102) - (116)
Credited/(charged) to consolidated M/ NGB GaEER
statement of profitor loss and other K fb 2 &
comprehensive income (note 12) (M 12) (311) 3,352 (1) 3,040
At 31 December 2022 R=% 44$‘|‘ A
Sr= (46) 3,250 40 3,244
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AREMTHmAMNEE @
For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —F + - H =+ —HIFFZ

35 Deferred Tax Assets (Continued) 35 IELEBIEEE (@)
(b) Deferred tax assets have not been b) ARMUTHEEIRELEN
recognised in respect of the following HEE
items:
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
(Restated)
(ge&E75)
Deductible temporary differences — B] 08 & B = 58 36,283 44,688
Tax losses HIBERE 201,251 159,916
237,534 204,604
Notes: Bt 3
() The deductible temporary differences do not expire under the 0] BBERTHEE AINBEREETTS
current tax legislation. T HR o
(ii) Tax losses of approximately HK$53,997,000 (2021: (ii) BERINE AEERTERZERZ
HK$46,312,000) arising from the Group’s restaurant business 255 E 4 B9 B TE 5 48 49 53,997,000 7
in the PRC will expire in the fifth year commencing from the T (ZT=—4% 46,312,000 7T) ¥ 8
year the loss incurred whereas tax losses of approximately EEEEFERASFEREINE  mMA
HK$147,254,000 (2021: HK$113,604,000) arising from the EEREE S HBATELNBIERE
Group’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong do not expire under the 1B #)147,254,0008 T (=T = —F :
current tax legislation 113,604,000 7T) b A& 2 5 -
36 Major Non-Cash Transactions 36 FEFRERS
For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, BE-_ZT-_—_Fh-_ZT-_—F+_-A
the Group entered into lease arrangements in respect =+ —HULEFE XEERHEEEE
of lease modification and the acquisition of right-of- KEERAEEEIIVHERH &
use assets with a total capital value of approximately B EAREED B4 529,550,000 % 7T
HK$29,550,000 and HK$6,010,000, respectively. 16,010,000/ 7T °
During the year ended 31 December 2021, additions REBEZE-_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—H1
of property, plant and equipment included purchase of FE AEVE BEERERBBEERZ
property, plant and equipment settled by deposit paid in T_EFUBNREENZEEME
2020 amounting to approximately HK$1,873,000, which B & 2% % 491,873,000 7T HR =
did not involve any cash payment in 2021. T —FUESIRAMREMNK -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e IEERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # =

37

38

Reserves

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page
135 of the consolidated financial statements.

Other reserves

Other reserves of the Group represent (i) the amount
arising from a reorganisation of the Company in
connection with the listing; (i) wavier of amounts due to
a non-controlling shareholder, related party, and ultimate
controlling shareholders; (iii) the difference between the
acquisition of additional equity interests from the then
non-controlling shareholders and the nominal value of the
shares of an existing subsidiary of the Group issued in
exchange therefore prior to the listing of the Company’s
shares; and (iv) the difference between the consideration
received on disposal of the entire equity interests of the
subsidiaries and the carrying amounts of the net liabilities
of the subsidiaries.

Litigation and Contingent Liabilities

Except for the case set out below, the Group did not
have other significant contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2022 and up to the date of this report.

As announced by the Company on 6 January 2020,
Excel Linker (Hong Kong) Limited, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company received a Write
of Summons together with an indorsement of claim
(the “Indorsement”) dated 31 December 2019 and a
statement of claim (the “Statement of Claim”) dated
17 January 2020 issued in the High Court of The Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region (the “Court Action”)
by Foxhill Investments Limited as plaintiff (the “Plaintiff”)
against Excel Linker (Hong Kong) Limited as defendant
(the “Defendant”).
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38 Litigation and Contingent Liabilities 38 7

39

(Continued)

It is stated in the Indorsement that the Plaintiff’s claim
against the Defendant is in relation to the breach of the
Tenancy Agreement dated 18 April 2018 (the “Tenancy
Agreement”) for wrongfully failing and/or refusing to pay
the rent and/or management fees and/or government
rates in respect of the Premises located at Units 201-
202 on the Second Floor of Infinitus Plaza, No.199 Des
Voeux Road, Central, Hong Kong (the “Premises”) since
1 October 2019. As at 31 December 2022, the Group
had recognised a payable approximately HK$9,271,000
(2021: HK$6,037,000) as the rent, management fee,
penalty and related interest in relation to the Premises in
the consolidated financial statements.

Up to the date of this report, the case is still in
proceedings. On the basis of currently available
information, the Director’s considered that the legal
proceedings are unlikely to result in any other material
outflow of economic benefits from the Group.

Capital Commitments

The Group did not have any significant capital
commitment as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —F - H =+ —HIFFZ

40 Related Party Transactions

40 BB LR Z

(a) Transactions with related parties (a) HEABAINXS
Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated BRREEMBERESBREEIN
financial statements, the Group had the following AEEREHFTFEEBHMAETA
significant transactions with its related parties during LWTERRS :
the years:
2022 2021
—E-= =E
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET AT
Rental expenses paid to Richfield A= # ¥ E AR A &) X+
Develop Limited (Note i) Me Rz (D) 308 886
Interest expense paid to Mr. Chan A FR ¥R £ 5 4= > 1~ Fl &
Chun Kit (Note ii) i s (PR Eii) 29 -
337 886
Note i: Richfield Develop Limited is a related company controlled i EHRHEREBRABAANQAESRIK
by Mr. Chan Chun Kit, a director of the Company. Rental BEEEEHIRRBE AR - X TR
expenses paid to the related company were charged at term ARNEESAXRE S HERENE
mutually agreed by both parties. M ULER -
Note ii: A director of the Company Miski: RARKM—RBES

The above transactions constituted continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules but are exempted from
the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules, as they are below the de minimis
threshold under Rule 14A.76(i).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 —F — —#F+ - H=+—HIFF

40 Related Party Transactions (Continued) 40 BB AR S @)
(b) Balances with related parties (b) EERAEE A KA ER
() Particulars of amounts due from related () RTBECHEBERREH)E383(1)
companies, disclosed pursuant to section gk ra (BEEEFE
383(1)(d) of the Hong Kong Companies B RBIYEIE - fE U
Ordinance and Part 3 of the Companies REFRBENEFBET :

(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, are as follows:

Maximum Maximum
amount amount
outstanding outstanding
during the year 2022 during the year 2021
FR&E ER&ES

ARESR —2--F  KEEE T F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TiEx T TEL

Long Run Investment Limited? HHEREERAA 3 3 2 2
Elite Linker Investment Limited? B & HR 17 3 3 3 3
Richfield Develop Limited? ERTARBRA T 0 - - 66 =
Poly Wealth Limited" EFRBRARD 1 1 1 1
Star Catering Management Limited? FIBEHREEER AR 3 - 8 3
10 7 75 9
Note: feE
()  Controlled by Mr. Chan Chun Kit, a director of the 0] AR R EERIRGE ST AEER
Company.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 —F — —#F+ - H=+—HIFF

40 Related Party Transactions (Continued) 40 BEBAER 5 @)

(b) Balances with related parties (Continued) (b) EERFEEF M4 E‘-i‘- ()

(i)  Amounts due to related companies (i) FEFTEEEE A AIEKIE
2022 2021
—E=-= s
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHET
Richfield Develop Limited? ERAEBRAAO 980 307

Star Catering Management NMNEESKRERAR
Limited® NI 137 -
1,117 307
Note: B 5%

(i) Controlled by Mr. Chan Chun Kit, a director of the
Company.

Amounts due from/(to) related parties are
unsecured, interest free and repayable on
demand.

) HEAABEERERELEES -

FE W, (fF) 8 Bt

IR R &

B e ERIEFEE -

(c) Key management compensation c) EEEBASHM
WTESAFTEZEEBEEKENS

The emoluments of executive directors and

members of key management were as follows: an R -

2022 2021
—E-= - —fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Directors’ fee EEME 172 —

Basic salaries, allowances BEXH & EZBREF
and benefits 3,978 4,260
Discretionary bonuses E’J BIELT 43 5

Employer’s contribution to EREETEEEH-K

pension scheme 134 105
4,327 4,370

Total remuneration is included in “Employee benefits
expenses” (see note 9).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AREMTHmAMNEE @
For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —F + - H =+ —HIFFZ

41 Statement of Financial Position of the 41 A& A E AR TR

Company
(@) Company-level statement of financial () ARIEEMBRRE
position
2022 2021
—g-= —E——
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FHERT FET
ASSETS EBE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Interests in subsidiaries M B AR e 41(c) 24,548 19,784
Current assets REEE
Prepayments and other TE A SRIE K B FE UL
receivables IR 360 207
Amounts due from related JE U EE B B R IE
companies 7 7
Pledged bank deposits BEAEITER - 4,076
Cash and cash equivalents HeRR2EEY 13,355 126
13,722 4,436
Total assets EEHAE 38,270 24,220
EQUITY R
Share capital fi&% 7R 28 11,051 10,000
Share premium R % 1B 41(b) 118,902 98,884
Other reserve H b 41(b) 78 78
Accumulated losses ZEtEE 41(b) (95,510) (87,433)
Total equity RS 34,521 21,529
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables H th FE < 5B 3,749 2,691
Total liabilities =Rk 3,749 2,691
Total equity and liabilities EEkaEEE 38,270 24,220
Net current assets REBEERE 9,973 1,745
These financial statements were approved and R-ZF_=%=A_+NH &
authorised for issue by the Board of directors on 29 EERERBENEZSUBR
March 2023 and are signed on its behalf by: X WYHNUTATREESE:
CHAN Chun Kit CHAN Josephine Wai Sze
PR I % PRI
Director Director
EE EE

Li Bao Ge Group Limited  Annual Report 2022 247



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e B IEERRMEE @)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —#F 1+ —-H=+—HIFFE

41 Statement of Financial Position of the 41 &2 TR R K @)
Company (Continued)

(b) AT EFEAKNEE

(b) Movements in components of reserve of

the Company

Share Other Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
RoaEE  HttiRE  RAER @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT AT THET AT
Balance at 1 January 2021 RZB-Z—F
— A— Ak 98,884 78 (70,575) 28,387
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FRBEREZE
loss for the year BREeR - - (16,858) (16,858)
Balance at 31 December 2021  R-ZE-—F+—-f
=+—HmEH 98,884 78 (87,433) 11,529
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FRBEREE
loss for the year BREeR - - (8,077) (8,077)
Placing of new shares B & ¥ ikin 20,018 - - 20,018
Balance at 31 December 2022 R -E-~F+—-f
e i =L 0F =23 118,902 78 (95,510) 23,470
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —F + - H =+ —HIFFZ

41 Statement of Financial Position of the 41 A2 T E AR TR (@)

Company (Continued)

(c) Particulars of principal subsidiaries

Details of the principal subsidiaries at the end of the

) EEMBARFE

RBERROEENEBARFIS

reporting period are as follows: /(N N
Place of Effective
incorporation Particulars of interest held
and operation and issued share by the
Name type of legal entity capital Company  Principal activities
AL A L IR AR 3 B KRR
£8 RieERERY ERTRAFE EREZ TEEH
Solarday Investment Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited HK$20,000 100%  Ceased business
liability company
HEREARAA B5 BBREMAR  20,000%7T 100% fFILEE
Orient Century Limited Hong Kong, limited HK$20,000 100%  Ceased business
liability company
REBRAA BF BREMRAF 20,0008 100% f2ILEE
Great Virtue Investment Hong Kong, limited HK$10,000 100%  Ceased business
Limited liability company
BmRERRRA B5 BREMRAR  10,000#7T 100% fFILEE
Great Virtue (Hong Kong) Hong Kong, limited HK$10,000 100%  Ceased business
Investment Limited liability company
Em(BB)REBBAR  BE BREMELQA  10000%TT 100% f2ILEE
Excel Linker (Hong Kong) Hong Kong, limited HKS$1 100%  Ceased business
Limited liability company
&5 () BRRA & BREARAR 1A 100% fFILEE
Smart Best (Asia) Limited Hong Kong, limited HK$100 100%  Ordering of food
liability company ingredient for the
Group
R (BN ERAF &5 BREMAR 1008 100% ARAKETERM
Tiena Company Limited Hong Kong, limited HK$1 100%  Restaurant operation
liability company
RERARDA 5 BREMAR 18T 100% IBEEEE
FIZECRI)ERABB AR People’s Republicof  RMB23,530,000 100%  Restaurant operation
China, limited
liability company
MER (R BRERRE HEARLME - AR #23,530,0007C 100% EigEE
BEREEATA
MEE R EEEHK People’s Republic o~ RMB13,000,000 100%  Restaurant operation
BRAT China, limited
liability company
MER (R Z8ER hEARLNE AR #13,000,0007C 100% EREE
BERRAA AREEATA
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —F - H =+ —HIFFZ

41 Statement of Financial Position of the 41 A2 T E AR ER (@)
Company (Continued)

(c) Particulars of principal subsidiaries (c) EEM B A AIFIE @

(Continued)

Place of Effective
incorporation Particulars of interest held
and operation and issued share by the
Name type of legal entity capital Company  Principal activities
LT AR L e A o B L NNETE 3
£8 RieERER ERITRAFE ERER TEZER
FIBEEE R R People’s Republic of ~ HK$5,000,000 100%  Ceased business
BRAT China, limited
liability company
MERBZE (RI) ER REARLME 5,000,000 7 100% FILEE
BRAR BREERA
MERE (RI)EHK People’s Republic of ~ HK$500,000 100%  Ceased business
BRAT China, limited
liability company
MERE (RYN) BHR mEARLME 500,000/ 7 100% fFILEE
BRAT BREERT
LETHRMARRAT People’s Republic of ~ RMB3,750,000 100%  Ceased business
China, limited
liability company
FEEREMARAT mEARLME AR 3,750,000 7 100% FILEE
BREAATA
BR(EB)RMBBRADA People’s Republicof  RMB5,500,000 70%  Ceased business
China, limited
liability company
BR(EB)RRERAR  HREARLANER- AR 5,500,0007 70% RIEEE
BREAAT

The above table lists out the subsidiaries of the
Group which, in the opinion of the Directors,
principally affect the results of the Group for the year
or form a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group at the end of the year.

To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of

excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt capital in issue
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —F + - H =+ —HIFFZ

41 Statement of Financial Position of the 41 A2 T E AR TR (@)

Company (Continued)
(d) Non-controlling interest (d) FEEZRER
The following table lists out the information relating THRINEEBERR (REEM—#%
to Yaoliang, the only subsidiary of the Group which BEREEREZNHBAR)®
has a material non-controlling interest (NCI). The B -T2V BMENKE
summarised financial information presented below B ARER A REEHEAINESRE -
represents the amounts before any inter-company
elimination.
2022 2021
—g-= —FT-—
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
NCI percentage EEREZR A 30% 30%
Current assets MBEE - -
Non-current assets EMEBEE - X
Current liabilities mBEE (8,891) (9,490)
Non-current liabilities ERBBEE - 7
Net liabilities BEFE (8,891) (9,490)
Carrying amount of NCI TR ESREE (2,667) (2,847)
Revenue Wz - 15,731
Loss for the year FAEE (206) (21,528)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) WA (E18) 4258 599 (21,730)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 7 it & 3 A% %5 59
allocated to NCI ZEKA(BR) B 180 6,519)
Dividend paid to NCI BT IR R AR R - —
Cash flows from operating KEEHABHEERE
activities 59 3,046
Cash flows from investing BREEMERERE
activities - 1
Cash flows from financing BMEEBMSHEESRE
activities - (2,708)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # = —

42

43.

Share-Based Payment Transactions

Pursuant to the Company’s share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) adopted on 16 June 2016 for the primary
purpose of providing incentives to Directors, employees,
consultants, advisers, distributors, contractors,
suppliers, agents, customers, business partners
and services providers of the Group, the directors,
employees, consultant or adviser of the Group or any
substantial shareholder of the Group, or any distributors,
contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business
partners and services providers may, at the discretion
of the board, be granted options (the “Options”)
to subscribe for shares in the Company at a price
determined by its directors, but shall not be less than
the highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the
date of the offer of grant, which must be a trading day,
(i) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer
of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Shares on the
date of grant of the option.

Without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders,
the total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to
exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any point in time, and the number of shares in respect
of which options may be granted to any individual in any
one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any point in time.

The Scheme will remain in force for a period of ten years
from the date of its adoption. Options granted must be
taken up not later than 7 days after the date of grant. A
consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of the
offer of grant of an option.

The exercisable period of an option, which shall not
exceed 10 years from the date of grant, is determined by
the Board of Directors of the Company at their discretion.
No options have been granted since its adoption.

Comparative figures

As explained in note 4.2 to the consolidated financial
statements, due to the change in accounting policy for
property, plant and equipment adopted by the Group,
certain comparative amounts have been restated to
conform with the current year’'s accounting treatments
and presentation.
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44 Possible Impact of Amendments, New
Standards and Interpretations Issued
but not yet Effective for the year ended
31 December 2022

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of
amendments, new standards and interpretations which
are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December
2022 and which have not been early adopted in these
consolidated financial statements. These include the
following which may be relevant to the Group:
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HIEFEDSR
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& HF (11

1’
N

4
518
/\u&

H
= R
e

i 3+
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ayp

Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning

on or after
RUTBEHR
Z BB
B HBEN

HKFRS 17
BBV BREERFT7H
Amendments to HKAS 1

BEAGEHERE 1] (BETA)
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2

FEEEAF 1R NETEMB
WEENEBIMEE 25 (BRI A)

Amendments to HKAS 8
BEAGEERIFE 8 (BT AK)
Amendments to HKAS 12

ERIFEA125% (BETA)

1 January 2023
—=%—H—H
1 January 2023

Insurance Contracts
REgE &Y —=
Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current
BESBERREBHIERD

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

—ET-=F—H—H
1 January 2023

SRR E —F_=%—HA—H

Definition of Accounting Estimates
SEEETHER
Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities Arising from a Single
Transaction
—RGEENEERAEBHEB —FT
B3R E A 18

1 January 2023
—ET-=F—H—H
1 January 2023

—=F—H—H
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —F = —F - H =+ —HIFFZ

44 Possible Impact of Amendments, New 44 BEZ_-%

Standards and Interpretations Issued
but not yet Effective for the year ended
31 December 2022 (Continued)

& HF (11

1’
N

4
458
/\u&

H
= R
e

it EED S
BT - #HET

1= =
S m

i 32+
RN |

ﬁmn

ayp

Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning

on or after
AU BE
ZERBN
SHBER

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

BB Hﬂk#ﬁz%ﬁ,ﬁﬂ F105% &
BB G ERE 285 (BT A)
HK Interpretatlon 5 (2020)

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture

KREEHRHBENRNELEREZH
WEEHEIFE

Presentation of Financial Statements
— Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause

To be determined

€

1 January 2024

EEREBESR(ZT_TF) MHRENEIN —tEFXAHRE —E-NF—-A—A
T@EHTEIE’ & 5RO E B B SRR
DHR

These standards are mandatorily effective for first
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2023. At
this stage, the Group does not intend to adopt these
standards before their effective date. The Group has not
early applied the new and revised HKFRSs that have
been issued but are not yet effective.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these developments is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So far it has
concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to
have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
BB E
RESULTS ¥
Year ended 31 December
BEt-A=t-ALEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
“E-Cf T ZFZTF —T-NF ZT-N\E
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TET THT THET FHET AT
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
(m=5) (kEH) (KEFF) (KE)
Revenue e 135,552 274566 236,397 352,861 360,509
(Loss)/Profit before income tax B FT/& %A1 (B512), /& Fl (46,217)  (101,288) (40,499) (50,981) 4,608
Income tax Fe 3,123 1,150 74 (9,343) (2,650)
(Loss)/Profit for the year FR(BEB),/ &7 (43,094)  (100,138) (40,425) (60,324) 1,958
Attributable to: PN L
Owners of the Company ARRHEBA (41,352) (92,430) (39,466) (60,324) 1,958
Non-controlling interests IR (1,742) (7,708) (959) - -
(43,094)  (100,138) (40,425) (60,324) 1,958
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY (Continued)
BIERE (@)

Assets, Liabilities and Non-Controlling
Interests

EE -RERFERER

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t-HLEE
2021 2020 2019 2018
—E_-F —T-THE —T-NF _T-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TERT THT FHT
(Restated)  (Restated) ~ (Restated)  (Restated)
(BE5) (BEY) (KEF) (KE7)

200796 325364 369,315 176,831
(045234)  (270,646) (281,873  (57,978)

(44,438) 54718 87,442 118,853
3,682 (4,105) - -

2022

—E-CF

HK$’000

TET

Total assets BELRE 141,924

Total liabilities BREESE (208,586)

Net (iabilities)/assets F(BE)/EE (66,662)

Non-controling interests #T Hﬂ i 5,062
(Deficit)/Equity attributable to the R 2 &1 A A JEE

owners of the Company (B4),/#xm (61,600)

(40,756) 50,613 87,442 118,853

The financial information for the year ended 31 December
2022 is extracted from the consolidated financial statements
in the Company’s annual reports. The financial information for
the years earlier than 2022 has been restated for consistency
with the change in accounting policy in 2022.

The summary above does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.
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